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FINANCE DEPARTMENT
7North Dixie Highway' lake Worthr Florida 33460 . Phone: 561-586-1654

September 28,2009

To the Citizens of the City of Lake Worth:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Lake Worth, Florida (the City), for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2008, is submitted herewith. This report was prepared by the staff of the
Finance Department. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness
of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the data, as presented, are
accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information, and the respective changes in fmancial position and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the readers to gain an
understanding of the City's financial activity have been included.

ORGANIZATION AND CONTENT

The organization and content of this report is based primarily on the financial reporting standards set by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and recommendations of the Government
Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA). The report is designed to meet
the needs of a wide variety of readers and is divided into four principal sections:

Introductory Section-This section includes the names of both elected and appointed officials who are
responsible for policy matters and the management of the City's affairs, an organization chart of key
management positions, and this transmittal letter which discusses the major factors that affected the
operating results for the year.

Financial Section-This section includes the independent auditors' report on the City's fmancial
statements, management's discussion and analysis, the basic fmancial statements, notes to the fmancial
statements, required supplementary information, and the combining and individual fund statements and
schedules and other fmancial information. The basic financial statements present an overview of
fmandal activities of the City.

Statistical Section-Although this section contains substantial fmandal information, these tables differ
from financial statements in that they present some non-accounting data, cover more than two fiscal
years, and highlight social and economic data, financial trends and political characteristics of the City.



Compliance Section-The City is required to undergo an annual audit under Government Auditing
Standards. This section includes report of independent certified public accountants on compliance and on
internal control over fmancial reporting based on an audit of the basic [mancial statements performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. The City is also required to undergo an annual Single
Audit performed under the provisions of the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General, State of Florida. The information related to the Single Audit, including the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, findings and recommendations and auditors' reports on internal control and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations are included in the compliance section.

THE CITY

The City was incorporated as a municipality under the laws of the State of Florida in 1913 and provides
general municipal services such as police and fire protection, recreation and public works, as well as certain
enterprise activities such as a golf course, electric, water, sewer, stonnwater and waste removal services.
The City borders West Palm Beach on its northern boundary and the exclusive Town of Palm Beach to the
northeast at the Intracoastal Waterway and the Atlantic Ocean. This location provides significant benefits in
terms of the quality of life for its residents.

The City is primarily a residential community. The median age in the 1990s has gone from 50 years to 40
years. Tourism, retail and construction are the main industries supporting the local economy. The quarter­
mile, municipally owned beach with an ocean fishing pier, combined with the beach complex of an
Olympic-size, heated swimming pool, restaurants and oceanfront shops makes the area a popular attraction
for residents and tourists alike.

THE REpORTING ENTITY

The City's reporting entity consists of the primary government, organizations for which the primary
government is fmancially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the City's basic financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. The primary government is considered financially accountable if
it appoints a voting majority of an organization's governing body and imposes its will on that organization.
The primary government may also be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the
primary government, regardless of the authority of the organization's governing board. Legally, separate
organizations outside of the primary government that meet the criteria for fmancial accountability are
considered component units. Based on these criteria, the various funds shown in the table of contents are
included in this report. Also, the fund structure has been designed to comply with the legal requirements of
the various revenue bond resolutions. In addition, based on financial accountability, the City of Lake Worth
Cornmunity Redevelopment Agency is included as a blended component unit reported as an individual
special revenue fund.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City obtains a major portion of its General Fund annual financial resources from ad valorem property
taxes. Lake Worth also operates Electric, Water and Sewer Utilities, Solid Waste collection and Golf
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Course enterprises that reflect substantial capital investments to provide services and receive substantial
revenues from their enterprise operations.

Property taxes have declined over the prior year due to a reduction in City tax rates. Property tax revenues
in 2008 comprise approximately 45% of annual General Fund annual resources providing funding for $15.7
million of the total $35.2 million annual budget. Although City property tax receipts decreased by $637,000
from the prior year, they have increased by $4.5 million since 2005. 1ms 4-year increase has been outpaced
by the $5.2 million increase in Public Safety expenditures. Past increases in annual tax collections stem
from exceptional increases to City property values coupled with minimal adjustment to the City tax rate. A
majority of increased annual tax receipts has been used for continuing operations, primarily Public Safety,
leaving Lake Worth vulnerable to the effects of reduced property values and financial growth in the future.

The City expects a marked decline in property value in the coming years. This stems generally from two
factors: 1) most vacant property within the City limits has already been developed while redevelopment has
declined and 2) the general economic environment that is causing declines in property values as well as
property loan fmancing. There has been a persistent decline in the real-estate market significantly impacting
both home values and sales. Additionally, State legislative initiatives and voter demands for property tax
limits make future levels of taxable property values and growth of City tax resources uncertain.

As property values and annual tax revenues have increased over the past five years, so too has the General
FWld annual operating budget. The City has increased its employee compensation and benefits over the past
several years with annual pay adjustments of 5% and significant increases in the cost of annual retirement
contributions. Financial resources from property taxes is therefore moving away from non-recurring capital
costs toward meeting the annual cost of continuing operations. To mitigate this impact, the City took
deliberate steps to eliminate over 25 staff positions during the 2007/08 fiscal year. Pay and benefits make
up the majority of the City'S annual operating costs and therefore have a large and continuing impact on the
City's fmancial condition. Conversely, most capital projects typically reflect relatively small continuing
cost and therefore have a modest impact on the City's on-going fmandal condition.

The City's future flllancial challenges come primarily in the area of reduced property tax funding coupled
with continuing cost increases of staff pay and benefits. Adding new staff positions and expanding
retirement benefits in the early years of this decade were followed by more recent increases in salary,
specialty pays and longevity. The combination of more staff positions and higher salary I incentive /
longevity costs significantly increased the cost of annual pension funding. The City is approaching a time
where financial commitments for pay and benefits will compete with community priorities; making crucial
choices in the selection and content ofpublic service levels, capital projects, and retaining staff a formidable
challenge in maintaining the City's fmancial position. In an effort to maintain the City's financial position,
reductions in the number of staff positions began in 2007/08 and are expected to continue in coming years.

The City's Utility operations continue to address challenges regarding reliability, maintaining competitive
billing rates and meeting capital infrastructure and maintenance needs. Management turnover and weather
repairs reflect the need for a comprehensive plan for maintenance and improvement to the City's utility
infrastructure. While these infrastructure "hardening" programs are developed, broader decisions regarding
planning, testing and monitoring the City's electdcal transmission grid and groundwater inflow to the
wastewater system must be created and refined. City electrical generators nearing the end of their expected
useful life may need to be replaced or repaired at substantial cost. The City has recently completed
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replacement of a large sewer pumping station using short-term bank financing and the City's future potable
water supply is embracing both capital expansion and comprehensive financial planning.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

By resolution, the City Commission adopted major policies to safeguard the City's finances. Restricting the
use of the undesignated fund balance was accomplished by setting a long-term goal to work gradually
toward creating a 15% emergency designation of General Fund annual expenditures. Funds in excess of this
balance would be available for capital projects and other community initiatives.

In August 2008, the City approved transition of its Police Department operations, staff and equipment to the
Palm Beach County Sheriff beginning October 1, 2008. The transfer of police service was accomplished
through an Interlocal Agreement whereby the City's annual contractual fee is paid to the Sheriff in equal
monthly amounts. The transfer also resulted in City payment of employees leave balances that were in
excess of balances accepted as a transfer to the County Sheriff. The City will continue making annual
Police Pension Plan contributions for transferred employees until such time as the Plan is fully funded. The
City also pays for maintenance, utilities and property insurance of the local station occupied and used by the
Sheriff as its operational headquarters.

In Apri12008, the City approved an Interlocal Agreement with the Palm Beach County Water Department to
install piping and purchase potable water in bulk for resale to customers. This Interlocal Agreement was
originally selected as a lowest cost alternative to supply customers with needed amounts of potable water.
Subsequent to September 30, 2008, the City Commission halted work on the County bulk water pipeline and
voted to not abide by the Interlocal Agreement. Commission actions during 2009 reflect plans to obtain
additional loan financing in order to complete construction of a reverse osmosis water facility to supply
customers with potable water.

The City's Enterprise Utility operations are analyzing needed infrastructure improvements including the
provision of potable water, groundwater infiltration and treatment in the wastewater system, upgrade of
electrical transmission and distribution systems and replacement of inefficient and aging electrical
generation units. The City also plans to conduct an analysis of user fees and rates during the coming year
that will help ensure the financial stability of City Utility operations is maintained.

ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETARY CONTROLS

The accounting and financial reporting of the City's general government operations takes place in four broad
categories: the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Funds. The
records and reports for these funds are maintained on the modified accrual basis, with revenue being recorded
when measurable and available, and expenditures being recorded when the services or goods are received and
the liabilities incurred. Accounting records for the City's utilities, as well as other enterprise operations, and
pension trust funds are maintained on the accrual basis.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control designed to ensure that the
assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data
are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP). The internal control is designed to provide reasonable,
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rather than absolute, assurance these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that
(1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the evaluation of costs
and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal, state and local awards, the City is responsible for ensuring that adequate internal
control is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This
internal control is subject to periodic evaluation by management.

Annually, tests are performed by auditors to detennine the adequacy of the City's internal control, including
that portion related to federal awards programs, as well as to determine that the City has complied with
applicable laws and regulations. The results ofthe City's audit for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008,
disclosed material weaknesses in internal control. These weaknesses are being addressed through the City
Manager with the all City Departments including the Finance Department.

New reporting requirements of the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) provided a 3-year
implementation period for governments to begin reporting their capital infrastructure in their financial
statements. The City's financial administration completed infrastructure reporting requirements for the year
ending September 30, 2008. This City annual audit continues to show many areas of recommended
improvement that will be addressed by management and staff in future years.

The City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance
with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the government's governing
body. Activities of the General Fund, Community Redevelopment Agency and enterprise funds are included
in the annual appropriated budget. Project-length financial plans are adopted for the capital projects funds.
The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the
appropriated amount) is established at the department level within an individual fund. The City also
maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

According to the City's charter, the City has the power to borrow money, contract loans and issue bonds,
time warrants and certificates of indebtedness to finance the undertaking of any municipal or public project
pennitted by the State of Florida. The charter also pennits the City to pledge the funds or property taxing
power of the City for the payment of such debt and bonds subject, however, to mandatory requirements that
the total indebtedness of the City never exceed 25% of the total assessed value of the taxable property within
its corporate limits.

In November 2004, the City's Electric and Water Funds issued a 30-year $69,925,000 revenue bond at a
synthetic fIxed rate of approximately 3.698% using auction rate securities. This bond was used to refund
outstanding revenue bonds, refund debt with FMPA and fund improvements to the electrical distribution
system and provision of potable water supply for the City's Water Utility. This debt was refinanced in May
2008 due to impacts bond underwriter ratings and substantially increased variable interest costs associated
with the weekly auction rate securities market. The refinancing was accomplished at a fixed rate of 4.2%
through bank qualifIed loans over a 20-year period. This refinancing removed bond reserve requirements
that were used to pay costs of the bond refunding and resulted in a higher annual debt repayment due to the
higher interest rate and shorter repayment tenn.
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All payments on debt obligations of the City have been made on a timely basis, and the proper liquid assets
have been set aside and restricted as to use in accordance with the terms of the various debt instruments.
The City is negotiating new contracts with the Regional Sewer customers.

The Debt Service Fund is used to accumulate resources (cash and investments) for the payment of general
long-term debt principal and interest according to the requirements of the Series 1992 Bonds and Series
1996 Bonds resolutions. During 2008, the principal source of revenue for this fund was ad valorem taxes
along with interest earned on sinking fund investments.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The City maintains several bank cash and investment accounts for all funds, except for those accounts that
are legally restricted. Under this program, all available cash temporarily idle during the year was pooled and
invested in various money market instruments, including Treasury bills, funds and agencies of the federal
government through the State Board of Administration's State of Florida Investment Pool and Salem Trust.
fuvestments .are selected based upon current and anticipated liquidity requirements, yield, market
diversification and anticipated market movements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City participates in a self-insurance pool administered by Southeast Risk Management Association
(SERMA). The City and four other municipalities contribute to this pooled fund. The City is subject to
supplemental assessments in the event of deficiencies which result from a specific claim against the City in
excess of the reinsurance available. The City is also covered by Florida Statutes under the Doctrine of
Sovereign Innnunity which effectively limits the amount of liability of mupJcipalities to individual claims of
$100,000 or $200,000 for all claims relating to the same incident.

In May 2008, City property insurance with SERMA halted and the City became self-insured for property
claim coverage through the Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT). There was no estimated liability for
incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims regarding property coverage as of September 30, 2008.

Due to risk limitations, the City's beach pier and lifeguard stands are considered uninsurable by the City's
risk pool. Therefore, the cost of repair or replacement to these assets must be absorbed directly by the City
unless reimbursement is provided by federal emergency funding.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Florida Statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The accounting firm of
MarcumRachlin, a division of Marcum LLP was selected by the City Commission for the 2008 audit and
their independent auditors' report on the basic financial statements of the City is included in the fmancial
section of this report.
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MARCUM
RACHLIN
ACCOUNTANTS. ADViSORS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City ofLake Worth, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information (including the Community
Redevelopment Trust Fund) of the City of Lake Worth, Florida (the City) as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City's basic fmaneial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These fmancial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these fmancial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Firefighters' Pension Trust FUnd, 'Which represents 17.95% and (13.95%),
respectively, of the' assets and revenues of the aggregate remaining fund information. Those fmancial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund, is based
solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes consideration of internal control over fmancial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City's internal control over fmancial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the fmancial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall fmancial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit and the report ofother auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the fmaneial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective fmancial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
(including the Community Redevelopment Trust Fund) of the City of Lake Worth, Florida, as of
September 30, 2008, and the respective changes in fmancial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.
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Honorable Mayor and City Commission
.City of Lake Worth, Florida
Page Two

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 28,
2009 on our consideration of the City's internal control over fmancial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
fmancial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over fmancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

Management's Discussion and Analysis and the Required Supplementary Information on pages 3-10 and
pages 69-75, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. We and the other
auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the infonnation and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fmancial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic fmancial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund
fmancial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Similarly, the accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, and is not a required part of the basic
fmancial statements. The combining and individual fund fmancial statements and schedules and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us
and the other auditors in the audit of the basic fmancial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit
and the report of the other auditors, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

m~k~c'
a division of Marcum LLP
West Palm Beach, Florida
September 28, 2009
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City's financial statements presents management's analysis of the City's financial
performance during the fiscal year that ended on September 30, 2008. Please read it in conjunction with
the fmancial statements, which follow this section:

Financial Highlights

• The financial health of the City is coming under increasing pressure as City property values
reached a plateau in 2007 following two years of historic increases (30% and 32%, respectively
in 2005 and 2006) and a period of almost no growth in 2008. This reflects a pull-back from an
unusually strong real estate market that included business and residential expansions. Decreases
in assessed property value are expected to decline further -in the coming year leading to
increasing pressure on financial resources for maintenance of public infrastructure and staff
compensation and benefits.

• The total net assets of the City at September 30, 2008 were $225 million, reflecting an increase
of $33 million from 2007. Of this amount, $89 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to
meet the ongoing obligations to the residents of the City and its' creditors.

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance for the General Fund
was $4 million. The City has designated $5.2 million of unreserved fund balance for emergency
purposes only and $2.2 million has been designated for special proj ects.

• The City has $1.2 million in voter approved general obligation bonds outstanding.

• At September 30, 2008, the Utilities Department has total debt outstanding of $ 74.1 million
including revenue bonds payable in the amount of $66 million and notes payable of $6.8 million.
In May 2008, the balance due on the City's 2004 Water and Electric Utility revenue bonds was
refunded. This refunding was caused by impacts on the auction rate securities market and
declines in bond insurance ratings. The purpose of this original 2004 bond was to refund
outstanding revenue bonds, refund debt with the FMPA and to fund improvements to the
electrical distribution system and to provide funding for the City's potable water system in
response to reduced groundwater withdrawal limits required by the South Florida Water
Management District.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic fmancial
statements. The basic fmancial statements consist of three parts: government-wide financial statements,
fund financial statements and notes to the fmancial statements. This report also includes supplementary
information that explains in more detail some ofthe infonnation in the fmancial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide fmancial statements of the City provide a broad overview of the City's finances
and report infonnation about the City using accounting methods similar to those used by private sector
companies.
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The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the City's assets and liabilities and provides information
about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to City creditors
(liabilities). The assets and liabilities are presented in a classified format, which distinguishes between
current and long-term assets and liabilities. Net assets, the difference between assets and liabilities,
provide the basis for computing rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the City, and assessing
the liquidity and financial flexibility of the City. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities measures the success of the City's operations over the past year and can be
used to determine whether the City has successfully recovered all its costs through its services provided.
All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods.

The government-wide statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
Governmental activities include general government, public safety,. physical environment, transportation,
community redevelopment and culture and recreation. Business-type activities include water and electric
utilities, local and regional sewer, golf course, stormwater, refuse collection and disposal systems.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11 to 12 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide fmancial statements. However, these funds
focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. As a result of this difference in focus, a reconciliation is
provided between the fund and government-wide statements in order to better understand the long-term
impact of short-term financing decisions.

The City maintains sixteen individual governmental funds. fuformation is presented separately for the
general fund, as it is considered a major fund. Data for the other governmental funds are aggregated into
a single presentation. Individual fund data for these other non-major funds is provided in the form of
combining statements on pages 76 to 77 in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 13 to 16 of this report.

Proprietary Funds - The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide fmancial
statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the operation of providing water service,
electric utility service, local and regional sewer service, golf course, stormwater and refuse collection and
disposal. The City uses internal service funds to account for the fmancing of insurance services and
information technology provided to other funds of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis. The services
of the insurance fund primarily support governmental rather than business-type functions and as such,
they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide statements. The services
of the information technology fund primarily support the business-type functions and as such, have been
included in the business-type activities in the government-wide statements.
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Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide statements, only in more
detail. The water, electric, local and regional sewer funds are major funds and are presented separately.
Data for the other nonmajor enterprise funds are aggregated into a single presentation. The internal
service funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial
statements. Separate information is provided for each of the City's nonrnajor enterprise funds and
internal service funds in combining schedules on pages 79 to 84. The basic proprietary fund financial
statements can be found on pages 17 to 21 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
of the government and, consequently, are not reflected in the government-wide statements because the
resources are not available to support the City's own programs. The accounting for fiduciary funds is
much like that ofproprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund statements can be found on pages 22 to 23 of this report. In addition, the
combining schedules are presented on pages 85 to 86 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the govemment-wide and .fund financial statements. The notes to
the fmancial statements can be found beginning On page 24 of this report.

Other information - In addition to the basic financial statements and notes, this repOlt also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to
provide pension benefits and other post-employment benefits to its employees. The required
supplementary information also contains a budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund to
demonstrate budgetary compliance. Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page
69 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Our analysis of the government-wide fmancial statements of the City begins below. One of the most
important questions asked about the City's fmances is "Is the City as a whole better off or worse off as a
result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report
information about the City's activities in a way that will help answer this question. These two statements
report the net assets of the City and changes in them. You can think of the City's net assets - the
difference between assets and liabilities - as One way to measure the fmancial health or financial
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are one indicator of whether its
fmancial health is improving or deteriorating. However, you will need to consider other non-fmancial
factors such as changes in economic conditions, regulations and new or changed government legislation.

To begin our analysis, a summary of the City's government-wide statement of net assets is presented in
Table A-I.
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TableA-l
Condensed Statement of Net Assets (In Thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Current and other assets $37,530 $37,226 $118,707 $110,926 $ 116,017 $148,152
Capital assets 61,512 32,808 109,054 113,105 170,566 145,913

Total assets 99,042 70,034 227,761 224,031 286,583 294,065

Current liabilities 3,589 2,826 13,913 11,672 17,502 14,498
Noncurrent liabilities 9,856 12,612 74,301 74,472 84,157 87,084

Total liabilities 13,445 15,438 88,214 86,144 101,659 101,582

Net assets
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 57,367 25,517 69,885 84,542 127,252 110,059
Restricted 8,525 9,086 698 10,062 9,223 19,148
Unrestricted 19,705 19,993 68,964 43,283 88,669 63,276

Total net assets $ 85,597 $54,596 $139,547 $137,887 $225,144 $192,483

As shown in Table A-I, net assets amounted to $225 million at the end of fiscal 2008. The major
component of this category is "invested in capital assets, net of related debt," which represents the City's
investment in its capital assets, net of the amounts borrowed to purchase these assets. This category of
net assets increased from $111 million in fiscal 2007 to $127 million in fiscal 2008 due to the inclusion
of the governmental activities infrastructure assets such as roadways and sidewalks. An additional
portion of the City's net assets (4%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($88,669) may be used to meet the
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of
net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. There was a decrease of$9.364 million
in restricted net assets reported in connection with the City business-type activities. This decrease
resulted from the removal of restrictions on certain assets associated with revenue bonds that were
refunded during the current fiscal year.

While the statement of net assets shows the change in financial position of net assets, the statement of
activities provides answers as to the nature and source of these changes.
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Table A~2

Condensed Statement of Activities (In Thousands)

Governmental
Activities

2008 2007

Business-type
Activities

2008 2007
Total

2008 2007

- $
General revenues:

Taxes
Intergovernmental - unrestricted
Investment earnings - unrestricted
Miscellaneous
Gain on sale of capital assets

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating
Capital

Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Community redevelopment
Interest on long-term debt
Electric utility
Water utility
Local and regional sewer
Golf course
Stormwater
Refuse collection and disposal

Total expenses

Increase in net assets
before transfers

Transfers

Increase in net assets
..... Net assetS, beginning ofyear,

as previously reported
Prior period adjustment

Net assets, beginning of year,
as restated

$26,575
1,287
1,113

216

5,452
1,594
2,405

38,642

3,595
24,219

1,246
2,062
6,376
1,662

353

39,513

(871)
2,850

1,979

54,596
29,022

83,618

$22,640 $
4,185
1,576

790

4,705
3,752

810

38,458

4,333
25,032

1,271
1,985
4,564

699
389

38,273

185
5,121

5,306

49,290

49,290

2,436
370

84,363

1,422

88,591

57,491
9,619

10,447
2,023
1,307
3,811

84,698

3,893
(2,850)

1,043

137,887
617

138,504

- $

2,831
182

79,553
491

2,020

85,077

46,947
7,532

11,281
2,191

837
5,247

74,035

11,042
(5,121)

5,921

131,966

131,966

26,575 $
1,287
3,549

586

89,815
1,594
3,827

127,233

3,595
24,219

1,246
2,062
6,376
1,662

353
57,491

9,619
10,447
2,023
1,307
3,811

124,211

3,022

3,022

192,483
29,639

222,122

22,640
4,185
4,407

972

84,258
4,243
2,830

123,535

4,333
25,032

1,271
1,985
4,564

699
389

46,947
7,532

11,281
2,191

837
5,247

112,308

11,227

11,227

181,256

181,256

Net assets, end of year

Governmental Activities:

$85,597 $54,596 $139,547 $ 137,887 $225,144 $192,483

Total revenues remained almost identical as the prior year with increased property tax and fee service
revenues roughly equal to declines in intergovernmental resources, investment income, operating
revenues and grant revenues. The largest outflow of resources for the City is represented in its public
safety function; this represents costs related to providing police and fire services as well as various
ancillary services for the protection of the City's residents and businesses. The increase in culture and
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recreation expenses during 2008 related to FEMA grants and rebuilding of the beach pier that was
damaged by hurricanes in 2005.

Business-Type Activities:

Revenues increased $3.5 million from fiscal year 2007 to fiscal year 2008. Charges for services
increased $4.8 million reflecting rate adjustments primarily in the electric, water and sewer utilities.
Capital contributions decreased $600,000 reflecting a further reduction in development activity. Total
expenses increased $10.6 million due to major electrical system repairs as well as water system repairs.
Reduced refuse costs are largely attributable to the City's promotion of recycling resulting in lower
disposal fees.

Financial Analysis of the Government's Major Funds

Governmental Funds

General Fund - The General Fund recognized $35 million of revenue during the year, offset by $37.9
million of expenditures. Property taxes declined to $15.7 million from $16.4 million in the prior year
and continues to represent the largest source of revenue. The City reduced its millage rate to 7.2959
mills for fiscal year 2008 which more than offset the small increase in property values and resulted in a
$700,000 annual decrease in .local property tax revenue. Public safety expenditures increased by $2
million to $25.7 million representing the largest portion (67.8%) of expenditures. Public safety
expenditures continue to be the largest outflow of resources for the City. Given the current environment
and the City's commitment to maintaining and improving the safety of residents, it is expected that this
trend will continue and expand in the coming years. The increase in public safety expenditures of $2
million over last year results from increased wages in collective bargaining agreements, higher retirement
contributions, increased overtime and labor relations costs. Capital outlay expenditures of $3.3 million
remained at the same levels as last year. The change in fund balance reflects a decrease of approximately
$921,000.

Proprietary Funds

The City implemented rate adjustments to electric, water and sewer operations during the fiscal year.
These adjustments resulted in total revenue increases in electric operations of $4.8 million. Continuing
drought conditions prompting water conservation measures resulted in a small increase to annual water
revenues of $600,000. Local sewer revenues remained level with last year while regional sewer revenues
declined by $700,000. Total operating expenses increased by $8.1 million largely due to higher electric
costs of $9.1 million.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City's budgeted revenues decreased $4.3 million from the original to the final budget. The main
component of this change was the transfer of the federal grants to a newly created fund to monitor City
grants.

The City's budgeted expenditures decreased from $45.8 million to $40.1 million from the original to the
final budget. The main component of the change was a decrease to capital outlay due to several large
projects being deferred until future years.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

As of September 30, 2008, the City had $171 million invested in a variety of capital assets which
represents a net increase (additions, deductions and depreciation) of $25 million from the prior year.
This increase is attributable to the inclusion of the City's governmental activities infrastructure assets
which created a net increase of $29 million. Also, construction-in-progress increased mostly due to the
continuing costs of the City's beach pier rebuild which reopened in May 2009. Additional infonnation
on the City's capital assets can be found in note 7 of this report.

TableA-3
Capital Assets (In Millions)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Land $ 5.0 $ 4.9 $ 1.6 $ 1.6 $ 6.6 $ 6.5
Land held for future use 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4
Construction in progress 3.9 1.4 19.4 20.9 23.3 22.3
Infrastructure 65.4 20.6 65.4 20.6
Land improvements 3.5 3.2 3.5 3.2
Buildings and structures 10.6 10.5 17.3 15.6 27.9 26.1
Recreational facilities 1.9 1.4 1.9 1.4
Plant and equipment 18.8 12.3 197.8 194.1 216.6 206.4

Total capital assets 105.6 51.1 240.0 . 235.8 345.6 286.9
Accumulated depreciation 44.1 18.3 130.9 122.7 175.0 141.0

Net capital assets $ 61.5 $ 32.8 $109.1 $113.1 $170.6 $145.9

Debt Administration

As of September 30, 2008, the City had total debt outstanding of $82.3 million. Of this amount, $1.2
million comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government and $70.6 million is secured
by specified enterprise fund revenue sources.

TableA-4
Long-Term Liabilities (In Millions)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

General obligation bonds $ 1.2 $ 1.5 $ $ $ 1.2 $ 1.5
Revenue bonds 66.0 66.0 66.0 66.0
Notes payable 6.6 7.3 6.8 7.3 13.4 14.6
Capital leases 0.4 0.5 1.3 1.6 1.7 2.1

$ 8.2 $ 9.3 $ 74.1 $ 74.9 $ 82.3 $ 84.2
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The City's total debt decreased by $1.9 million due to the net effect of scheduled principal payments.
Additional information on the City's long term debt can be found in note 9 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

The State of Florida, by constitution, does not have a state personal income tax and therefore the State
operates primarily using sales, gasoline and corporate income taxes. Local governments (cities, counties
and school boards) primarily rely on property taxes supplemented by a limited array of other permitted
taxes (sales, gasoline, and utilities) and fees (franchise, occupational license) for their governmental
activities. During the past year, the State legislature placed new restrictions on local governments'
ability to raise additional funds through property taxes. For the business-type and certain governmental
activities (construction services and recreational programs), the user pays a related fee or charge
associated with the service.

Local, national and international economic factors influence the City's revenues in a variety of ways.
Economic growth may be measured by a variety of indicators such as employment growth,
unemployment, new construction and assessed values, diversification of the propelty tax base, and
enterprise fund revenue and net asset growth, Generally, the City's economic activity is focused mainly
on redevelopment while maintaining the City's seaside ambiance. In order to maintain the City's
financial condition in the face of rising operating and personnel costs, the number of employee staff
positions is being reduced in the coming year.

Funding in the amount of $5 million has been pledged by Palm Beach County for improvements to the
municipal beach complex however this project was involved in court challenges by local groups that is
awaiting a legal resolution at September 30, 2008.

The Park of Commerce (POC) annexation program was initiated by an agreement between the City and
Palm Beach County executed in November of 1996. Its' purpose is consistent with objectives of both the
City and the County: to improve the infrastructure, clean up derelict properties and broaden the City's tax
base. The POC area will require design, funding and installation substantial infrastructure improvements
to promote its development and use. Since 2000, the City of Lake Worth has annexed approximately 122
acres of industrial and multifamily land.

In November of 2004, the City hired the EDSA consultant team to prepare an Evaluation and Appraisal
Report (EAR), an update and revision to the existing Zoning Code and/or Land Development Regulations
(LDR) and amend the Comprehensive Plan. Local governments must prepare an Evaluation and
Appraisal Report (EAR) once every seven years analyzing the progress they have made in implementing
the comprehensive plan. In order to implement both the EAR and the revised LDR it will be necessary to
amend the existing Comprehensive Plan. It is anticipated that the amendments will occur in two phases
to be completed in 2009.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview ofthe City's finances for all those with an
interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional information should be addressed to the Finance Department, 7 North Dixie
Highway, Lake Worth, FL 33460.
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FunctionsJProJroU1lS
Priml\IY government

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Community redevelopment
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Electric
Water
Local sewer
Regional sewer
Golf course
Stormwater
Refuse collection and disposal

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF ACfIVlTIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEP1EMBER 30,2008

Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Assets

Program Revenues Priml\IY Government

Charges Operating Capital Business-
for Grants and Grants and Governmental type

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

$ 3,595,041 $ 2,337,022 $ 90,543 $ - $ (1,167,476) $ $ (1,167,476)
24,218,855 1,536,383 1,287,153 97,256 (21,298,063) (21,298,063)

1,246,126 573,727 14,039 5,427 (652,933) - (652,933)
2,062,494 367,892 - - (1,694,602) (1,694,602)
6,376,490 150,229 202,401 2,241,404 (3,782,456) (3,782,456)
1,661,848 487,013 - 60,500 (1,114,335) (1,114,335)

353,096 - - (353,096) (353,096)

39,513,950 5,452,266 1,594,136 2,404,587 (30,062,961) (30,062,961)

57,490,812 57,474,801 195,541 - 179,530 179,530
9,619,267 9,879,269 184,667 - 444,669 444,66?
5,262,561 5,277,244 - 183,099 - 197,782 197,782
5,184,429 3,481,035 . 845,469 (857,925) (857,925)
2,023,117 1,921,702 . 12,616. - (88,799) (88,799)
1,307,365 1,651,158 - - - 343,793 343,793
3,810,654 4,678,227 - - 867,573 867,573

84,698,205 84,363,436 - 1,421,392 - 1,086,623 1,086,623

$ 124,212,155 $ 89,815,702 $ 1,594,136 $ 3,825,979 QO,062,961) 1,086,623 (28,976,338)

General revenues;
Taxes:

Property taxes 17,339,044 - 17,339,044
Franchise fees baqed on gross receipts 401,349 - 401,349
Utilities service taxes 5,381,664 - 5,381,664

Gas taxes 864;888 864,888
Sales and use taxes 2,587,555 - 2,587,555

Intergovernmental - unrestricted 1,287,185 - 1,287,185
Investment earnings - unrestricted 1,113,149 2,436,509 3,549,658

Miscellaneous 216,465 370,328 586,793
Transfers 2,849,991 (2,849,991)

Total general revenues and transfers 32,041,290 (43,154) 31,998,136

Change in net assets 1,978,329 1,043,469 3,021,798

Net assets, beginning, as reported 54,596,451 137,886,827 192,483,278

Prior period adjustment 29,022,643 616,678 29,639,321

Net assets, beginning, as restated 83,619,094 138,503,505 222,122,599

Net assets, ending $ 85,597,423 $ 139,546,974 $ 225,144,397

See notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

BALAJ."\ICE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventories
Land held for resale
Prepaid items
Mvances to other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts and contracts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Advances from other funds
Unearned revenues
Deferred revenues

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances
Inventories
Land held for resale
Prepaid items
Advances
Debt service
Capital projects

Unreserved, designated for:
Special projects
Emergencies
Subsequent year's expenditures - General fund
Subsequent year's expenditures - Special revenue funds

Unreserved, undesignated, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Capital projects fund

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds

$ 375,677 $ 8,882,060 $ 9,257,737
11,331,638 6,547,692 17,879,330
2,395,387 294,238 2,689,625

76,165 37,251 113,416
4,001,771 343,321 4,345,092
1,684,404 1,684,404

174,392 174,392
395,175 395,175

23,025 3,700 26,725
549,259 335,063 884,322

$ 20,611,718 $ 16,838,500 ~ 37,450,218

$ 1,640,318 $ 172,261 $ 1,812,579
1,326,316 1,326,316
1,015,997 199,996 1,215,993

233,788 233,788
396,566 396,566
98,003 98,003

4,477,200 606,045 5,083,245

1,740,878 298,457 2,039,335
174,392 174,392

395,175 395,175
23,025 3,700 26,725

549,259 335,063 884,322
295,341 295,341

4,045,257 4,045,257

2,225,713 2,225,713
5,193,918 5,193,918
2,183,092 2,183,092

94,567 94,567

4,044,241 4,044,241
8,316,059 8,316,059
2,448,836 2,448,836

16,134,518 16,232,455 32,366,973

$20,611,718 $ 16,838,500 $ 37,450,~)8

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET ­
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Total fund balances - governmental funds (Page 13)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement ofnet assets are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the governmental funds

Unamortized bond issuance costs are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Net pension obligation resulting from underfunding of the pension plans

Long-term liabilities, including bonds and notes payable, are not due and
payable in the cu..rrent period and, therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds.

$32,366,973

61,511,782

98,003

29,445

(1,612)

Accrued interest payable
Bonds payable
Note payable
Capital leases payable
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefits
Arbitrage rebate payable

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities such as insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the
insurance internal service fund is included in governmental activities in the
statement ofnet assets.

Internal service fund net assets
Less due to business-type activities for "Look-Back" allocation

Total net assets - governmental activities (page 11)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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$ (48,153)
(1,170,000)
(6,608,023)

(411,684)
(1,368,969)

(159,077)
(137,555)

$2,362,276
(865,983)

(9,903,461)

1,496,293

$85,597,423



CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:

Property taxes $15,730,702 $ - $ 15,730,702
Utility and other taxes 6,282,858 6,282)858
Licenses and permits 2,023,268 2,023,268
Fines and forfeitures 830,403 830,403
Charges for services 1,300,479 454,053 1,754,532
Intergovernmental 7,248,216 2,215,020 9,463,236
Investment income 519,218 513,013 1,032,231
Rents and royalties 248,659 248,659
Miscellaneous 1,058,646 25,569 1,084,215

Total revenues 35,242,449 3,207,655 38,450,104

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 2,783,084 232,575 3,015,659
Public safety 25,696,523 35,573 25,732,096
Physical environment 372,472 73,993 446,465
Transportation 1,949,482 1,949,482
Culture and recreation 3,767,047 1,223 3,768,270
Community redevelopment 1,416,380 1,416,380

Capital outlay 3,259,664 1,390,402 4,650,066
Debt service:

Principal 93,700 1,057,710 1,151,410
Interest and fiscal charges 19,154 340,973 360,127

Total expenditures 37,941,126 4,548,829 42,489,955

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (2,698,677) (1,341,174) (4,039,851)

Other fmancing sources (uses):
Transfers in 6,425,934 4,649,257 11,075,191
Transfers out (4,648,141) (3,187,059) (7,835,200)

Total other financing sources(uses) 1,777,793 1,462,198 3,239,991

Net change in fund balances (920,884) 121,024 (799,860)

Fund balances, beginning 17,055,402 16,111,431 33,166,833

Fund balances, ending $16,134,518 $ 16,232,455 $ 32,366,973

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

RECONCll..IATION OF THE STATE:MENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES· GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEl\;1ENT OF ACTIVlTIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Page 15)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense.

Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

The net effect oithe various miscellaneous transactions Involving capital assets (Le.
sales, trade ins and donations) is to decrease net assets

Some revenues reported in the statement of activities are not reported in the
governmental funds because they have no effect on current financial resources

Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but reduces the
long-term liability in the statement of net assets. Also, governmental funds report the
effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities.

Principal paid on bonds
Principal paid on note
Principal paid on capital lease
Amortization of issuance costs

Expenses in the statement of activities that do not require the use of current [mandal
resources are not reported in the governmental funds.

Net pension obligation
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefits
Arbitrage rebate

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities,
such as insurance, to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of insurance internal
service fund is reported with governmental activities.

Internal service fund change in net assets
"Look-Back" allocation of net revenues to business-type activities

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Page 12)

See notes to basic [mancial statements.
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$4,420,703
(4,662,315)

$ 350,000
707,710
93,700
(3,333)

$ (26,859)
7,031

1,901,425
(159,077)
(137,555)

$ 704,092
(437,796)

$ (799,860)

(241,612)

(77,540)

98,003

1,148,077

1,584,965

266,296

$1,978,329



CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

STATE.MENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTE~ER30,2008

Nonmajor Business-
Major Funds Funds type

Other Activities- Internal
Local Regional Enterprise Enterprise Service

Electric Water Sewer Sewer Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,150,605 $ 10,028,696 $1,015,496 $ 1,701,891 $ 119,814 $ 16,016,502 $ 803,466
Investments 8,5411,820 8,829,271 4,606,441 780,205 3,923,797 26,688,534 53,017
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents - - - 40,808 - 40,808
Accounts receivable, net 9,965,567 1,450,005 718,398 897,492 875,658 13,907,120
Accrued interest receivable 91,875 95,061 31,218 5,287 32,975 256,416 359
Due from other funds 453,471 59,832 42,617 - 1,171,489 1,727,409 1,402,378
Due from other governments 77,003 80,537 - 12,932 - 170,472
Inventories 5,187,756 152,526 - - 34,743 5,375,025
Prepaid items 118,652 3,295 - 5,956 127,903

Total current assets 27,593,749 20,699,223 6,414,170 3,438,615 ~164,432 64,310,189 2,259,220

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 500,901 82,655 - - - 583,556
Investments 19,536,649 18,313,546 232,032 197,848 38,280,075
Deposits 1,316,174 - - - - 1,316,174

Capital assets:
Land 268,392 71,120 37,259 1,193,360 1,570,131
Land held for future use 68,364 - 376,309 . - 444,673
Construction-in-progress 6,093,241 13,309,925 5,970 11,200 - 19,420,336
Land improvements - - - - 3,474,941 3,474,941
Buildings and structures - 1,540,894 14,058,754 - 1,698,336 17,297,984
Plant and equipment 122,180,898 31,671,294 - 38,422,984 5,422,446 197,697,622 80,594
Accumulated depreciation (79,881,441) (14,164,160) (7,392,892) (24,296,614) (5,134,296) (130,869,403) (63,116)

Advances to other funds - - - - 233,788 233,788 335,063
Investment in joint venture - - - 20,066,289 - 20,066,289
Unamortized debt issuance costs 95,811 95,811 111,070 - - 302,692

Total noncurrent assets 70,178,989 50,921,085 7,428,502 34,203,859 7,086,423 169,818,858 352,541

Total assets 97,772,738 71,620,308 13,842,672 37,642,474 13,250,855 234,129,047 2,611,761

(Continued)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

(Continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Nonmajor Business-
Major Funds Funds type

Other Activitie.~- Internal
Local Regional Enterprise Enterprise Service

Electric Water Sewer Sewer Funds Funds Funds
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable $ 4,404,931 $ 76,176 $ 5,822 $ 22,379 $ 79,021 $ 4,588,329 $ 56,010
Accrued liabilities 2,500,498 1,940,932 24,086 · 64,759 4,530,275 9,993
Due to other funds 2,078,858 1,340,627 497,340 23,139 2,168,922 6,108,886 150,000
Current portion ofcompensated absences 334,130 101,258 24,921 - 116,092 576,401 16,760
Current portion ofcapital leases - - - 296,308 296,308
Current portion ofiandfill postclosure care costs - - - 30,000 30,000
Current portion ofrevenue bonds payable 675,000 675,000 - - - 1,350,000
Current portion ofnotes payable - 255,000 265,707 - 520,707

Total current liabilities 9,993,417 4,133,993 807,169 311.2iS 2,755,102 _}.!l,QOO,906 232,763

Payable from restricted assets:
Current

Accounts and contracts payable 170,520 - - 170,520
Noncurrent:

Deposits payable 3,957,136 605,991 - . 4,563,127

Total payable from restricted assets 4,127,656 605,991 - 4,733,647...•_---
Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 47,803 65,341 238 137,371 250,753 16,722
Other post-employment benefits 89,481 29,827 9,942 44,740 173,990
Capital lease payable - - - 1,003,534 1,003,534
Advances from other funds - - 1,219,385 1,219,385
Landfill postclosure care costs - - 60,000 60,000
Notes payable - 4,335,000 1,954,550 - 6,289,550
Revenue bonds payable 31,854,381 31,861,910 - · - 63,716,291

Total noncurrent liabilities 31,991,665 31,957,078 4,345,180 1,954,550 2,465,030 72,713,503 16,722

Total liabilities 46,112,738 36,697,062 5,152,349 2,265,775 5,220,132 95,448,056 249,485

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 30,880,968 16,064,306 2,495,400 14,137,570 6,289,818 69,868,062 17,478
Restricted for:

Renewal and replacement 250,000 250,000 - · 500,000
Landfill postclosure care costs - · 197,848 197,848

Unrestricted 20,529,032 18,608,940 6,194,923 21,239,129 1,543,057 68,115,081 2,344,798

Total net assets $ 51,660,000 $ 34,923,246 $8,690,323 $35,376,699 $8,030,723 138,680,991 $2,362,276

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal
service fund activities related to business-type activities 865,983

See notes to basic financial statements. $139,546,974
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Nonrnajor Business-
MajorFunds Funds type

Other Activities- Internal
Local Regional Enterprise Enterprise Service

Electric Water Sewer Sewer Funds Funds Funds
Operating revenues:

Charges for services $56,268,104 $ 9,879,269 $5,277,244 $ 3,481,035 $8,251,087 $ 83,156,739 $ 6,177,810
Late fees and service charges 1,206,697 - - - - 1,206,697

Total operating revenues 57,474,80t 9,879,269 5,277,244 ---l>~_~!,035 8,251,087 84,363,436 6,177,810

Operating expenses:
Cost ofservices 46,054,886 4,706,290 4,085,150 3,301,276 6,178,268 64,325,870
General and administrative 3,565,690 959,445 532,520 676,063 447,064 6,180,782 5,044,473
Depreciation 4,886,024 1,083,433 520,225 1,159,212 607,748 8;256,642 2,497

Total operating expenses 54,506,600 6,749,168 5,137,895 5,136,551 7,233,080 78,763,294 5,046,970

Operating income (loss) 2,968,201 3,130,101 139,349 (1,655,516) 1,018,007 5,600,142 1,130,840

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 839,677 1,133,703 234,415 88,672 140,042 2,436,509 13,263
Interest expense

·1
(1,724,919) (1,381,749) (184,018) (60,185) (87,539) (3,438,410)

Swap termination fee i (1,532,613) (1,532,613) - - - (3,065,226)
Intergovernmental revenue

;
195,541 11,655 - 12,6t6 219,812

Other I 332,182 1,617 10,517 26,012 370,328 80,918
i

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1,890,132) (1,767,387) 60,914 28,487 91,131 0,476,987) 94,181
I

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 1,078,069 1,362,714 200,263 (1,627,029) 1,109,138 _ 2,123,155 1,225,021
,

Capital contributions - 173,012 183,099 845,469 1,201,580
Transfers in - - - - 3,060,102 3,060,102 19,071
Transfers out (3,848,030) (1,103,183) - - (827,951) (5,779,164) (540,000)

Change in net assets (2,769,961) 432,543 383,362 (781,560) 3,341,289 605,673 704,092

Net assets, beginning, as reported 54,429,961 33,874,025 8,306,961 36,158,259 4,689,434 1,658,184

Prior period adjustment - 616,678

Net assets, beginning, as restated 54,429,961 34,490,103 8,306,961 36,158,259 4,689,434 1,658,184

Net assets, ending $51,660,0Q,Q, $34,923,24~ $8,690,323 $35,376,699 ~~,.930,723 $ 2,362,276

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service
fund activities related to business-type activities 437,796

Change in net assets ofbusiness-type activities
See notes to basic financial statements.

$ 1,043,469
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Nonmajor Business-
Major FWllls Funds type

Other Activities- Internal
Local Regional Enterprise Enterprise Service

Electric Water Sewer Sewer Funds Funds Funds
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers $55,538,411 $10,363,350 $5,165,276 $3,504,941 $8,288,525 $82,860,503 $ 6,177,810
Payments to suppliers (38,794,839) (1,055,581) (3,038,631) (3,272,340) (3,765,043) (49,926,434) (3,148,610)
Payments to employees (5,677,838) (2,310,954) (865,254) (281,129) (2,427,978) (J 1,563,153) (346,525)
Payments for interfund services used (2,834,475) (1,230,625) (861,725) (603,300) (447,064) (5,977,189)
Other cash received 332,182 1,617 10,517 26,012 370,328 80,918

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 8,563,441 5,767,807 .410,183_ (6~,828) 1,674,452 15,764,055 2,763,593

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Due from other funds 466,279 (23,287) (7,536) (237,363) 198,093 (1,185,346)
Due to other funds 376,94J (454,004) 7,904 2,205 309,061 242,107 (611,200)
Transfer from oU,er funds 3,060,102 3,060,102 19,071
Transfcr to other funds (3,848,030) (1,103,i83) (827,951) (5,779,164) (540,000)

Net cash provided by (used in) non-capital financing activities (3,004,810) (1,580,474) 368 2,205 2,303,849 (2,278,862) (2,317,475)

Cash flows from capital and related fmancing activities:
Acquisition and construction ofcapital assets, net (719,337) (2,OI9,b'24) (732,533) (82,595) (283,841) (3,837,930) (19,975)
Due from other funds (6,427) (34,030) (40,457)

Due to oUler fWlds 196,781 1,155,372 395,228 11,200 46,000 1,804,581 150,000
Payments made on advances from other funds (104,809) (104,809)
PaYlllents received 011 advances to oU,er funds 28,443 28,443 22,851

Swap termination fee (1,532,613) (1,532,613) (3,065,226)

Contributed capital 173,012 183,099 845,469 1,201,580
Payment of bond inssuanee cOBls (97,850) (97,850) (195,700)
Proceeds from refunding debt 33,000,000 33,000,000 66,000,000

Payment to refunding bond agent (33,000,000) (33,000,000) - (66,000,000)

Principal paid on capital debt (187,500) (187,500) (255,000) (259,027) (284,929) (1,173,956)

Imerest paid on advances (31,252) (31,252)
Interest paid on capital deht (1,118,568) (775,515) (187,018) (60,185) (56,287) (2,197,573)

Grant proceeds 118,538 11,655 12,616 142,809

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (3,346,976) (3,273,063) (630,254) 454,862 (674,059) (7,469,490) 152,876

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from saleslmaturities ofinvesonents 15,976,896 28,971,043 101,473 45,049,412

Purchases ofinvesonents (22,193,358) (24,542,474) (186,597) (30,687) (3,397,044) (50,350,160) (2,085)

Investment in joiut venture (78,445) (78,445)

rnterest and dividends received 761,377 1,054,710 230,288 87,973 110,947 2,245,295 13,216

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (5,455,085) 5,483,279 43,691 (21,159) (3,184,624) (3,133,898) 11,131

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (3,243,430) 6,397,549 (176,012) (215,920) 119,618 2,881,805 610,125

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 6,894,936 3,713,802 1,191,508 1,958,619 196 13,759,061 193,341

Cash and cash equivalents, ending $ 3,651,506 $10,111,351 $I,OJ5,496 $1,742,699 $ 119,814 $16,640,866 $ 803,466

Current assets:
Unrestricted assets $ 3,150,605 $10,028,696 $1,015,496 $1,701,891 $ 119,814 $16,016,502 $ 803,466

Restricted assets 40,808 40,808

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets 500,901 82,655 ._--------- 583,556

$ 3,651,506 ~1 $1,015,496 $1,742,699 $ 119,814 $16,640,866 $ 803,466

See notes to basic finaltcia1 statements.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

(Continued)

September 30, 2008

$2,968,201 $ 3,130,101 $ 139,349 $ (1,655,516) $1,018,007 ~ 5,600,142 $ 1,130,840

Nonmajor Business-
Major Funds Funds type

Other Activities- Internal
Local Regional Enterprise Enterprise Service

Electric Water Sewer Sewer Funds Funds Funds

5,595,240 2,637,706 270,834 1,003,688

$ 8,563,441 $ 5,767,807 $ 410,183 $ (651,828)

6,168 ",,$===
6.835 $ 416
~

(923)

2,497
80,918

(11,752)
991

~ ,,;.,$===
~ $ 79

8,256,642
370,328

(1,824,149)
34,383

203,440 1,561,022
169,355

5,379
2,432,176

286,833
85,536

173,990
(30,000) _

10,163,913 1,632,753

$ 15,764,055 $2,763,593

37,438

(5,956)
1,465

(40,806)
(9,404)

607,748
26,012

25,208

44,740
(30,000)

656,445

$1,674,452

$ - $
=

$ ~ $

23,906

(179,430)

1,159,212

(6,970)
9,942

520,225
10,517

(111,968)

(130,038)
(20,874)

28,734 !
~ $

28,850 !
12,874 $

4,886,024 1,083,433
332,182 1,617

(2,094,108) 320,583
34,383

110,783 98,613
162,955 4,935
672,148 (316,495)

1,210,665 1,251,789
157,718 129,115

67,392 (94)
89,481 29,827

$
=
$

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation
Other non-operating income
Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
Inventories
Accounts and contracts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits payable
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefits
Landfill postclosurc care costs

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Supplemental disclosure of noncash capital and
related financing and investing activities:

Amortization of debt issuance costs and discount

Increase in fair market value of investments

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

STATE:tvffiNT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

fuvestments at fair value:
U.S. Government and agency funds
Money market funds
Corporate bonds
Common stocks
Mutual funds

Total investments at fair value

Accounts receivable
Accrued interest, dividends and contributions receivable
Due from br.oker
Due from State of Florida
Prepaid items

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable
Deposits payable

Total liabilities

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits

See notes to basic fmancial statements.
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Pension
Trust Agency
Funds Fund

$ 4,504,602 $173,564

13,402,735
1,662,444

30,989,808
43,442,452
15,107,821

104,605,260

5,038
737,530
538,791

395
12,196

110,398,379 $ 178,997
- . -

604,664 $ 200
178,792

604,664 $ 178,997

$ 109,793,715



CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Employer
Plan members

Total contributions

Investment income:
Interest and dividends
Net change in fair value of investments

Less investment expenses

Net investment income

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits
Contribution refunds
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS
Net assets, beginnning of year

Net assets, end ofyear

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Pension
Trust
Funds

$ 6,055,046
3,735,127

9,790,173

4,864,123
(21,178,213)

(16,314,090)
678,891

(16,992,981)

(7,202,808)

11,710,610
253,576
317,675

12,281,861

(19,484,669)

129,278,384

$ 109,793,715
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· CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Lake Worth, Florida (the City),. was incorporated as a municipality in 1913 under
Chapter 6713, Laws of Florida. It is located in Palm Beach County and is bordered by the City
of West Palm Beach to the north, the Intracoastal Waterway and Atlantic Ocean to the east, the
City of Lantana to the south and various municipalities and unincorporated county areas to the
west. The City operates under a Mayor-Commission fonn of government and provides a full
range of municipal services, including police and fire protection, public works activities, park
and recreation activities, and general administrative services. The City also operates seven
enterprise activities: electric, water, local sewer, regional sewer, golf course, stonnwater. and
refuse collection and disposal.

The basic financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and fmancial reporting principles. The following is a
summary of the City's more significant policies:

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The fmancial statements were prepared in accordance with governmental accounting
standards, which establishes standards for defming and reporting on the reporting entity. The
definition of the financial reporting entity is based on the concept that elected officials are
accountable to their constituents for their actions. One of the objectives of financial reporting
is to provide users of financial statements with a basis for assessing the accountability of the
elected officials. The City's reporting entity consists of the primary government,
organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the City's fmancial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The primary government is considered financially accountable if it
appoints a voting majority of an organization's governing body and imposes its will on that
organization. The primary government may also be financially accountable if an organization
is fiscally dependent on the primary government regardless of the authority of the
organization's governing board. Legally, separate organizations outside of the primary
government that meet the criteria for fmancial accountability are considered component units.

For financial reporting purposes, the reporting entity is limited to the operations of the City's
primary government, including all funds and departments, and the City of Lake Worth
Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) a blended component unit.

Blended Component Unit

The CRA was established under the authority of Florida Statute Chapter 163, Part ill in
1993 to promote and guide the physical and economic redevelopment of targeted areas
within the City. The CRA is a legally separate entity governed by a board comprised of
seven citizens of the City appointed by the City Commission. Because of the CRA's
separate legal status, the ability of the City to impose its will on the CRA through budget
approval, and the composition of its governing board, the CRA is reported as a blended
component unit as a special revenue fund.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (Le.) the statement of net assets and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes
and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate fmancial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund fmancial statements. All remaining nomnajor
governmental funds and nonmajor enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nomnajor
funds.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide fmancial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis ofaccounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary
fund fmancial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.

Governmental fund fmancial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures,
as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is
due.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

Property taxes, charges for services, franchise fees and other taxes, and interest associated
with the current fiscal period are a1-1 considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the currerit fiscal period. Revenues for expenditure driven grants
are recognized when the qualifying expenditures are incurred. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund _. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. All general
tax revenue and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to
another fund are accounted for in this fund. The general operating expenditures, fixed
charges and capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from
the General Fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to a commercial enterprise, where the intent of the governing body is that
the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where the governing body has
decided that periodic determination of the revenue earned, expenses incurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes. The City accounts for the operations of providing
electric, water and local and regional sewer services in its enterprise funds.

Electric - The Electric Fund is used to account for the provision of electric service to
residents of the service area. All activities to provide such service are accounted for in
this fund, including administration, generation, transmission, distribution and customer
service.

Water - The Water Fund is used to account for the provision of water service to residents
of the service area. All activities to provide such service are accounted for in this fund,
including administration, generation, transmission, distribution and customer service.

Local Sewer - The Local Sewer Fund is used to account for the provision of sewer
service to customers of the local service areas. All activities to provide such service are
accounted for in this fund, including administration, collection, pumping, treatment,
disposal and customer service.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

Regional Sewer - The Regional Sewer Fund is used to account for the provision of sewer
service to customers of the regional service areas. All activities to provide such service
are accounted for in this fund, including administration, collection, pumping, treatment,
disposal and customer service.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds - The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of
insurance services and infonnation technology services provided to other funds of the City
on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds:

The pension trust funds account for the activities of the City's Employees' Retirement
System Pension Fund; Police Officers' Relief and Retirement Pension Plan, and the
Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund Plan that accumulate resources for pension benefits.

The agency fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or have a
measurement focus. The Agency fund is used to account for assets the City holds for as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds.

Private-sector standards of accounting and fmancial reporting issued prior to December I,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund fmancial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The City has the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this
same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government­
wide fmancial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and
other charges between the City's various utility functions and various other functions of the
City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the City's Enterprise and Internal Service Funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating revenues for the Enterprise Funds include water,
electric and sewer service fees as well as user fees related to the municipal golf course,
stonnwater utility system and solid waste removal. For the Internal Service Funds, operating
revenues include charges to other departments for insurance services and infonnation
technology costs and services. Operating expenses for the Enterprise and Internal Service
Funds include costs of services, administrative fees, insurance payments and depreciation.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are considered nonoperating items.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, time and demand deposits.
The City maintains a cash pool and an investment pool that are available for use by all
funds. Interest earned on pooled cash and pooled investments is allocated to each of the
funds based on the fund's average equity balance on a monthly basis. In addition,
investments are separately held by the three pension trost funds.

All investments, except the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (LOIP), are
reported at fair value. The LGIP is recorded at its value of the pool shares (2a-7 like pool),
which is fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents, for purposes of the statement of cash flows, include cash and
investments which are defined as short-tenn, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

2. Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lendinglborrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds"
(i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other fimds" (i.e., the
non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds
(i.e., amounts owed for goods/services rendered to a particular fund by another fund in the
reporting entity) are reported as "due to/from other funds" (current portion). Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide fmancial statements as "internal balances."
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

2. Interfund Receivables and Payables (Continued)

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund fmancial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in the applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

3. Receivables

Receivables include amounts due from other governments and others for services provided
by the City. Receivables are recorded and revenues are recognized as earned or as specific
program expenditures/expenses are incw-red. Allowances for uncollectible receivables are
based on historical trends and the periodic aging of receivables.

Utility (electric. water, local and regional sewer, stonnwater and refuse collection and
disposal) operating revenue is generally recognized on the basis of cycle billings rendered
monthly. The City recognizes revenue and a related receivable for the estimated unbilled
consumption as of September 30th of each year. .

4. Inventories

Inventories consist principally of materials and supplies held for consumption and are
recorded at cost using the first-in first-out method. In the governmental funds, the cost of
inventories is recorded as an expenditure at the time of purchase, while in the proprietary
funds, the cost of inventories is recorded as an expense when consumed. In the
governmental funds, reported inventories are offset by a fund balance reserve which
indicates that they do not constitute available spendable resources.

5. Prepaid Items

Prepaid items consist of certain costs which have been paid prior to the end of the fiscal
year, but represent items which are applicable to future accounting periods. Reported
amounts in governmental funds are equally offset by a reservation of fund balance, in the
fund fmancial statements, which indicates that these amounts do not constitute "available
spendable resources" even though they are a component of current assets.

6. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets in the enterprise funds consist of bond proceeds designated for
construction, other monies required to be restricted for debt service, maintenance and
improvements under the terms of various bonds, certificates and loans, and assets
restricted by customers' deposits. The County, acting as a Trustee, holds $5,000 in cash to
fund the County's renewal and replacement requirements for the regional sewage
treatment facility.
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NOTE 1. SUMIVJARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

7. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
utility lines, roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), regardless of their acquisition
date, are reported at cost or estimated historical cost in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Donated
capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Capital
assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and an
estimated useful life in excess of two years.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities
is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The total interest
expense incurred in both the Electric Fund and the Water Fund was $1,802,234 and
$1,802,119, respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2008. Of this amount,
$77,317 and $420,371 for the Electric Fund and Water Fund, respectively. was capitalized
as part of the cost of the Electric and Water Fund capital assets.

Depreciation is charged as an expense against operations using the straight-line method
over the following useful lives:

Water and sewer systems
Buildings and structures
Infrastructure
Land improvements
Recreation facilities
Equipment

8. Compensated Absences

5-50
10-40
4-20
4-50
30

3-15

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate, within certain limits, earned but
unused vacation time and sick leave, which will be paid to employees upon separation
from City service. All vacation and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the
government-wide and proprietary fund fmancial statements. A liability for those amounts
is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

9. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide fmancial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary
fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs,
are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line amortization
method. Bonds are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related
debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other fmancing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances
are reported as other fmancing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other fmancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

10. Fund EquitylNet Assets

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund
balance to indicate the portion of fund balance that is not appropriable for expenditures
or is legally segregated by outside parties for a specific purpose. Designations indicate
tentative managerial plans or intent to use fmancial resources in a future period.
Undesignated fund balance indicates the portion of fund balance which is available for
future use.

Net Assets

Net assets of the government-wide and proprietary funds are categorized as invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted or unrestricted. Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt, is that portion of net assets that relates to the City's capital assets
reduced by accumulated depreciation and by any outstanding debt incurred to acquire,
construct or improve those assets, excluding unexpended proceeds.

Restricted net assets is that portion of net assets that has been restricted for use by
external parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments) or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. Unrestricted net assets consist of all net assets that do not meet the
definition of either of the other two components.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

11. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from estimates.

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Excess ofExpenditures over Appropriations

The following expenditures exceeded appropriations by the amounts indicated:

General Fund:
Current:

General Government:
Finance
Building maintenance
Garage

Public Safety:
Police
Fire

Physical Environment:
Cemetery

Public Works:
Adminstration
Streets, sidewalks and drains
Transit system

Culture and Recreation:
Library
Pool and beach

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Community Redevelopment Agency Fund:
Debt Service:

Principal

$ 10,719
52,807
90,163

152,947
240,718

25,229

96,495
2,567
1,852

25,529
50,692

93,700
19,154

23,440
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NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

B. Fund Deficits

The Golf Course Fund- and Infonnation Technology Fund have deficit balances in
unrestricted net assets as of September 30,20080[$1,517,030 and $4,134, respectively. The
total net assets for both funds are positive; however the unrestricted category is negative due
to the portion of net assets designated as "invested in capital assets" exceeding the total net
assets. The Refuse Collection and Disposal Fund has an unrestricted deficit of $1 ,679,666 as
of September 30, 2008, and a total fund deficit of $469,320. In addition, the Law
Enforcement and Firefighter Education Fund and the Capital Improvements Capital Projects
Fund have unreserved undesignated deficits of $4,813 and $182,416, respectively.

C. Prior Period Adjustments

Governmental Activities

The net assets of the governmental activities as of October l, 2007 were restated to capitalize
infrastructure assets and record accumulated depreciation for those assets acquired prior to
October 1, 2002 in accordance with GASB statement No. 34. The restatement was as
follows:

Infrastructure assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Proprietary Funds - Water Fund

$50,222,815
(21,200,172)

$29,022,643

The net assets of the Water Fund and business-type activities as of October l, 2007 were
restated to properly reflect construction-in-progress, plant and equipment and accumulated
depreciation. The restatement was as follows:

Construction-in-progress:
Plant improvements
Capitalized interest

Plant and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, all
deposits are to be held- in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of
Florida to hold public funds. Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public
Deposits Act, the State Treasurer requires all Florida qualified public depositories to deposit
with the Treasurer or another banking institution eligible collateraL In the event of a failure
of a qualified public depository, the remaining public depositories would be responsible for
covering any resulting losses. All amounts reported as deposits, except those disclosed in the
custodial credit risk llote below, are insured or collateralized with securities held by the entity
or its agent in the entity's name.

Investments

As required by Florida Statutes, the City has adopted a written investment policy, which may,
from time to time, be amended by the City. Investments are made in accordance with
provisions of the Florida Statutes and the City's policies. The City is authorized to invest in
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, its agencies, repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S.
Treasury and U.S. Government Agency-Backed Obligations, money market mutual funds
comprised of U.S. Treasury and/or U.S. Government Agency-Backed obligations, short-term
bond mutual funds comprised of U.S. Treasury and/or U.S. Government Agency-Backed
obligations, U.S. Government or Agency backed mortgage securities and the State Board of
Administration Investment Pool (SBA).

The State Board of Administration administers the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust
Fund (LGlP) and the Fund B Surplus Funds Trust Fund. (Fund B), both of which are
governed by Chapter 19-7 of the Florida Administrative Code and Chapters 218 and 215 of the
Florida Statutes. These rules provide guidance and establish the policies and general
operating procedures for the administration of the LGlP and Fund B. The LGlP is not a
registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC); however, the Board has
adopted operating procedures consistent with the requirements for a 2a-7 fund, which pennits
money market funds to use amortized cost to maintain a constant net asset value (NAV) of $1
per share. The fair value of the position in the LGIP is equal to the value of the pool shares.
The Fund B is accounted for as a fluctuating NAV pool. As of September 30, 2008, the fair
value factor for Fund B was $ .798385 per share. The Fund B is not subject to participant
withdrawal requests. Distributions from Fund B, as determined by the SBA, are effected by
transferring eligible cash or securities to the LGlP, consistent with the pro rata allocation of
pool shareholders of record at the creation of Fund B. One hundred percent of such
distributions from Fund B are available as liquid balance within the LGlP. The investments in
the LGIP and Fund B are not insured by FDIC or any other governmental agency.

The investment policies of the Pension Trust Funds are determined by each Plan's Board of
Trustees. The investment objectives of the Plans are to preserve the purchasing power of
each Plan's assets and earn a reasonable rate of return over the long-term while minimizing
short-term volatility. To achieve these objectives, the Plans' seek to create a conservative,
well diversified and balanced portfolio of high quality equity, fixed income and money
market securities. Unless authorized by law or local ordinance, investments of the assets of
the Plan's are subject to the limitations of state statutes.
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

As of September 30, 2008, the City had the following investments:

Maturities Fair Value

City's Investments:
Money Market Funds N/A $ 12,881,826
Repurchase Agreements N/A 26,967,271
State Board of Administration:

LGIP 8.5 days 4,416,329
SBAFundB 9.36 years 202,972

U.S. Government Agencies:
Federal Home Loan Bank 3/30/2009 through 02/28/2013 31,048,468
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 12/1/2008 through 12/16/2010 280,180
Federal National Mortgage Association Pool 6/1/2012 734,794
Federal Farmers Credit Bank 06/30/2009 through 07/15/2011 6,366,540

Taxable Fixed mcome Funds N/A 2,576

$ 82,900,956

Pensilm Funds:
General and Police Pension Trust Funds:

U.S. Government Agencies:
Federal Home Loan Bank 2/18/2011 $ 292,570
Federal National Mortgage Association 3/15/2011 through 3/15/2016 847,707
Federal National Mortgage Association Pool 2/1/2016 through 7/1/2034 1,710,240
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Pool 2/1/2018 through 6/1/2021 711,786
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation CMO 4/15/2015 357,774

U.S. Treasury Bonds and Notes 5/15/2017 through 2/15/2037 2,904,075
Corporate Obligations 2/1/2009 through 9/15/2038 23,092,556
Mortgage-backed Securities N/A 5,385,291

$ 35,301,999

Firefighters Pension Trust Fund:

Investment Maturities

Fair Less More

Investment Type Value Than 1 1 - 5 6 -10 Than 10

Corporate bonds $2,511,961 $125,498 $ 742,884 $ 987,252 $ 656,327
U.S. Agencies 4,737,681 1,242,415 2,326,822 1,168,444
U.S. Treasuries 1,840,902 692,914 973,499 174,489

Total $9,090,544 $125,498 .$2,678,213 $4,287,573 $1,999,260

-35-



CITY OF LAKE WORm, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATE'MENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The City has an investment policy that limits the maturities on individual investments to no
more than five years. In addition, insured or fully collateralized certificates of deposits of
banks maturities shall be no greater than 3 years.

The investment policies of the Pension Trust Funds do not have a limit on investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

The City's investment policy does not address the requirement of ratings by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization (NRSRO), i.e. Standard and Poor's and Moody's
Investment Services. The LGIP is rated AAAm by Standard and Poors. The Fund B is not
rated by an NRSRO. The City's investments in money market funds, repurchase agreements
and taxable fixed income funds were not rated. Of the City's investment in U.S. Government
Agencies, $963,708 was not rated; however, the remaining was rated AAA by Standard and
Poor's.

The investment policies of the City's General and Police Pension Trust Funds require
corporate fixed income securities to have a rating of "A" or higher under Standard & Poor's
or Moody's ratings or be liquidated at the earliest beneficial opportunity. Additionally,
commercial paper must be rated A-lor higher by Standard and Poors or P-l or higher by
Moody's. The ratings for the investments for the general and police pension funds are as
follows:

General Police
Fair Fair

Rating Value Value

BBB $ 118,479 $ 46,898
BBB+ 114,171 35,130
AA- 1,792,685 575,750
A- 2,320,820 642,875
A 7,470,892 2,649,690
A+ 3,350,980 1,101,705
AA- 1,656,661 471,769
AAA 6,801,077 2,278,720

Not Rated 2,912,017 961,680

Total $ 26,537,782 $ 8,764,217
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Credit Risk (Continued)

The Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund limits investments in corporate bonds and commercial
paper to the top 3 ratings provided by a NRSRO. The Plan's corporate bonds were rated by
Moody's Investor Services as follows:

Aaa
Aal
Aa2
Aa3
Al
A2
A3
Baal
Not rated

Total

Concentration ofCredit Risk

Fair Value

$5,522,561
96,927

287,729
340,650
326,477
620,802
300,788

11,993
1,582,617

$9,090,544

The City's investment policy limits its investments in the State Board of Administration to
25% at anyone time. Investments in U.S. Government agencies and repurchase agreements
cannot exceed 40% and 25%, respectively, of all City investment balances at anyone time.
GASB Statement No. 40 requires disclosure when the percent is 5% or more in anyone
issuer. Investments guaranteed by the U.S. Government and mutual funds, external
investment pools and other pooled investments are exempt from this disclosure. The
investment in Federal Home Loan Bank is 37% and Federal Farmer's Credit Bank is 7.7%.
Given the high ratings of these investments, the additional concentration is not viewed to be
an additional risk by the City.

The General and Police Pension Trust Funds investment policy provides that no more than
10% of the equity or fixed income portfolio value may be invested in the shares of a single
corporate issuer. Additionally, investments in equity and fixed income securities issued by
foreign governments or corporations domiciled outside the U.S., and which are not
guaranteed by a corporation domiciled in the U.S., are limited to no more than 10% of total
plan assets. Investments in collateralized mortgage obligations are limited to 25% of the
market value of the total fixed income portfolio. No more than 15% of the equity portfolio
total value may be invested in the shares of companles that have been publicly traded for less
than one year. There is no limit on investments in fixed income securities issued directly by
the U.S. Government or any agency or instrumentality thereof. The General and Police
Pension Trust Funds do not hold investments in anyone issuer equal to 5% or more of total
plan assets.
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Concentration ofCredit Risk (Continued)

The Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund does not allow investments in a single issuer to exceed
5% ofplan net assets, other than those of the U.S. Government or its agencies. More than 5%
of the Fund plan net assets are invested in debt securities issued by the Federal National
Mortgage Association. These investments represented 18.41% ofPlan Net Assets.

Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits

For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's
deposits may not be returned to it. The City, as of September 30, 2008, had a bank
account for the Community Redevelopment Agency which was not covered by Florida
Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act. As of September 30,
2008, the bank balance in this account was $5,004,160. Of this amount, $100,000 was
insured by FDIC and $4,904,160 was uninsured and uncollateralized. As of October 3,
2008, the FDIC coverage was increased to $250,000.

Investments

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. All of the underlying securities of
the City's investments in repurchase agreements are held by the investment's counterparty,
not in the City's name.

Risks and Uncertainties

The City's Pension Plans have investments in a combination of stocks, bonds, government
securities and other investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various risks,
such as interest rate, market and credit risk. Due to the level of risk associated with certain
investment securities and the level ofuncertainty related to changes in the value of investment
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term would
materially affect balances and the amounts reported in the statement of plan net assets and the
statement of changes in plan net assets. The Plans, through their investment advisors,
monitors the Plan's investments and the risks associated therewith on a regular basis, which
the Plans believe minimizes these risks.
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NOTE 4. PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are billed and collected within the same fiscal period. Ad valorem taxes on
property values are assessed as of January 1st and are levied the following October. Taxes are
payable- on November 1st, with discounts allowed of 1% to 4% if paid prior to March 1st of the
following calendar year. All unpaid taxes on real and personal property become delinquent and
subject to lien on April 1st

• Real and personal property taxes are collected by Palm Beach
County (the County) and remitted to the City. Revenue is recognized at the time when monies
are received by the City. State law permits Florida cities to levy a maximum of $10 per $1,000
(10 mills) of assessed taxable value for general government services. The City levied taxes at a
rate of approximately 7.2959 mills, leaving a margin of 2.7081 mills under the maximum
possible assessment of 10 mills. There are no material delinquent taxes as of September 30,
2008.

NOTE 5. RECEIVABLES

Accounts, special assessments and other receivables, including restricted accounts receivable and
the related allowance for doubtful accounts as of September 30, 2008, are as follows:

Nonmajor Nonmajor
Governmental Local Regional Enterprise

General Funds Electric Water Sewer Sewer Funds Total

Customer accounts $ 465,156 $ - $ 10,212,380 $1,282,621 $664,384 1,128,244 1,036,208 $14,788,993
Utility and other taxes 587,187 35,672 219,311 842,170
Claims and assessments 21,729 146,956 195,797 75,640 440,122
Intergovernmental 1,432,757 145,137 43,443 47,906 69,522 378,530 2,117,295
Other receivables 5,000 308,237 68,715 68,063 26,577 476,592

Gross receivables 2,506,829 332,765 10,783,371 1,595,039 801,969 1,506,774 1,138,425 18,665,172
Less allowance for

doubtful accounts (1Il,442) (38,527) (817,804) .-!145,034) (83,571) (609,282) (262,767) (2,068,427)
$ .2,395,387 $ 294,238 $ 9,965,567 $1,450,005 $718,398 $ 897,492 $ 875,658 $16,596,745

NOTE 6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund activity balances for the City are summarized as follows as of and for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2008:

Due to/from Other Funds
Due from

General Non-Major Local Regional Non-Major Internal
~ EJm.c;l, Governmental Electric Water Sewer Sewer Enterprise Service TotiM

General fund $ - $ 107,746 $1,297,687 $1,305,877 $ 464,967 $20,387 $ 655,107 $150,000 $4,001,771
Non-major governmental 25,129 318,192 343,321
Electric 321,976 41,266 90,229 453,471
Water 38,041 21,791 59,832
Local sewer 42,617 42,617
Non-major enterprise 49,100 28,443 641,403 452,543 1,171,489
Internal service 564,263 750 114,639 34,750 32,373 2,752 652,851 1,402,378

$1,015,997 $ 199,996 $2,078,858 $1,340,627 $ 497,340 $23,139 $2,;168,922 $150,000 $7,474,879
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NOTE 6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS (Continued)

Due to/from Other Funds (Continued)

The balances in interfund payables resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1)
interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2)
transactions are recorded in the accounting system and (3) payments between funds are made.

Advances to/from Other Funds

Advances from
General Non-Major Non-Major Internal

Advances to Fund Governmental Entetprise Service Total

Non-major enterprise $ 549,259 $ 335,063 $ - $ 335,063 $1,219,385
Non-major governmental 233,788 233,788

Total $549,259 $ 335,063 $ 233,788 $335,063 $1,453,173

The balance of$I,219,385 represents interfund loans from the General Fund to the Refuse
Collection and Disposal Fund for equipment purchases and from the Capital Improvement
Fund and the Internal Service Fund to the Golf Course Fund for construction of the cart
barn. These amounts are not expected to be paid within one year.

The balance of $233,788 represents an interfund loan from the Stormwater Fund to the
Capital Improvement Fund for landfill closure costs incurred. This amount is not expected
to be paid within one year.

Interfund Transfers

Transfers Out
General Non-Major Local Non-Major Internal

Transfers In Fund Governmental Electric Water Sewer Enterprise Service Total

General fund $ - $ 106,770 $3,848,030 $1,103,183 $ - $ 827,951 $540,000 $ 6,425,934
Non-major governmental 4,629,070 20,187 4,649,257
Non-major enterprise funds 3,060,102 3,060,102
Internal Service 19,071 19,071

$4,648,141 $ 3,187,059 $3,848,030 $1,103,183 $ - $ 827,951 $540,000 $14,154,364

Transfers are used to (l) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to
collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts
restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as
debt service payments become due and (3) use restricted revenues collected in the general
fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations.

In addition, transfers from the electric, the water and the non-major enterprise funds to the
General Fund relate primarily to reimbursements for administrative charges.
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NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following summarizes capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008:

Beginning
Balance Ending

as Restated* Increases Decreases Transfers Balance
Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 4,909,923 $ 105,019 $ 52,300 $ - $ 4,962,642
Construction-in-progress 1,350,797 3,229,593 25,240 (681,796) 3,873,354

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 6,260,720 3,334,612 77,540 (681,796) 8,835,996

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 70,830,172 45,817 (5,476,461) 65,399,528
Buildings and structures 10,529,176 87,322 10,616,498
Recreational facilities 1,390,478 535,076 1,925,554
Equipment 12,312,841 417,876 98,649 6,158,257 18,790,325

Total capital assets, being depreciated 95,062,667 1,086,091 98,649 681,796 96,731,905

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure 27,123,363 2,946,735 (3,045,239) 27,024,859
Buildings and structures 3,541,441 331,905 3,873,346

Recreational facilities 589,667 87,381 677,048

Equipment 8,237,982 1,296,294 98,649 3,045,239 12,480,866

Total accumulated depreciation 39,492,453 4,662,315 98,649 44,056,119

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 55,570,214 (3,576,224) 681,796 52,675,786

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 61,830,934 $ (241,612) $ 77,540 $ - $ 61,511,782

Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 1,570,131 $ - $ . $ - $ 1,570,131

Land held for future use 444,673 444,673

Construction-in-progress 20,327,115 3,591,297 565,214 (3,932,862) 19,420,336

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 22,341,919 3,591,297 565,214 (3,932,862) 21,435,140

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 3,181,748 100,908 192,285 3,474,941
Buildings and structures 15,600,568 219,945 1,477,471 17,297,984

Plant and equipment 195,287,878 244,498 17,266 2,263,106 197,778,216

Total capital assets, being depreciated 214,070,194 565,351 17,266 3,932,862 218,551,141

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 1,213,066 123,536 1,336,602
Buildings and structures 8,287,456 652,124 8,939,580

Plant and equipment 113,190,124 7,483,479 17,266 120,656,337

Total accumulated depreciation 122,690,646 8,259,139 17,266 130,932,519

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 91,379,548 (7,693,788) 3,932,862 87,618,622

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 113,721,467 $ (4,102,491) $ 565,214 $ - $ 109,053,762

* Amounts restated for prior period adjustments (see Note 2)
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NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expense for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 was charged to
functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General govennnent
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Communty redevelopment

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Electric
Water
Local sewer
Regional sewer
Golf course
Stormwater
Refuse collection and disposal

Subtotal
Information technology fund*

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

$ 458,342
731,826
673,444

2,630,952
162,120

5,631

$ 4,662,315

$ 4,886,024
1,083,433

520,225
1,159,212

146,429
212,242
249,077

8,256,642
2,497

$ 8,259,139

* Depreciation on capital assets held by the information technology internal service fund are
charged to the various funds based on their usage of assets.

NOTE 8. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

In September 1992, the City entered into a joint interlocal agreement (Agreement) with Palm
Bach County (the County) and three municipalities (Riviera Beach, Lake Worth and the Town of
Palm Beach) (together with the City, the Entities) whereby prior separate agreements were
consolidated into a single unified agreement to establish rules and procedures for the operation
and management of the existing East Central Regional Wastewater Facility (ECR) in which each
participating Entity has an interest. ECR was created to receive, treat, and dispose of sewage
generated within each municipality and the County. The initial term of the Agreement is for
thirty years with a renewable term of thirty years. In the event ECR is sold or disposed of,
proceeds of the sale or disposition shall be prorated among other Entities, based on their reserve
capacity as of the date of disposition.
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NOTE 8. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

The Agreement provides for the establishment of a Governing Board (the Board), comprised of
one representative from each entity participating in the Agreement, to administer ECR. Under
the Agreement, the Board has the power to enter into contracts, employ personnel and enter into
debt in accordance with Section 163.01(7) of Florida Statutes. In accordance with the
Agreement, the City of West Palm Beach operates and manages ECR on behalf of the Board.

Annually, the Board establishes a schedule of wastewater flow charges to pass onto the Entities
so ECR is self-sustaining. The Board shall not be authorized to create or distribute a profit or
surplus to any Entity. In addition, the Board shall calculate an annual renewal and replacement
fund contribution for the sole purpose of funding each Entity's pro-rata share of extraordinary
expenses, renewal and improvements or replacement of capital assets or any other part thereof at
the facility.

The agreement may not be amended except upon the written agreement of the Entities holding a
cumulative capacity allocation of 100%.

Based on a "Participatory Agreement" signed by all participants in April 1993, ECR constructed
improvements amounting to approximately $22,000,000, which was financed by the State of
Florida, Department of Environmental Protection Revolving Loan Fund. Pledged revenue
consisting of all fees and payments received by ECR will be used to repay the debt.

The City's share of this debt as of September 30, 2008 was $2,220,257 and is reflected as a
liability in the Regional Sewer Fund.

Reserve Capacity Percentages:

September 30,2007
and Prior

Flow
Allocation

(MOD) Percentage

September 30, 2008
Flow

Allocation
(MOD) Percentage

City of Lake Worth
City ofRiviera Beach
City ofWest Palm Beach
Town ofPalm Beach
Palm Beach County

Total

12.5
8.0

17.0
5.0

12.5

55.0

22.727%
14.546%
30,909%

9.091%
22.727%--

100.000%

12.5
8.0

17.0
5.0

21.5

64.0

19.531%
12.500%
26.563%

7.813%
33.593%

100.000%

Complete financial statements for ECR may be obtained at the City of West Palm Beach Finance
Department, 200 Second Street, West Palm Beach, Florida 33402.
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of the changes in 10ng-teIm liabilities for the year ended September
30, 2008 for both governmental and business-type activities:

Governmental activities:
General ·obligation bonds
Not~ payable
Capital lease
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefits

Arbitrage rebate payable

Total governmental activities

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

$ 1,520,000 $ - $ 350,000 $ 1,170,000 $ 370,000
7,315,733 707,710 6,608,023 731,956

505,384 93,700 411,684 411,684
3,270,394 622,304 2,523,729 1,368,969 1,168,042

309,619 150,542 159,077

137,555 137,555

$12,611,511 $ 1,069,478 $ 3,825,681 $ 9,855,308 $2,681,682

$ 66,375,000 $ 66,000,000 $66,375.000 $ 66,000,000 $1,350,000

(357,811) (953,575) (377,677) (933,709)

66,017,189 65,046,425 65,997,323 65,066,291 1,350,000

7,324,284 514,027 6,810,257 520,707

1,584,771 284,929 1,299,842 296,308
776,023 568,851 484,238 860,636 593,161

338,645 164,655 173,990
120,000 30,000 90,000 30,000

$ 75,822,267 $65,953,921 $67,475,172 $74,301,016 $2,790,176

Business-type activities:
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds
Unamortized bond discount and

deferred amount on refunding
Total bonds payable

Notes payable

Capital1eases
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefits
Landfill postclosure care costs

Total business-type activities

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General
Fund.

Governmental Activities

Bonds and Notes Payable

Genera) Obligation Bonds, Series 1996 (Series 1996 Bonds) - On July 1, 1996, the City
issued $4,475,000 of the Series 1996 Bonds. The bonds were issued for the purpose of
constructing and equipping a new fire station, constructing an addition to an existing fire
station and expanding an existing police station. The Series 1996 Bonds are due in annual
principal installments of $370,000 to $410,000 through August 1, 2011, with semiannual
interest payments at 5.00% to 5.40% interest per annum. As of September 30, 2008, the
principal amount outstanding on the bonds is $1,170,000.
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Governmental Activities (Continued)

Bonds and Notes Payable (Continued)

Debt service requirements to maturity on the bond are as follows:

Fiscal year ending September 30:
2009
2010
2011

$ 370,000
390,000
410,000

$1.170,000

Interest

$ 62,528
43,103
22,140

$127,771

Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) Revenue Note, Series 2005 (Series 2005
Note) - On May 25, 2005, the City issued a CRA Series 2005 $8,000,000 Private
Placement Revenue Note. The note was issued for the purpose of funding improvements
in the designated CRA area of the City. The Series 2005 Note is due in annual principal
installments of $731,956 to $926,601 through AUgQst 1, 2016, with semiannual interest
payments at 3.426% per annum. The note is payable as to both principal, redemption
premium, if any, and interest, from a lien on and pledge of tax increment revenues. As of
September 30,2008, the principal amount outstanding on the note is $6,608,023.

Debt service requirements to maturity on the note are as follows:

Fiscal year ending September 30:
2009
2010
2012
2013
2014
2015-2016

45-

Principal

$ 731,956
757,032
782,968
809,793
837,536

2,688,738

$6,608,023

Interest

$ 226,391
201,314
175,287
148,554
128,810
178,301

$1,058,657
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

Revenue Bonds Payable

Business-type revenue bonds payable as of September 30, 2008 consist of:

2008 Series Utility System Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds (2004
Series Bonds) - On May 1,2008, the City issued $66,000,000 in 2008 Series Bonds.
The bonds were issued for the purpose of advance refunding the City's outstanding
2004 Series Bonds, Auctions Rate Securities. The 2008 Series Bonds are due in annual
principal installments of $1,350,000 to $4,640,000 through May 1,2028 with interest at
a fixed coupon rate of 4.2% payable semi-annually. As of September 30, 2008, the
principal amount outstanding on the bonds is $66,000,000.

Debt service requirements to maturity on the bonds are as follows:

Fiscal year ending September 30:
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014 - 2018
2019 -2023
2024 -2028

Notes Payable

Principal

$ 1,350,000
2,275,000
2,370,000
2,470,000
2,580,000

14,650,000
18,075,000
22,230,000

$ 66,000,000

Interest

$ 2,512,650
2,667,525
2,569,980
2,468,340
2,362,290

10,053,750
6,630,225
2,466,205

$ 31,730,965

Sewer System Subordinated Lien Revenue Note, Series 2006 - In August, 2006, the
City issued a Local Sewer System $5,100,000 note. The note was issued to satisfy the
City of Lake Worth's obligation to the Regional Sewer System's Renewal and
Replacement Fund obligation to fund needed improvements. The note is due mannual
principal installments of$255,000 through October 1,2015 with the balance of $2,805,000
due on October 1, 2016, with semiannual interest payments at 5.351 % per annum. As of
September 30,2008, the principal outstanding on the note is $4,590,000.
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Business-Type Activities (Continued)

Notes Payable (Continued)

Debt service requirements to maturity on the note are as follows:

Fiscal year ending September 30:
2009
2010
20ll-
2012
2013
2014-2016

Principal

$ 255,000
255,000
255,000
255,000
255,000

3,315,000

$4,590,000

Interest

$ 245,611
231,966
218,321
204,676
191,031
491,221

$1,582,826

Note payable to ECR • In May 1998, ECR issued a State of Florida revolving loan for
plant expansion of which Lake Worth's portion as a system participant was $4,605,600
with interest rates between 2.36% - 3.17%. The note is due monthly through fiscal year
2016. As of September 30,2008 the principal outstanding is $2,220,257.

Debt service requirements to maturity on the note are as follows:

Fiscal year ending September 30:
.2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2016

Bond Covenants

Principal

$ 265,707
272,559
279,588
286,799
294,196
821,408

$2,220,257

Interest

$ 53,505
46,653
39,624
32,413
25,016
29,097

$226,308

The various bond indebtedness and note agreements provide for annual debt service
requirements, provisions for the flow of monies through various restricted accounts and
minimum amounts to be contained in various sinking funds. Additionally, the utility system
revenue bonds include rate covenants and renewal and replacement fund requirements.
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Bond Covenants (Continued)

The City Charter permits the City to pledge the funds or property taxing power of the City for
the payment of debt and bonds. This is subject to mandatory requirements that the total
indebtedness of the City shall never exceed an amount equal to 25% of the total assessed
value of the taxable property within its corporate limits. As of September 30, 2008, the City's
debt limit was $739,492,671.

Advanced Refunding

On May 1,2008, the City issued $66,000,000 in Utility System Refunding and Improvement
Bonds, Series 2008, with interest at 4.2%. The total proceeds (along with $375,000) of
funding from the City) was used to advance refund $66,375,000 of the City's Water and
Electric Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 Auction Rate Series, which had a
synthetic fixed rate of 3.698%, with variable coupon rates based on 65% of the one month
London Interbank Offering Exchange Rate (LIBOR) plus .27%. At the time of the refunding,
the interest rate swap entered into by the City in November 2004 was terminated, and the City
was required to make a swap termination payment of $3,058,000. As a result of the refunding,
the City reduced its total debt service requirements by $60,832,435 which resulted in net
present value savings of$31,335,318.

Pledged Revenues

The City issues bonds and notes that are served by a pledge of specific revenues. Total
pledged revenues to repay the principal and interest of those bonds as of September 30, 2008
are as follows:

Govenunent Activities Busincss Activities
Source ofRevenue Pledged CRA Electric and Water Revenues Local Sewer System

Current revenue pledged $4,597,363 $14,041,139 $ 893,989
Current debt service 958,347 3,921,772 439,018
Total future revenues pledged 7,666,771 97,730,965 6,172,826

Description ofdebt eRA Revenue Note, Series 2005 Electric and Watcr Sewer System Subordinated
Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 Lien Revenue Note, Series 2006

Purposc ofdebt To fund Gateway Improvement Refunding To fund improvements

Term ofcommitment 2005 - 2016 2008 ·2028 2006 - 2016

Percentage ofdebt service to
pledged revenues (current year) 20.8% 27.4% 49%
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Capital Leases

Governmental Activities

The City entered into a lease agreement as lessee to finance the acquisition of Motorola
dispatch equipment. The annual lease payments are paid by the General Fund. The lease
agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and has been recorded at the
present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. The City, in
October 2008, sold the equipment held under this lease and paid off the outstanding
balance. The equipment was sold as a result of the City's Police Department being
transferred to the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office.

Business-type Activities

The City entered into a lease agreement as lessee to finance the acquisition of golf carts in
the Golf Enterprise Fund. The lease qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes
and has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the
inception date.

The City also entered into a lease agreement as lessee to finance the purchase of refuse
trucks and containers in the Refuse Collection and Disposal Fund. The lease qualifies as a
capital lease for accounting purposes and has been recorded at the present value of the
future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Assets:
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total

Fiscal year ending September 30:
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

Total minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest

Present value of net minimum lease payments
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

$ 708,000 $ 1,104,239
(79,650) (227,482)

$ 628,350 $ 876,757

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

$ 451,412 $ 341,219
341,219
314,829
309,551
103,182

451,412 1,410,000
(39,728) (110,158)

$ 411,684 $ 1,299,842
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Landfill Postclosure Care Cost

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 18, the City is required to recognize a liability equal to the
estimated total current cost of postc1osure care for its landfill. The postclosure care of the
City's landfill is mandated by state and federal laws and regulations and consists of certain
maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for 20 years after its closure. The
landfill is closed and the percentage of landfill capacity used to date is 100%. As of
September 30, 2008, the outstanding liability for postclosure care costs is $90,000. Of this
amount, $30,000 is classified as a current liability and $60,000 is classified as a long-term
liability. These liabilities are recorded in the Refuse Collection and Disposal Fund.

NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Description ofPlans

The City contributes to three single-employer retirement systems covering substantially all
full-time employees. The Employees' Retirement System, the Police Officers' Relief and
Retirement System and the Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund (collectively, the "Pension Trust
Funds") are defined benefit plans. Each pension plan is administered by an independent
Board of Trustees. The Employees and Police Officers' plans are accounted for by the City
as separate pension trust funds. The Firefighters' plan is accounted for by an outside pension
administration service and is reported by the City as a pension trust fund. The City does not
issue stand-alone financial reports for the Employees' and Police Officers' pension plans, but
a separate report is issued for the Firefighters' pension plan.

Employees' Retirement System (ERS)

All ofthe City's full-time employees, other than police officers and firefighters, are eligible to
participate in the ERS. Participants whose age plus credited service (as defined) computed in
terms of full months equals 900 months or 75 years or whose credited service equals 240
months are entitled to annual benefits of 3% of the average of the highest 2 consecutive years
of annual pay within the last 10 years of employment, multiplied by total years of credited
service. For those hired before 10/1/79, lump sum payments of unused leave is included. A
minimum of ten years of credited service is necessary for retirement.

Active employees who become disabled during the line of duty are entitled to receive service
retirement in an amount of the accrued pension benefit calculated as though the member has
20 years of credited service, payable for life. If an active employee becomes disabled not in
the line of duty, 10 years of service is also required for benefits to be paid. Disability benefits.
are paid until the earlier of death or recovery from disability.
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NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

Employees' Retirement System (ERS) (Continued)

If an active employee dies during the line of duty, his or her beneficiary receives the total
employee's accumulated contributions plus a monthly benefit payable as follows: for the
spouse, 50% of the average final compensation until death or remarriage; for any unmarried
minor children, 25% of the average [mal compensation is distributed among the unmarried
children until each reaches age 18; and if there is no spouse or eligible children, 162/3% of
the average [mal compensation is payable to each dependent parent, if any. If the spouse dies
or remarries, 25% is paid to each child with an overall maximum of 50% for all children. If a
member who dies out of the line of duty has at least 10 years of credited service prior to
retirement, the spouse is entitled to a monthly allowance, payable for life, as though
retirement had occurred on date of death and the joint and last survivor option were chosen.
However, if a member who dies out of the line of duty has less than 10 years of credited
service his accumulated contributions are paid to the beneficiary. Workers' Compensation
benefits are used to reduce the benefit provided by City contributions.

If an employee terminates his or her employment with the City and is not eligible for any
other benefits under the system, the employee is entitled to the following:

With less than 10 years of continuous service, a refund of member contributions except
such portion necessary to lawfully retire a just debt of each member.

With 10 or more years of continuous service, a refund of member contributions or an
adjusted retirement allowance for the payment of pension benefits to commence when the
member attains the age of 62. The adjusted retirement allowance will be 50% of the
member's regular retirement allowance as determined at time of termination. For each
completed year of credited service thereafter, the adjusted retirement allowance shall be
increased by 5% of the member's regular retirement allowance as determined until 100%
is obtained.

Employees are required by a Lake Worth City Ordinance to contribute 7.8% of their annual
salary to the ERS. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund
the system, based on an amount determined by the plan's actuaries as of October 1st of each
preceding year. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established
and may be amended by the ERS Board of Trustees and the City Commission. As of October
1,2007, the latest actuarial valuation date, the employee membership data related to the ERS
was as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees
entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 288

Fully, partially and nonvested active plan participants 312
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NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

Employees' Retirement System (ERS) (Continued)

The fmancial statements ofthe ERS are shown below.

Employees' Retirement System
Statement of Plan Net Assets

September 30, 2008

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments at fair value:
U.S. Government and agency funds
Corporate bonds
Common stocks
Mutual funds

Accrued interest, dividends and contributions receivable
Due from broker
Prepaid items

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities

NET ASSETS
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits

Employees' Retirement System
Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

Additions:
Contributions:

Employer
Plan members

Total contributions

Investment income:
Interest and dividends
Net change in fair value of investments

Less investment expenses

Net investment income

Total additions
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$ 2,019,857

5,146,417
21,391,365
23,741,229

9,950,145

60,229,156

418,639
335,597

4,827

63,008,076

259,805

$62,748,271

$ 2,836,692
2,183,539

5,020,231

2,709,302
(11,781,628)

(9,072,326)
346,880

(9,419,206)

(4,398,975)
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NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

Employees' Retirement System (ERS) (Continued)

Deductions:
Pension benefIts
Contribution refunds
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

Police Officers' Reliefand Retirement System (PRS)

$ 7,726,379
201,993

89,406

8,017,778

(12,416,753)
75,165,024

$62,748,271

All of the City's full-time sworn police officers are eligible to participate in the PRS.
Participants whose age plus credited service (as defIned) computed in terms of full months
equals 900 months or 75 years or whose credited service equals 240 months or who are age 55
with 1°years of service are entitled to annual benefits of 3% of the average of the highest 2
consecutive years of annual pay within the last 10 years of employment, multiplied by total
years of credited service. For those hired before 10/1179, lump sum payments ofunused leave
is included. A minimum of 10 years of credited service is necessary for retirement. The PRS
also permits early retirement if the participant has attained the age of 50 and has completed at
least 10 years of credited service. Accrued pension benefits will be reduced by 3% for each
year by which the actual retirement date precedes the normal retirement date.

Active police officers who become disabled during the line of duty are entitled to receive the
accrued pension benefIt calculated as though the member has 20 years of credited service,
payable for life. Ifan active police officer becomes disabled not in the line of duty, 10 years
of service is also required for benefits to be paid. The benefits payable under disability
retirement shall be monthly income payable for at least 10 years. Disability benefIts are paid
until the earlier of death or recovery from disability.

If an active police officer dies during the line of duty, his or her benefIciary receives the total
employee's accumulated contributions plus a monthly benefIt payable as follows: for the
spouse, 50% of the average fmal compensation until death or remarriage; for any unmarried
minor children, 25% of the average fmal compensation is distributed among the unmarried
children until each reaches age 18; and if there is no spouse or eligible chHdren, 16 2/3% of
the average final compensation is payable to each dependent parent, if any. If the spouse dies
or remarries, 25% is paid to each child with an overall maximum of 50% for all children. If a
member who dies out of the line of duty has at least 10 years of credited service prior to
retirement, the spouse is entitled to a monthly allowance, payable for life, as though
retirement had occurred on date of death and the joint and last survivor option were chosen.
However, if a member who dies out of the line of duty has less than 10 years of credited
service his accumulated contributions are paid to the beneficiary. Workers' Compensation
benefIts are used to reduce the benefIt provided by City contributions.
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NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE RETmEMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

Police Officers' Reliefand Retirement System (PRS) (Continued)

If an employee terminates his or her employment with the City's police department and is not
eligible for any other benefits under the system, the employee is entitled to the following:

With less than 10 years of continuous service, a refund of member contributions except
such portion necessary to lawfully retire a just debt of each member.

With 10 or more years of continuous service, a refund of member contributions or an
adjusted retirement allowance for the payment of pension benefits to commence when the
member attains the age of 62. The adjusted retirement allowance will be 50% of the
member's regular retirement allowance as determined at time of termination. For each
completed year of credited service thereafter, the adjusted retirement allowance shall be
increased by 5% of the member's regular retirement allowance as determined until 100%
is obtained.

Police employees are required by a Lake Worth City Ordinance to contribute 7.06% of their
annual salary to the PRS. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary
to fund the system, based on an amount determined by the plan's actuaries as of October 1sl of
each preceding year. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are
established and may be amended by the PRS Board ofTrustees and the City Commission.

As of October 1, 2007, the latest actuarial valuation date, the employee membership data
related to the PRS was as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees
.entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 74

Fully, partially and nonvested active plan participants 86
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NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

Police Officers' Reliefand Retirement System (PRS) (Continued)

The fmancial statements of the PRS are shown below.

Police Officers' Relief and Retirement System
Statement of Plan Net Assets

September 30, 2008

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments at fair value:
U.S. Government and agency funds
Corporate bonds
Common stock
Mutual funds

Accrued interest, dividends and contributions receivable
Due from broker
Prepaid items

Total assets

LIABILITillS
Accounts payable and other liabilities

NET ASSETS
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits
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$ 1,781,864

1,677,735
7,086,482
8,987,294
3,238,142

20,989,653

130,662
89,059

2,899

22,994,137

96,233

$22,897,904
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NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE RETmEMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

Police Officers' Reliefand Retirement System (PRS) (Continued)

Police Officers' Relief and Retirement System
Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

Additions:
Contributions:

Employer
Plan members

Total contributions

Investment income:
Interest and dividends
Net change in fair value of investments

Less investment expenses

Net investment income

Total additions

Deductions:
Pension payments
Contribution refunds
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Change in net assets

Net assets· beginning

Net assets - ending

Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund (FPTF)

$ 1,414,687
609,341

2,024,028

931,194
(4,119,517)

(3,188,323)
145,476

(3,333,799)

(1,309,771)

2,750,001
51,583
84,838

2,886,422

(4,196,193)

27,094,097

$22,897,904

All of the City's certified firefighters are eligible to participate in the FPTF. Participants
whose age plus credited service (as dermed) computed in terms of full months equals 900
months or 75 years or whose credited service equals 240 months or who are age 55 with 10
years of service are entitled to annual benefits of 3% of the average of the highest 2
consecutive years of annual pay within the last 10 years of employment, multiplied by total
years of credited service. For those hired before lO/1/79, lump sum payment of unused leave
is included, A minimum of 10 years of credited service is necessary for retirement. The
FPTF permits early retirement if the participant has attained the age of 50 and has completed
at least 10 years ofcredited service. Accrued pension benefits will be reduced by 3% for each
year by which the actual retirement date precedes the normal retirement date.
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NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund (FPTF) (Continued)

Active firefighters who become disabled during the line of duty are entitled to receive the
greater of 50% of average final compensation or accrued pension benefit calculated as though
the member has 20 years of credited service, payable for life. If an active firefighter becomes
disabled not in the line of duty, 10 years of service is also required for benefits to be paid, and
the benefit will be the retirement benefit accrued to the date of disability. The benefits
payable under disability retirement shall be monthly income payable for at least 10 years.
Disability benefits are paid until the earlier of death or recovery from disability.

If an active fireman dies during the line of duty, his or her beneficiary receives the total
employee's accumulated contributions plus a monthly benefit payable as follows: for the
spouse, 33 1/3% of the average final compensation until death or remarriage; for any
unmarried minor children, 25% of the average fmal compensation is distributed among the
unmarried children until each reaches age 18; and if there is nO spouse or eligible children, 16
2/3% of the average final compensation is payable to each dependent parent, if any. If the
spouse dies or remarries, 25% is paid to each child with an overall maximum of 50% for all
children. If a member who dies out of the line of duty has at least 10 years of credited service
prior to retirement, the spouse is entitled to a monthly allowance, payable for life, as though
retirement had occurred on date of death and the joint and last survivor option were chosen.
However, if a member who dies out of the line of duty has less than 10 years of credited
service his accumulated contributions are paid to the beneficiary. Workers' Compensation
benefits are used to reduce the benefit provided by City contributions.

If an employee terminates his or her employment with the City's fire department and is not
eligible for any other benefits under the system, the employee is entitled to the following:

With less than 10 years of continuous service, a refund of member contributions except
such portion necessary to lawfully retire a just debt of each member.

With 10 or more years of continuous service, either a refund of member contributions or
the accrued benefit starting at age 50 after an actuarial reduction.

Firefighters are required by a Lake Worth City Ordinance to contribute 11.25% of their
annual salary to the FPTF. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts
necessary to fund the system, based on an amount determined by the plan's actuaries as of
October 1st each preceding year. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City
are established and may be amended by the FPTF Board of Trustees and the City
Commission. As of October 1, 2007, the latest actuarial valuation date, the employee
membership data related to the FPTF was as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees
entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 41

Fully, partially and nonvested active plan participants 56
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NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the FPTF can be obtained by contacting City's Finance
Department.

The Pension Trust Funds financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Contributions to the Pension Trust Funds are recognized as revenue at the time
they are due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized as expenses as they become
payable and administrative expenses are recognized at the time the expense is incurred.
Investments are carried at fair value, which is determined as follows: securities traded on a
national securities exchange are valued at the last reported sales price on the last business day
of the fiscal year; securities traded in the over-the-counter market and listed securities for
which no sale was reported on that date are valued at the last reported bid price; and
commercial paper, time deposits and short-term investment pools are valued at cost, which
approximates fair value. Purchases and sales of securities are reflected on a trade-date basis.
Gains or losses on sales of securities are based on average cost. Dividends and interest
income are recorded as earned.

Funding Policy and Annual Required Contributions

The City's funding policy is to provide for periodic employer contributions at actuarially
detenrnned rates that are designed to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.

Annual pension cost ("APC") is a measure of the periodic cost of an employer's participation
in a defined benefit pension plan and the net pension obligation ("NPO") at the valuation date
is the cumulative difference between the APC and actual employer contributions since the
adoption date ofGASB Statement No. 27.

The City's APC and NPO information for each plan are as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Employees' Retirement System
Annual Pension Cost (APe) $2,856,150 $2,788,079 $2,166,939
Contributions made 2,836,692 2,783,777 2,162,016
% ofAPe contributed 99.3% 99.8% 99.8%
NPO (overfunding) end of year (33,893) (53,351) (57,653)

Police Officers' Relief and Retirement System
Annual Pension Cost (APC) $1,416,278 $1,136,619 $1,066,114
Contributions made 1,414,687 1,053,525 1,064,230
% ofAPC contributed 99.9% 92.7% 99.8%
NPO (overfunding) end of year 63,498 61,907 (21,187)

Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund
Annual Pension Cost (APC) $1,809,477 $1,276,588 $ 945,168
Contributions made 1,803,667 1,277,405 944,351
% of APC contributed 99.7% 100,0% 99.9%
NPO (overfunding) end of year (27,993) (33,803) (34,620)
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NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

Funding Policy and Annual Required Contributions (Continued)

Annual Required Contribution (ARC)
Interest on Net Pension Obligation (NPO)
Adjustment to ARC

Annual Pension Cost (APC)

Contributions made
Increase (decrease) in NPO

NPO at beginning of year

NPO at end ofyear

$2,852,077
(4,535)
8,608

2,856,150
2,836,692

19,458
(53,351)

$ ..(33,893)

$1,496,092
(1,657)

(78,157)

1,416,278
1,414,687

1,591
61,907

$ 63,498

$1,803,579
(2,650)
8,548

1,809,477
1,803,667

5,810
(33,803)

$~~7,993)

determine the annual

Police Officers'
Relief and

Retirement System

Actuarial methods and significant actuarial assumptions used to
required contributions for the current year follow:

Employees'
Retirement

System
Firefighters' Pension

Trust Fund

Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return*
Projected salary incn~ases*

Changes since last valuation
*Includes inflation at

October I, 2007

Entry age normal
Level dollar, closed

30 years
5 year

smoothed market

8.50%
6.50%

No change
4.00%

October 1, 2007
Entry age normal

Level dollar, closed
30 years
5 year

smoothed market

8.50%
6.50%

No change
4.00%

October 1,2007
Entry age normal

Level dollar, closed
30 years
5 year

smoothed market

8.50%
6.50%

No change
4.00%

Funding Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the Plans as of October 1, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date,
is as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

VAAL as
Actuarial Percentage

Actuarial Accrued Annual OfAnnual
Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered

Actuarial Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Plan Valuation Date @} (!U ili..::..ill (alb) 1!;} Obligation

Employees' Retirement System October I, 2007 $67,657,306 $87,690,523 $20,033,217 77.2% 12,104,052 165.5%
Police Officers' Relief and
Retirement System October 1,2007 25,388,486 35,103,779 9,715,293 72.3% 4,883,436 198.9%

Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund October I, 2007 24,248,823 37,267,034 13,018,211 65.1% 4,349,180 299.3%
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NOTE 10. E:MPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

Funding Status and Funding Progress

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI)
following the notes to the fmancial statements, presents multiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to
the AALs for benefits.

Firefig/zters' and Police Reliefand Pension Funds-Division 2 (Division 2 Fund)

The Division 2 Fund, a defmed contribution plan, was established by the State of Florida to
.implement certain provisions of the Florida Statutes relating to "The Municipal Police
Pension Trust Fund Act" (MPPTFA) and "The Municipal Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund
Act" (MFPTFA). By legislative action, the Division 2 Fund is a separate and distinct entity
unto itself and is not a component unit of the City as defined in the pronouncement issued by
the GASB.

The Division 2 Fund fmancial statements can be obtained by contacting the City's Finance
Department. For the year ended September 30, 2008, payments made by the State of Florida,
on behalf of the City, to the Division 2 Fund totaled approximately $1,105,000.

Eligibility

Any City employee with permanent status in the police department and whose duty it is to
engage directly in the enforcement of the laws of the City and State of Florida may
participate as a member of the :MPPTFA. Any person employed by the City who is
certified as a frrefighter and whose duty it is to extinguish fires and protect life and
property qualifies as a participant of the MFPTFA.

Payroll ofParticipants

The Firefighters and Police Officers departments' total payroll was $13,729,883 for fiscal
2008, of which $4,994,657 and $8,131,724 was paid to participants in the firefighter and
police officers' funds, respectively.

NOTE 11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description

The City provides a single employer defmed benefit health care plan to all of its employees.
The plan allows its employees and their beneficiaries, at their own cost and until the
attainment of age 65, to continue to obtain health, dental and other insurance benefits upon
retirement. The benefits of the plan conform with Florida Statutes, which are the legal
authority for the plan. The plan has no assets and does not issue a separate fmancial report.
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NOTE 11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost

The City does not directly make a contribution to the plan on behalf of retirees. Retirees and
their beneficiaries pay the same group rates as are charged to the City for active employees
by its healthcare provider. However, the City's actuaries, in their actuarial valuation,
calculate an offset to the cost of these benefits as an Employer Contribution, based upon an
implicit rate subsidy. This offset equals the total age-adjusted costs paid by the City or its
active employees for coverage of the retirees and their dependents for the year net of the
retiree's own payments for the year.

The annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
-GASB Statement No. 45. The annual required contribution represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years.

The annual OPEB cost for the City for the current year and the related information is as
follows:

Required contribution rates:
Employer
Plan members
Normal Cost
Interest on Normal Cost
Amortization
Interest on Amortization

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation - beginning ofyear

Net OPEB obligation- end ofyear

Pay-as-you-go
N/A

$ 240,952

407,312

648,264
(315,197)

333,067

$ 333,067

The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the
net OPEB obligation for 2008 was:

Fiscal year ended
Annual OPEB cost
Percentage of OPEB cost contributed
Net OPEB obligation
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NOTE 11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of October 1, 2007 was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability
Actuarial value ofplan assets
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio
Covered payroll
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

$ 7,799,266
$

$ 7,799,266
$
$ 17,689,510

44.1%

The actuarial valuation for the calculation of OPEB involves estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the future. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of
the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The required schedule of funding
progress presented as required supplementary information is designed to provide multi-year
trend information to show whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. However, the
City has not contributed assets to the plan at this time.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the
employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date
and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the City and the plan members to that point.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions
that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial value of assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return

Projected salary increases
Healthcare inflation rate
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NOTE 12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Florida Municipal Power Agency (FMPA) Agreements

The City's electric utility operates pursuant to various power sales contracts with a number of
other power producers and a Power Supply Acquisition Agreement and Project Support
contract with the FMPA. FMPA owns an 8.806% undivided interest in Florida Power &
Light Company's 8t. Lucie Unit No.2 (St. Lucie Unit No.2), a nuclear powered electric
generating facility and a 25% interest in Orlando Utilities Commission's Stanton Energy
Center Coal Fired Unit No.1 (Stanton Unit No.1). The contracts with FMPA give the City
and each of the other participants in the St. Lucie Project and the Stanton Project entitlement
shares aggregating 100% ofFMPA's ownership interest in St. Lucie Unit No.2 and Stanton
Unit No.1. FMPA also has a Reliability Exchange Agreement with Florida Power & Light
Company that enables the City to exchange 50% of its share of the output from S1. Lucie Unit
No.2 for a like amount from S1. Lucie Unit No. 1. Under the FMPA agreements, the City is
to receive approximately 18 megawatts (mw) of power from St. Lucie and 10 mw of power
from Stanton. Costs associated with power purchases under these agreements are charged
against operations as incurred. Revenue from participating sales contracts are recognized as
earned.

The City and FMPA have now entered into a contract that provides for FMPA to be
responsible for providing the power and energy for the City's Electric Utilities Department
either by operating the existing equipment or by providing the power and energy from other
less costly facilities. This contract was effective as of September 1, 2002. The Stanton
Project has been absorbed into the FMPA All Requirements Project generating units. The
City remains fmancially responsible for the St. Lucie Unit 2 contract and the power and
energy from this facility will be part of the overall power supply plan of the City and the
FMPA.

Pursuant to the City's agreement with the FMPA, the City was required to make a specified
contribution to the FMPA. The City satisfied part of this requirement during fiscal year 2003
by transferring certain fuel inventory. The City has recorded a long-term, restricted deposit of
$1,316,174 as it would be refundable to the City in the event that the FMPA were to dissolve.

Litigation, Claims andAssessments

The City is the defendant in several personnel-related and other lawsuits occurring in the
normal course of operations. While the ultimate outcome of the litigation cannot be
determined at this time, management believes that any amounts not covered by insurance, if
any, resulting from these lawsuits would not materially affect the financial position of the
City.
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NOTE 12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Grants

Grant monies received and disbursed by the City are for specific purposes and may be subject
to audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits may result in requests for reimbursements due to
disallowed expenditures or other actions by grantor agencies. Based upon prior experience,
the City does not believe that such disallowances or other actions taken by the grantor
agencies, if any, would have a material effect on the fmancial position of the City.

Other

There were no material commitments for construction work in progress outside of the
amounts displayed as "Reserve for Encumbrances" in the govenunenta1 fund financial
statements.

NOTE 13. SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
City participates in the South East Risk Management Association (SERMA), a public entity
risk pool with four municipal members in Broward and Palm Beach County, Florida.
SERMA provided the City with auto liability, general liability, property, and works'
compensation coverages. SERMA has self-insured retentions of $750,000 for workers'
compensation, $225,000 for liability coverage, $225,000 for public official liability, and
$50,000 for property coverage; all retentions are per occurrence. SERMA provided excess
insurance of up to $1,000,000 per event for liability, statutorily required coverages for
workers' compensation, and for all pool members, $50,000,000 of scheduled limit coverage
for property. Risk of loss is transferred but members are subject to supplementary assessment
in the event that pool assets are not sufficient to meet obligations. The municipalities
included in SERMA are covered by Florida Statute 768.28 under the Doctrine of Sovereign
Immunity, which limits the amount of liability of municipalities to individual claimants to
$100,000 or $200,000 for all claims relating to the same incident. The amounts of settlements
have not exceeded insurance coverage in the past three fiscal years. As of September 30,
2008, the City's allocation of SERMA's retained earnings did not result in any additional
assessments due from City.

The insurance of City property with SERMA halted on May 16, 2008 and the City became
self-insured for property claim coverage through the Florida Municipal Insurance Trust
(FMIT). The FMIT coverage provides the City with a self-insured retention of $50,000 per
property claim; $100,000 per utility plant facility claim; and $300,000 for power plant boiler
and machinery claims. The aggregate FMIT property coverage is $113,326,544 with a
building contents aggregate coverage of $11,173,090. There were no claims or liabilities
incurred but not reported on the City's property coverage for the period ending September 30,
2008.
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NOTE 14. LANDFILL MANAGEMENT ESCROW

The City is required under Section 62-701.630 of the Florida Administrative Code to prepare and
submit to the State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection the "Schedule of Cash
Receipts and Disbursements" of the City of Lake Worth, Florida Sanitary Landfill Management
Escrow Account. The City records the landfill management escrow as a restricted investment to
fund postc1osure costs of the landfill. Sufficient funds are to be deposited or maintained in the
interest bearing escrow account in order to fund the estimated annual postclosure care costs to be
incurred in subsequent years. The escrow is held in a Florida State Board of Administration
Investment Account, and is reported as part of the City's pooled investments. The escrow is
calculated based on estimates made by a registered professional engineer. Such estimates are
subject to change due to inflation, technology or applicable laws and regulations. At September
30, 2008, the escrow was based on the following estimates:

Cost of closure
Annuallong-terrn care/postclosure costs
Date of landfill closure

$ 2,376,000
30,000

October 1991

The schedule of cash receipts and disbursements for the year ended September 30, 2008, is as
follows:

Balance, September 30, 2007
Deposits - interest income

Balance, September 30, 2008

$192,311
5,537

$197,848

There were no withdrawals made from the Sanitary Landfill Management Escrow Account for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. This account is included in the Refuse Collection and
Disposal Fund. The postclosure care costs for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, were
funded from the operating revenue ofthe Refuse Collection and Disposal Fund.
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NOTE 15. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT TRUST FUND

Pursuant to Florida Statute 163.387, listed below is a summary of the sources and amounts of
deposits to, and the purpose and amounts of withdrawals from, the Community Redevelopment
Trust Fund (CRA) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008:

Deposits Withdrawals
Source of deposits:

Ad valorem taxes received from City
Ad valorem taxes received from Palm Beach County
Investment income
Local grant from Palm Beach County
Federal grant from Environmental Protection Agency
Miscellaneous

Purpose of withdrawals:
Regular salaries/wages
Professional services
Other contractual services
Travel and training
Telephone and utility costs
Operating supplies
Books, memberships and dues
Miscellaneous expenses
Rentals and leases
Economic development
Tax increment rebate
Promotional activity
Promotional activity - Evening on the Avenue
Promotional activity- Street Banners
Promotional activity- Christmas Street
Fayade program
Brownfield redevelopment
Neighborhood enhancements
Streetscape
Loan interest
Principal
Gateway improvements
Community policing
Residence redevelopment program
Land
Capital Outlay
Dixie highway improvement
Community grants in aid and other grants
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$3,041,519 $
1,555,844

328,577
40,000
20,500
7,000

192,031
44,121
13,316
5,739

37,178
2,310
2,621

221,314
43,700
21,356

217,163
28,548
25,000

9,948
6,653

133,284
15,616

147,651
110,605
250,637
707,710
379,893
187,538
76,707

105,019
97,573
17,575
38,233

$4,993,440 $ 3,139,039
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NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Transfer ofCity Police Services

On October 1,2008, police services were transferred from the City to the Palm Beach County
Sheriff's Department under an Interlocal Agreement approved by the City Commission. The
Agreement provides for the provision of police services through the County Sheriffs
Department including transfer of existing City Police Department staff, equipment and
vehicles. The City's existing police service facility, including maintenance and utility costs,
is provided to the Sheriff Department use at no charge by the Agreement. The Agreement
includes an annual fee for each fiscal year of service to be paid by the City to the County
Sheriff's Department in equal monthly amounts.

Approvalfor Transfer ofCity Fire Services

On April 12,2009, the City Commission approved an Interlocal Agreement that provides for
transfer of City fIre rescue services to the Palm Beach County Fire Rescue Department
effective October 1,2009. The Agreement provides for continuation of fire rescue services
by the County including transfer of existing City Fire Rescue Department certified staff,
equipment and vehicles. The City's fIre rescue facility will be provided for use by County
Fire Rescue Department staff with utilities and maintenance costs being paid by the County.
The funding of the County Fire Rescue Agreement comes from an annual County Municipal
Services Taxing Unit (MSTU) property tax assessment and an annual supplemental payment
from the City in December of each year.

Withdrawal from SERMA Risk Pool

On October 1, 2008, the City concluded its participation in the SERMA Risk Pool becoming a
separate, self-insured municipality for general insurance coverage. The City's general
insurance areas include auto liability, general liability, and workers compensation. The City's
self-insurance program included purchase of excess claim coverage through the Florida
Municipal Insurance Trust (EMIT) and continued a self-insured retention on claims that is
similar in nature and amount to those provided by SERMA.

Bulk Water Interlocal Agreement

Due to limits on surficial well water withdrawals by the South Florida Water Management
District, the City approved an Interlocal Agreement for purchase of bulk potable water from
the Palm Beach County Water Utility that became effective May 6, 2008. This agreement
included a water production plant impact fee payment of $5.98 million to the Palm Beach
County Water Utility on May 6, 2009. The City Commission voted not to approve this impact
fee payment on May 5, 2009 and directed the City Attorney to pursue legislative arbitration of
the Interlocal Agreement, which is still ongoing. The City Commission also subsequently
approved temporary bulk potable water purchases from the City of West Palm Beach while
taking steps for construction of a Reverse Osmosis water production facility to meet long­
term potable water needs.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

5-Year Notice - Withdrawal ofCity Electric Utility from FMPA

In December 2008 the City Commission voted to inform the Florida Municipal Power
Association (FMPA) of its withdrawal from an All Requirements Project (ARP) electrical
power purchasing agreement in December 2013, after a required 5-year notification period.
Withdrawal from the ARP agreement will require the City's Electric Utility to purchase
electrical power from other generation sources beginning January 1, 2014. During the 5-year
notice period, it is advantageous for the City to limit electrical demand growth in the system.
Future costs associated with the ARP after the withdrawal period are developed by a
calculated difference in the City's available generation during year 5 of the notice period and
the system peak demand during year 5. Increases in the City's demand load could result in
required payments to the FMPA upon withdrawal from the ARP.

-68-



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANI( INTENTIONALLY.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COIvIPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEl\tfBER 30, 2008

Variance
with

Fund Final
Budgetary Budget

Budgeted Amounts Basis Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes $ 15,512,203 $15,512,203 $15,730,702 $ 218,499
Utility service taxes 4,798,000 4,798,000 5,283,661 485,661

'Sales and use taxes 940,000 940,000 864,888 (75,112)

Franchise fees 115,000 115,000 134,309 19,309

21,365,203 21,365,203 22,013,560 648,357

Licenses and permits:
Business 1,628,575 1,628,575 1,080,716 (547,859)

Non-business 759,250 909,250 942,552 33,302

2,387,825 2,537,825 2,023,268 (514,557)

Fines and forfeitures:
Public safety 239,000 239,000 196,361 (42,639)

Library fmes 10,000 10,000 10,305 305

Violations of local ordinances 1,110,000 1,110,000 623,737 (486,263)

1,359,000 1,359,000 830,403 (528,597)

Charges for services:
General government 169,300 169,300 65,095 (104,205)

Public safety 495,625 751,505 716,285 (35,220)

Physical environment 20,000 20,000 23,950 3,950

Transportation 465,000 465,000 367,892 (97,108)
Culture and recreation 254,500 254,500 127,257 (127,243)

1,404,425 1,660,305 1,300,479 (359,826)

Intergovernmental:
Federal grants 4,404,995 2,742,966 1,924,761 (818,205)

State grants 275,000 L57,387 139,710 (17,677)

State shared revenue 5,530,999 5,530,999 5,044,308 (486,691)
Grants from other local units 30,000 30,000 139,437 109,437

10,240,994 8,461,352 7,248,216 (1,213,136)

Interfund services provided 2,670,303 2,670,303 2,640,864 (29,439)

Investment income 420,000 420,000 519,218 99,218

Rents and royalties 183,550 183,550 248,659 65,109

Miscellaneous 666,777 666,777 1,058,646 391,869

Total revenues 40,698,077 39,324,315 37,883,313 (1,441,002)

(Continued)

See note to budgetary comparison schedule.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

(Continued)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Fund
Budgetary

Basis

Amounts

Variance
with
Final

Budget
Positive

(Negative)

$ 325,749 $ 349,749 $ 271,100 $ 78,649
687,489 698,164 542,771 155,393
330,725 330,725 326,671 4,054
994,571 1,021,595 1,032,314 (10,719)

50,000 50,000 38,050 11,950

388,718 389,194 364,509 24,685
85,000 116,050 67,610 48,440

559,652 564,602 453,710 110,892
663,257 713,257 668,729 44,528
756,694 756,694 499,964 256,730

10,000 10,000 6,549 3,451
3,500 3,500 2,095 1,405

1,163,517 1,188,517 1,241,324 (52,807)
25,000 25,000

90,163 (90,163)

6,018,872 6,217,047 5,630,559 586,488

13,356,203 14,032,083 14,185,030 (152,947)
9,127,678 9,127,678 9,368,396 (240,718)

942,096 988,696 962,973 25,723
1,624,104 1,624,104 1,371,806 252,298

11,600 11,600 2,200 9,400

25,061,681 25,784,161 25,890,405 (106,244)

347,243 347,243 372,472 (25,229)
Physical enviroillnent:

Cemetery

Public safety:
Police
Fire
Building and zoning
Code and administration
Civil defense

Expenditures:
Current:

General government:
City commission
City manager
City clerk
Finance
Internal auditing

Purchasing
Independentaudrting
Personnel
City attorney
Community development
Civil service board
Insurance
Building maintenance
Judgments and settlements
Garage

Transportation:

Public works:
Administration
Streets,. drains and sidewalks
Traffic control
Transit system
Parking facilities

549,271
1,154,322

129,146

65,420

549,271
1,154,322

129,146

65,420

645,766
1,156,889

97,799
1,852

64,398

(96,495)
(2,567)
31,347
(1,852)
1,022

1,898,159 1,898,159 1,966,704 (68,545)

(Continued)

See note to budgetary comparison schedule.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARlSON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
(Continued)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Variance
with

Fund Final
Budgetary Budget

Budgeted Amounts Basis Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Culture and recreation:

Library $ 661,010 $ 670,743 $ 696,272 $ (25,529)
Recreation 776,764 752,981 701,255 51,726
Parks 1,854,800 1,854,799 1,579,718 275,081
Pool and beach 915.822 911,322 962,014 (50,692)

4,208,396 4,189,845 3,939,259 250,586

Contingency 398.701 185,635 185.635

Capital outlay 7,890,277 4,456,465 2,986,819 1,469,646

Debt service:
Principal 93,700 (93,700)
Interest and fiscal charges 19,154 (19,154)

112,854 (112,854)

Total expenditures 45,823,329 43,078,555 40,899,072 2,179,483

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (5,125,252) (3,754,240) (3,015,759) 738,481

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 5,872,958 5,988,958 6,425,934 436,976

Transfers out (3,742,988) (5,684,559) (4,656,641 ) 1,027,918
Appropriated fund balance 2,995,282 3,449,841 (3,449,841)

Total other fmancing sources 5,125,252 3,754,240 1,769,293 (1,984,947)

Net change in fund balance $ - $ (1,246,466) ~ (l,246,466)

Fund balance, beginning 17,055,402

Difference between GAAP and budgetary basis 325,582

Fund balance, ending $16,134,518

See note to budgetary comparison schedule.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

NOTE TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

NOTE 1. BUDGETS AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

The City follows these procedures in establishing budgetary data:

a. The City Manager submits to the City Commission a proposed operating budget for the
General Fund the ensuing fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the sources of receipts to finance them.

b. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer corrunents.

c. The budget is approved by the City Commission and becomes the basis for the millage
levied by the City Commission.

d. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within any department;
however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any department or fund must be
approved by the City Commission. The City Commission may amend the current year's
budget appropriation by passage of a budget amendment ordinance after conducting two
public hearings on the matter or by reappropriation transfers through City Commission
approvaL Expenditures may not exceed legal appropriations at the department leveL
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end. All budget amendments are essentially a
reallocation of existing appropriations.

e. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year
for the General Fund and Community Redevelopment Agency Fund (nonmajor fund).
Formal budgetary integration is not employed for debt service funds because effective
budgetary control is alternatively achieved through debt repayment provisions. Formal
budgetary integration is also not employed for capital projects funds because projects are
approved individually. Formal budgetary integration is also not employed for the special
revenue funds, with the exception of the Community Redevelopment Agency Fund. The
budgets for the General Fund and Community Redevelopment Agency Fund are adopted
on a basis that differs from GAAP because those budgets include open encumbrances as
expenditures.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FUl\TDING PROGRESS

UAAL
(Overfunded)

as a
Actuarial (Overfunded) Percentage

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded of
Value of Liabilities AAL Funded Covered Covered
Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Actuarial Valuation Date ill ill (2) - (1) ffi.(1} ill f(2) - (1 )1:{3)

Employees' Retirement System: tal

October 1, 2007 $ 67,657,306 $ 87,690,523 $ 20,033,217 77.2% $12,104,052 165.5%
October 1,2006 64,708,484 85,236,861 20,528,377 75.9% 11,318,124 181.4%
October 1, 2005 64,297,738 82,722,268 18,424,530 77.7% 11,874,629 155.2%
October 1,2004 66,023,332 78,339,026 12,315,694 84.3% 11,838,619 104.0%
October 1, 2003 67,846,771 73,841,492 5,994,721 91.9% 11,393,749 52.6%
October 1,2002 69,185,629 71,280,258 2,094,629 97.1% 12,499,165 16.8%

Police Officers' Relief and Retirement System:ta)

October 1,2007 $25,388,486 $35,103,779 $ 9,715,293 72.3% $ 4,883,436 198.9%
October 1, 2006 23,626,275 33,711,879 10,085,604 70.1% 4,427,671 227.8%
October 1, 2005 22,734,299 32,208,121 9,473,822 70.6% 4,679,513 202.5%
October 1, 2004 22,500,081 30,949,284 8,449,203 72.7% 4,808,730 175.7%
October 1,2003 22,194,654 27,293,096 5,098,442 81.3% 3,819,162 133.5%
October 1, 2002 22,032,804 25,443,409 3,410,605 86.6% 4,255,362 80.1%

Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund: to)

October 1, 2007 $24,248,823 $37,267,034 $ 13,018,211 65.1% $ 4,349,180 299.3%
October 1, 2006 21,446,134 32,688,778 11,242,641 65.6% 3,634,139 309.4%
October 1,2005 19,934,210 30,812,122 10,877,912 64.7% 3,419,472 318.1%
October 1,2004 19,313,960 21,891,245 2,577,285 88.2% 3,107,664 82.9%
October 1, 2003 17,739,412 20,264,496 2,525,034 87.5% 2,899,107 87.1%
October 1,2002 17,319,197 18,006,295 687,098 96.2% 3,074,070 22.4%

tal Actuarial cosfmethod is entry age normal
tb) Actuarial cost method is frozen entry age
Source: Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company, Actuaries
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CON1RIBUTIONS

Annual
Required Percentage

Contribution Contributed
Year Ended September 30:

Employees' Retirement System:
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003

Police Officers' Relief and Retirement System:
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003

Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund:
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003

Source: Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company, Actuaries
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$2,852,077
2,783,603
2,162,016
1,913,694
1,227,118

60,748

$1,496,092
1,053,508
1,064,230
1,117,701

903,703
621,485

$1,803,579
1,277,405

944,351
840,401
610,633
335,655

99.5%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

94.6%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%



CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

OTHERPOSTE~LOYMENTBENEflTS

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
(Dollar Amount in Thousands)

(Unaudited)

- $ 7,799,266 $ 7,799,266 0.0% $ 17,689,510

Actuarial Valuation Date

October 1, 2007

(a)
Actuarial Value

ofAssets

$

(b)
Actuarial Accrued

Liability (AAL)
En!lyAge

(b-a)
Unfunded AAL

(UAAL) .

(alb)
Funded
Ratio

(c)
Annual Covered

Payroll

(b-a)/c
UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered

Payroll

44.1%

The above schedule reflects data for one year only due to this being the first year of implementation of GASB Statement No. 45.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Community Redevelopment Agency Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursements of funds
used for physical and economic redevelopment of targeted areas within the City.

Law Enforcement and Firefighter Education Fund - To account for state contributions for police
and fIrefIghter education and the expenditures incurred.

Library Trust Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of monies for the library.

Incentive Trust Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of monies for tuition expenditures
of City employees.

Summer Food Program Fund - To account for the receipts and disbursements of the Summer Food
Program.

Law Enforcement Confiscated Property Fund - To account for the receipt of monies from the sale of
confiscated property and disbursement for special law enforcement activities in accordance with Florida
statutes and federal regulations.

Special Donation Fund - To account for the receipts and disbursements of funds used for police
programs, special recreation purposes and for a variety of other City programs.

Simpkin Trust Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of donated monies for the library.

Parking Improvement Fund - Was established by the City Commission to segregate funds and
accumulate funds from development assessments on downtown-area properties. These funds are to be
used for parking lot maintenance, striping and the possible installation of parking meters to control
downtown parking use.

Building Education Surcharge Fund - Was established to account for the fees collected from building
permits that are stipulated for use on inspector training and certifIcation.

Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund - To account for assets held for the repayment of principal and interest on debt
reported in the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Fund - To account for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and
the purchase ofcapital items other than those financed by proprietary fund operations.

Improvement Fund - To accoWlt for the acquisition of various capital items and other expenditures,
usually funded by transfers from the General Fund.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCESHEEr
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBI!R. 30, 2008

Debt
Special Revenue Service Capital Projects

Law
Enfurcement Law Total

Community and Summer Enforcemenl Building Total TOlal Nonmllior
Redevelopment Tree Firefighter Library Incentive Food Confiscated Special Simpkin Parking Education Special Debt Capital Capital Governmental

Agency ~ Be:Jutification Education Trust Trust Program ~ Donarion ~ Improvement Surcharge ~ Service Projects Improvement Projects Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,Y74,341 $ 8Y7,Y6U $ 23,113 $ 187 $ 9,321 $ 9,894 $12,096 $ 276,176 $ 21,222 $ 5,168 S 15u,OOO $ 12,727 $ 6,392,2U5 S 52,472,190 S 17,665 S 2,489,855 $ 8,882,060
Investments 5,483,230 214,155 34,887 102,151 674,235 6,508,658 39,034 39,034 6,547,692
A=unts receivable, net 5,000 145,137 150,137 144,IUI 144,IU1 294,238
Ae<:rued interest receivable 29,549 1,533 237 691 4,976 36,985 265 265 l7,251
Due from other fund::; 295,341 25,129 22,851 47,980 343,321
Land held for resale 395,175 395,j75 395,175
Prepaid items 3,700 3,700 3,700
AdV2nces to other funds ---- --- --- --- -_._- ---- --- --- 335,063 335,063 335,063

Total assets S 10,495,820 $1,043,097 S 23,113 5 187 ~~ $12,096 $ 311,300 ~ $684,379 S 150,000 ~ 5lJ,091,686 ~ ~ $ 414,878 $ 3,451,473 $ 16,838,500

LIABlLmES AND
FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable S 65,313 S 106,178 S S S S S S . $ S $ $ S 171,491 S S 770 S $ 770 S 172,261
Due to other funds 29,653 136,052 5,000 750 171,455 98 28,443 28,541 199,996
Advances from other funds -.__.-..._--- -_..........- _..... ~ ..._...........- --------~ .....__ .. --_.._.._----- --- --- --- --- --- ---- 233,788 233,788 233,788

Total Jiabilities 94,966 242,230 5,000 --- --- --- --- --- ~ 342,946 ---~ 262,231 263,099 606,045

Fund balances:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances 289,157 289,157 9,300 9,300 298,457
Land held fur resale 395,175 395,175 395,175
Prepaid items 3,700 3,700 3,700
Advances 335,063 335,063 335,Q63
Debl setVice 295,34J 295,341
Capital projects 4,045,257 4,045,257 4,045,257

Unreserved, designated fur;
Subsequent yeats expenditures 94,567 94,567 94,567

UlU"l:se.rved. undesignaled (deficil) 5,968,J73~ 23,JI3 (4,813) 225,009 9,894 12,096 311,300 124,064 ~ 150,000 ~ 8,316,059 --- 2,631,Z52 (182,416) 2,448,836 HI,764.895

Total fund balances 10,400,854 800,867 23,113 (4.813) 225,009 9,894 12,096 311,300 124,064 684,379 150,000 ~ 12,748,740 295,341 3,035,727 152,647 3,188,374 J6,232,455

Totalliab11ities and
fund balances $ 10,495,820~ $ 23,113 S 187~~~ $ 311,300 ~~ $ ISO,OOO ~ £13,091,686 ~ ~ $ 414,878 $ 3,451,473 S 16,838,500
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUEs, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES TN FUND BALANCES
NONMAIOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Debt
Special Revenue Servjce Capital Projects

Law
Enforoement Law Total

Community and Sununer Enforq:ement Building Total Tot.ll Nonmajor
Redevelopment Tree Firefighter Library Incentive Food Confiscated Special Simpkin Parking Education Special Debt Capital Capital Governmental

~ Grants Beautification Education Trost Trust Program ~ Donation II!ill Improvement Surcharge Revenue Semce Projects Improvement ~ ~
Revenues:

Charges for servioes S $ S S $ S $ $ - $ S S $ 10,366 S 10,366 $ S 443,687 $ $ 443,687 S 454,053
Intergovernmental I,GIG,344 439,837 5,426 14,232 139,181 2,215,020 2,215,020
investment income 328,577 9,098 6,036 4,109 29,537 377,357 68,747 54,151 12,758 66,909 513,013
Miscellaneous 7,000 10,000 ~ --- --- ~--- --- 25,519 ---- ---- 50 SO 25,569

Total revenues 1,951,921 449,837 5,426 14,232 14,741 _____ 145,217 ~~ 29,537 10,366 2,628,26-l. 68,747 497,838 12,808 510,646 3,207,655

Expenditures;
Cunent;

General government 217,592 2,717 7,210 5,056 232,575 232,575
PUblic safety 39 35,534 35,573 35,573
Physlcal environment 73,993 73,993 73,993

Culture and recreation 1,223 1,223 1,223

Community redevelopment 1,416,380 1,416,380 1,415,380

Capital outlay 764,312 598,020 2,500 25,570 1,390,402 1,390.402
Debt selVice:

Principal 707,710 707,710 350,000 1,057.710
Interest and fiscal charges 250,637 --- --- --- --- --- --- --- 250,637 .-B.&l! ---- 8,318~ 340,973

Tota} ex?enditur<!s 3,139,039 815,612 2.500 39~ 2,717 ___ 61.104 --.-llli. ___ 5.056 4,034,500 432,018 ~ 8,318~ 4,548,829

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues
over expenditures (1,187,118) (365,775) 2,926 14,193 ~~--- 84,113 ~ 29,537 ~ (1,406,238) (363,271) 423,8.5 4,490 428,335 (1,341,174)

Other financing sources (uses);
Transfers in 3,041.519 1,166,642 20,187 4.228.348 420,909 4,64~,257

Transfers out --- ~---- (20,187)~ --- (61,187) (3,060,102) -1.§J.JJ.2) -1.§J.JJ.2) (3,187,059)

TOlal other financing
sources (uses) 3.041.519 1,166,642 20,187 - ~---- ~ (30.000) ---- 4,167,161 (2,639,193) -1.§J.JJ.2) ~ 1,462,198

Netchange in fund balanoes 1,854,401 800,867 23,113 14.193 2,518 (2,717) 84,113 (20,412) (463) 5,310 2,760,923 (3,002,464) 358,075 4,490 362,565 \21,024

Fund balances (deficit), beginning 8,546,453 --- (19.006) 222,491 12,611 12,096 227,187 144,476 684,84~ 150,000 ~ 9,987,817 3,297,805 2,677,652 148,157 2,825,809 16,111,431

Fund balances (deficit), ending $ 10.400,854 $ 800,867 S 23,113 S (4.813) $225,009 S 9,894 $12,096 $ 311,300~~ S 150,000 ~ $12,748,740 S 295,341 $ 3,035,727 $ 152.647 $3,188,374 $ 16,232,455
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - COMMUNITY REDEVELOP:MENT AGENCY FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:

County shared revenue
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Community redevelopment
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Prin9ipal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures

Other fmancing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Appropriated fund balance

Total other fmancing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning

Difference between GAAP and budgetary basis

Fund balance, ending

Variance
with Final

Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 2,881,834 $ 2,881,834 $ 1,616,344 $ (1,265,490)
300,000 300,000 328,577 28,577

7,000 7,000

3,181,834 3,181,834 1,951,921 (1,229,913)

1,667,387 1,809,162 1,374,190 434,972
11,067,681 10,940,759 977,711 9,963,048

684,270 684,270 707,710 . (23,440)
274,080 274,080 250,637 23,443

13,693,418 13,708,271 3,310,248 10,398,023

(10,511,584). (10,526,437) (1,358,327) 9,168,1 10

3,342,339 3,342,339 3,041,519 (300,820)
(515,000) (515,000) 515,000

...._lzfi841..~45 7,699,098 (7,699,098)

10,511,584 10,526,437 3,041,519 (7,484,918)

$ - $ 1,683,192 $ 1,683,192

8,546,453

171,209

$10,400,854
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Golf Course Fund - To account for the operation and maintenance of the municipal golf course.

Stormwater Fund - To account for the operation and maintenance of the stormwater utility system.

Refuse Collection and Disposal Fund - To account for the provision of solid waste removal for the
residents of the service area. All activities to provide such service are accounted for, including collection
and disposal.
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$ 30,101 $ 89,173 $ 540 $ 119,814
3,923,797 3,923,797

220,386 655,272 875,658"
32,975 32,975

701,994 469,495 1,171,489
34,743 34,743

5,956 5,956

70,800 4,968,325 1,125,307 6,164,432

CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRlSE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Golf
Course

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid items

Total current assets

Storm­
water

Refuse
Collection

and
Disposal

Total
Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Investments
Capital assets:

Land
Land improvements
Buildings lL'1d structures
Plant and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Advances to other funds

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

197,848 197,848

1,193,360 1,193,360
1,222,473 2,242,585 9,883 3,474,941
1,698,336 1,698,336

999,594 1,165,479 3,257,373 5,422,446
(2,372,258) (807,384) (1,954,654) (5,134,296)

233,788 233,788

2,741,505 2,834,468 1,510,450 7,086,423

2,812,305 7,802,793 2,635,757 13,250,855

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts and contracts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Current portion of compensated absences
Current portion of capital leases
Current portion of landfill postclosure care costs

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefits
Capital leases payable
Advances from other funds
Landfill postclosure care costs

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

16,446
24,559

684,833
12,719
29,060

767,617

64,234
14,913
35,805

770,126

885,078

1,652,695

47,903

414,457

462,360

462,360

14,672
40,200

1,069,632
103,373
267,248

30,000

1,525,125

73,137
29,827

967,729
449,259

60,000

1,579,952

3,105,077

79,021
64,759

2,168,922
116,092
296,308

30,000

2,755,102

137,371
44,740

1,003,534
1,219,385

60,000

2,465,030

5,220,132

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for landfill postclosure care
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net assets
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2,676,640 2,600,680

(1,517,030) 4,739,753

$1,159,610 $ 7,340,433

1,012,498
197,848

(1,679,666)

$ (4~9,320)

6,289,818
197,848

1,543,057

$ 8,030,723



CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEIv1BER 30,2008

Refuse Total
Collection Nonmajor

Golf Storm- and Enterprise
Course water Disposal Funds

Operating revenues:
Charges for services $1,921,702 $1,651,158 $4,678,227 $8,251,087

Total operating revenues 1,921,702 1,651,158 4,678,227 8,251,087

Operating expenses:
Cost of services 1,703,997 1,015,590 3,458,681 6,178,268
General and administrative 169,104 79,417 198,543 447,064
Depreciation 146,429 212,242 249,077 607,748

Total operating expenses 2,019,530 1,307,249 3,906,301 7,233,080

Operating income (loss) (97,828) 343,909 771,926 1,018,007

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 4,249 130,256 5,537 140,042
Interest expense (26,296) (61,243) (8.7,53.9)
Intergovernmental revenue 12,616 12,616
Other 26,012 26,012

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (9,431) 130,256 (29,694) 91,131

Income (loss) before transfers (107,259) 474,165 742,232 1,109,138

Transfers in 3,060,102 3,060,102
Transfers out (198,543) (167,700) (461,708) (827,951)

Change in net assets (305,802) 3,366,567 280,524 3,341,289

Net assets (deficit), beginning 1,465,412 3,973,866 (749,844) 4,689,434

Net assets (deficit), ending $1,159,610 $7,340,433 $ (469,320) $8,030,723
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENT'Ero'RISE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services provided
Other cash recevied

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Due from other funds
Due to other funds
Transfer from other funds
Transfer to other funds

Net cash provided by (used in) non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related fmancing activities:
Acquisition and construction ofcapital assets, net
Due to other funds
Payments made on advances from other funds
Payments received on advances to other funds
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on advance
Interest paid on capital debt
Grant proceeds

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales/maturities of investments
Purchases of investments
Interest and dividends receh'ed

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Reconciliation ofoperating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Other non-operating income
Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid items
Inventories
Accounts and contracts payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefits
Landfill postc!osure care costs

Total adjustments
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Supplemental disclosure ofnoncash in,'esting activities:
Increase in fair market value of investments
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Refuse Total
Collection Nonmajor

Golf Storm- and Enterprise
Course water Disposal Fun.91

$1,921,702 $1,701,958 $4,664,865 $8,288,525
(1,106,805) (988,286) (1,669,952) (3,765,043)

(672,194) (1,755,784) (2,427,978)
(169,104) (79,417) (198,543) (447,064)

26,012 26,012

(26,401) 634,255 1,066,598 1,674,452

15,285 (117,253) (135,395) (237,363)
283,648 98,590 (73,177) 309,061

3,060,102 3,060,102
(198,543) (167,700) . (461,708) (827,951)

100,390 2,873,739 (670,280) 2,303,849

(63,309) (.202,355) (18,177) (283,841)
46,000 46,000

(45,703) (59,106) (104,809)
28,443 28,443

(27,630) (257,299) (284,929)
(22,259) (8,993) (31,252)

(4,037) (52,250) (56,287)
12,616 12,616

(150.322) (127,912) (395.825) (674,059)

101,473 101,473
(3,391,507) (5,537) (3,397,044)

4,870 100,540 5,537 110,947

106,343 (3,290,967) (3,184,624)

30,010 89,115 493 119,618

91 58 47 196

$ 30,101 $ 89,173 $ 540 $ 119,814

$ (97,828) $ 343,909 $ 771,926 $1,018,007

146,429 212,242 249,077 607,748
26,012 26,012

50,800 (13,362) 37,438
(5,956) (5,956)
1,465 1,465

(52,880) 27,304 (15,230) (40,806)
(23,250) 13,846 (9,404)

(9,294) 34,502 25,208
14,913 29,827 44,740

(30,000) (30,000)

71,427 290,346 294,672 656,445

$ (26,401) $ 634,255 $1,066,598 $1,674,452

$ - $ 6,564 $ - $ 6.564
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Insurance - Was established to enable centralized oversight, management and funding of the City's
insurance coverage, deductibles and uninsured risks.

Information Technology - Was established to centralize oversight, management and funding of the
City's computer network, telephone and internet communication system.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Total
Internal

Information Service
Insurance Technology Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 747,919 $ 55,54? $ 803,466
Investments 53,017 53,017
Accrued interest receivable 359 359
Due from other funds 1,217,114 185,264 1,402;378

Total current assets 2,018,409 240,811 2,259,220

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Plant and equipment '80,594 80,594
Accumulated depreciation (63,116) (63,116)

Advances to other funds 335,063 335,063

Total noncurrent assets 335,063 17,478 352,541

Total assets 2,353,472 258,289 2,611,761

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts and contracts payable 4,540 51,470 56,010
Accrued liabilities 9,993 9,993
Due to other funds 150,000 150,000
Current portion of compensated absences 16,760 16,760

Total current liabilities 4,540 228,223 232,763

Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences 16,722 16,722

Total liabilities 4,540 244,945 249,485

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 17,478 17,478
Unrestricted 2,348,932 (4,134) 2,344,798

Total net assets $2,348,932 $ 13,344 $2,362,276
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Total
Internal

Information Service
Insurance Technology Funds

Operating revenues:
Charges for services $4,908,966 $1,268,844 $6,177,810

Total operating revenues 4,908,966 1,268,844 6,177,810

Operating expenses:
General and administrative 3,641,735 1,402,738 5,044,473
Depreciation 2,497 2,497

Total operating expenses 3,641,735 1,405,235 5,046,970

Operating income (loss) 1,267,231 (136,391) 1,130,840

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 13,263 13,263
Other income 80,918 80,918

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 94,181 94,181

Income (loss) before transfers 1,361,412 (136,391) 1,225,021

Transfers in . 19,071 19,071
Transfers out (390,000) (150,000) (540,000)

Change in net assets 971,412 (267,320) 704,092

Net assets, begim1ing 1,377,520 280,664 1,658,184

Net assets, ending $2,348,932 $ 13,344 $2,362,276
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Other cash received

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

Due from other funds
Due to other funds
Transfer from other funds
Transfer to other funds

Net cash provided by (used in) non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition of capital assets
Due to other funds
Payments received on advances to other funds

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Interest and dividends received

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating (income) loss to net cash
used in operating activities:

Depreciation
Other non-operating income
Change in assets and liabilities:

Prepaid items
Accounts and contracts payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Supplemental disclosure ofnoncash investing activities:
Increase in fair market value of investments
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Total
Internal

Infonnation Service
Insurance Technology Funds

$ 4,908,966 $1,268,844 $ 6,177,810
(2,079,817) (1,068,793) (3,148,610)

(346,525) (346,525)
80,918 80,918

2,910,067 (146,474) 2,763,593

(1,194,968) 9,622 (l,185,346)
(611,200) (611,200)

19,071 19,071
(390,000) (l50,000) (540,000)

(2,196,168) (121,307) (2,317,475)

(J 9,975) (19,975)
150,000 150,000

22,851 22,851

22,851 130,025 152,876

(2,085) (2,085)
13,216 13,216

11,131 11,131

747,881 (137,756) 610,125

38 193,303 193,341

$ 747,919 $ 55,547 $ 803,466

$ 1,267,231 $ (136,391) $ 1,130,840

2,497 2,497
80,918 80,918

1,561,022 1,561,022
896 (12,648) (11,752)

991 991
(923) (923)

1,642,836 (l0,083) 1,632,753

$ 2,910,067 $ (146,474) $ 2,763,593

$ 79 $ - $ 79
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Pension Trust Funds

Employee's Retirement System Pension Fund - To account for the accumulation of resources
to be used for retirement annuities of all employees at appropriate amounts and times in the
future. Resources are provided by employee and employer contributions, determined by an
actuarial study, and investment earnings.

Police Officers' Relief and Retirement System Pension Fund - To account for the
accumulation of resources to be used for retirement benefits for police officers. Resources are
provided by annual employee and employer contributions and investment earnings. Individual
participation is based upon years of service. Individuals may withdraw their equity upon
retirement.

Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund - To account for the accumulation of resources to be used for
retirement benefits for firefighters. Resources are provided by annual employee and employer
contributions and investment earnings. Individual participation is based upon years of service.
Individuals may withdraw their equity upon retirement.

Agency Fund

The Agency fund is used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments and/or other funds.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF PLAN NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Police
Officers' Firefighters' Total

Employees' Relief and Pension Pension
Retirement Retirement Trust Trust

System System Fund Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,019,857 $ 1,781,864 $ 702,881 $ 4,504,602

Investments at fair value:
U.S. Government and agency funds 5,146,417 1,677,735 6,578,583 13,402,735
Money market funds 1,662,444 1,662,444

Corporate bonds 21,391,365 7,086,482 2,511,961 30,989,808
Common stocks 23,741,229 8,987,294 10,713,929 43,442,452
Mutual funds 9,950,145 3,238,142 1,919,534 15,107,821

Total investments at fair value 60,229,156 20,989,653 23,386,451 104,605,260

Accrued interest, dividends and
contributions receivable 335,597 130,662 271,271 737,530

Due from broker 418,639 89,059 31,093 538,791
Prepaid items 4,827 2,899 4,470 12,196

Total assets 63,008,076 22,994,137 24,396,166 110,398,379

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities 259,805 96,233 248,626 604,664

NET ASSETS
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits $62,748,271 $22,897,904 $ 24,147,540 $109,793,715
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Police
Officers' Firefighters' Total

Employees' Relief and Pension Pension
Retirement Retirement Trust Trust

System System Fund Funds
ADDITIONS

Contributions:
Employer $ 2,836,692 $ 1,414,687 $ 1,803,667 $ 6,055,046
Plan members 2,183,539 609,341 942,247 3,735,127

Total contributions 5,020,231 2,024,028 2,745,914 9,790,173

Investment income:
Interest and dividends 2,709,302 931,194 1,223,627 4,864,123
Net change in fair value of investments (11,781,628) (4,119,517) (5,277,068) (21,178,213)

(9,072,326) (3,188,323) (4,053,441) (16,314,090)
Less investment expenses 346,880 145,476 186,535 678,891

Net investment income (loss) (9,419,206) (3,333,799) (4,239,976) (16,992,981)

Total additions (4,398;975) (1,309,771) (1,494,062) (7,202,808)

DEDUCTIONS
Pension payments 7,726,379 2,750,001 1,234,230 11,710,610
Contribution refunds 201,993 51,583 253,576
Administrative expenses 89,406 84,838 143,431 317,675

Total deductions 8,017,778 2,886,422 1,377,661 12,281,861

Change in net assets (12,416,753) (4,196,193) (2,871,723) (19,484,669)

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST
FOR PENSION BENEFITS

Net assets, beginning 75,165,024 27,094,097 27,019,263 129,278,384

Net assets, ending $62,748,271 $22,897,904 $24,147,540 $ 109,793,715
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,

2007 Additions Deletions 2008
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 138,754 $ 99,232 $ 64,422 $ 173,564
Accounts receivable 33,722 57,258 85,942 5,038
Due from State of Florida 395 395

Total assets $ 172,871 $ 156,490 $ 150,364 $ 178,997
-

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Deposit payable

Total liabilities

$ - $ 200 $ - $
172,871 ·60,166 54,240

$ 172,871 $ 60,366 $ 54,240 $
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STATISTICAL SECTION



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Lake Worth's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government's overall
financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time. These schedules include: 88

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local
revenue source, the property tax. 93

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's
current levels ofoutstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 98

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the City's financial activities take place. 105

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides and the
activities itperforms. 107

Sources: Unless other wise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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CITY OFLAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Governmental activities:
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt $ 15,560,753 $ 19,061,486 $ 20,317,332 $ 23,461,231 $ 25,517,534 $ 57,367,332
Restricted 7,028,110 8.,411,366 7,407,188 10,934,880 9,086,004 8,524,651
Unrestricted 14,745,582 14,147,796 14,354,348 14,894,093 19,992,913 19,705,440

Total governmental activities net assets 37,334,445 41,620,648 42,078,868 49,290,204 54,596,451 85,597,423

Business-type activities:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 61,801,733 74,636,125 77,689,949 76,919,792 84,541,855 69,885,540
Restricted 7,539,912 8,150,013 9,861,417 10,858,741 10,061,616 697,848
Unrestricted 21,488,402 17,836,790 22,700,280 44,187,657 43,283,356 68,963,586

Total business-type activities net assets 90,830,047 100,622,928 110,251,646 131,966,190 137,886,827 139,546,974

Total government:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 77,362,486 93,697,611 98,007,281 100,381,023 110,059,389 127,252,812
Restricted 14,568,022 16,561,379 17,268,605 21,793,621 19,147,620 9,222,499
Unrestricted 36,233,984 31,984,586 37,054,628 59,081,750 63,276,269 88,669,026

Total primary government net assets $ 128,164,492 $142,243,576 $ 152,330,514 $181,256,394 $ 192,483,278 $ 225,144,397

Note: Data not available prior to fiscal 2003 implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysisfor State and Local Governments
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

LAST stx FISCAL YEARS

(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 20Q7 200]

Expenses:
Governmental activities:

General government S 4,259,195 $ 5,134,986 $ 3,575,710 $ 3,357,391 4,332,707 3,595,041
Public safety 16,648,310 19,242,773 21,267,956 21,659,488 25,031,728 24,218,855
Physical environment 261,468 267,116 706,525 1,273,494 1,271,527 1,246,126
Transportation 1,395,107 1;499,033 4,495,261 4,539,585 1,984,675 2,062,494
Culture and recreation 3,261,240 3,736,504 3,544,092 4,034,193 4,564,347 6,376,490
Corrullunity redevelopment 258,129 434,412 669,255 1,661,848
Interest on long-term debt 344,335 272,278 304,387 378,695 389,229 353,096
Depreciation (portion not allocated to functions) 359,104 256,204

Total governmental activities ___~~_,.:i?&,Z?_2 .)Q,~_Q!l.,~24 _14,-h~~,06.Q __'JJ.E77,258 38,243,468 39,513,950

Business-type activities:
Electric 35,690,080 35,854,577 42,728,189 56,080,287 46,947,158 57,490,812
Water 4,053,014 7,740,328 5,412,204 6,535,047 7,531,626 9,6]9,267
Local sewer 7,332,854 8,807,491 9,506,528 9,692,162 5,558,581 5,262,561
Regional sewer * * * 5,082,477 5,723,073 5,\84,429
Golf course 1,283,116 1,671,319 1,972,107 2,17],315 2,190,970 2,023,117
Stormwater 591,904 539,692 701,522 815,732 8.36,700 ] ,307,365
Refuse collection and disposal 3,329,434 3,213,87\ 3,54\,3\4 3,774,872 5,247,076 3,8\0,654

Total business-type activities 52,280,402 57,827,278 63,861,864 84,151,892 74,035,184 84,698,205

Total primary government expenses $78,809,161 $88,236, 172 $98,013,924 $119,829,150 $ 112,278,652 $124,212,155

Program revenues:
Governmental activities:

Charges for services:
General government 5 51,398 $ 92,386 $ 1,764,704 $ 1,893,398 1,920,609 2,337,022
Public safcty 2,740,162 2,852,058 1,674,694 1,469,251 1,697,091 1,536,383
Physical environment 34,953 40,250 247,462 316,389 507,040 573,727
Transportation 303,028 508,574 468,584 488,994 457,878 367,892
Culture and recreation 329,308 280,800 193,724 151,109 \22,410 150,229
Community redevelopment 487,013

Operating grants and contributions 228,235 99,247 3,976,864 6,158,444 3,752,060 l,594,136
Capital grants and contributions 443,568 403,502 473,199 336,396 809,702 2,404,587

Total governmental activities program revenues 4,130,652 4,276,817 8,799,231 10,813,981 9,266,790 9,450,989

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:

Electric 42,738,419 42,738,419 45,186,261 60,786,014 52,706,489 57,474,801
Water 6,852,982 7,422,498 7,498,550 8,348,026 9,278,503 9,879,269
Local and Regiona] Sewer 5,517,120 6,665,757 7,144,828 5,175,080 5,265,096 5,277,244
Regional sewer * '" '" 3,804,657 4,135,849 3,481,035

Golf course 1,469,581 1,717,167 1,799,645 2,012,331 2,028,454 1,921,702
Stormwater 663,115 669,476 851,215 1,649,918 \,594,645 1,651,158
Refuse collection and disposal 3,447,310 3,522,791 3,564,745 4,334,017 4,544,261 4,678,227

Operating grants and contributions 41,803 491,000
Capital grants and contributions 2,882,666 12,407,774 8,407,889 10,912,745 2,020,250 1,421,392

Total business-type activities program revenues 63,571,193 75,143,882 74,453,133 97,064,591 82,064,547 85,784,828

Total primary government program revenues 567,701,845 $79,420,699 $83,252,364 $ 107,878,572 $ 91,331,337 $ 95,235,817

"'Local and regional sewer combined for 2003 - 2005
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(Continued)

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Fiscal Year
2004

Net (expense) revenue:
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total government net expense

General revenues and other change~ in net assets:
Governmental activities:

Taxes:
Property taxes
Franchise fees based on gross receipts
Utility service taxes
Gas taxes
Sales and use taxes (l)

Intergovernmental - unrestricted
Investment earnings - unrestricted
Miscellaneous
Interfund services provided (used)
Gain on sale ofcapital assets
Transfers

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Investment earnings - unrestricted
Miscellaneous
Interfund services provided (used)
Transfers

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Change in net assets:
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government

$(22,398,107) $ (26,132,077) $ (25,352,829) $ (24,863,277) $ (29,006,678) $ (30,062,961)
11,290,791 17,316,604 10,591,269 12,9]2,699 8,029,363 1,086,623

$(11,107,316) $(8,815,473) $(14,761,560) $(11,950,578) $(20,977,315) $(28,976,338)

Note: Data not available prior to fiscal 2003 implementation of Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments

(I) Prior to 2008, sales and use taxes were included as part of intergovernmental revenues.

-90-



CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERJ.'lMENTAL FuNDS

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

General fund:
Reserved $ 600,852 $ 538,068 $ 1,269,254 $ 804,996 $ 1,314,269 $ 2,487,554
Unreserved, designated 12,697,783 12,237,322 10,833,870 10,923,873 8,217,901 9,602,723
Unreserved, undesignated 1,951,503 2,577,541 2,388,948 5,274,865 7,523,232 4,044,241

Total general fund 15,250,138 15,352,931 14,492,072 17,003,734 17,055,402 16,134,518

All other governmental funds:
Reserved 478,625 516,695 12,696,247 8,535,530 6,314,898 5,372,993
Unreserved, designated 792,749 650,000 1,472,218 94,567
Unreserved, undesignated, reported in:

Special revenue funds 2,300,038 2,087,493 1,214,563 3,696,208 6,248,591 8,316,059
Debt service fund 3,840,418 3,900,425
Capital projects fund 409,029 1,906,753 2,129,875 1,719,784 2,075,724 2,448,836

Total all other governmental funds 7,028,110 8,411,366 16,833,434 14,601,522 16,111,431 16,232,455

Total governmental funds $ 22,278,248 $23,764,297 $31,325,506 $31,605,256 $33,166,833 $ 32,366,973

Note: Data not available prior to fiscal 2003 implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysisfor State and Local Governments .
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Revenues:
Property taxes $14,124,427 $15,781,492 $11,182,050 $ 13,162,483 $16,367,654 $15,730,702
Utility and other taxes 5,893,987 7,574,526 6,272,759 6,282,858
Licenses and pennits 756,755 1,060,942 1,374,814 1,533,893 1,585,733 2,023,268
Fines and forfeitures 987,168 879,097 978,151 1,104,399 1,152,089 830,403
Charges for services 1,714,926 1,834,029 1,764,131 1,448,133 1,740,069 1,754,532
Intergovernmental 4,461,088 5,938,973 8,458,181 10,845,569 8,685,590 9,463,236
Investment income 460,415 204,401 317,034 1,089,137 1,548,507 1,032,231
Rents and royalties 232,072 232,716 227,138 248,659
Miscellaneous 577,753 881,861 519,129 1,047,467 851,203 1,084,215

Total revenues 23,082,532 26,580,795 30,719,549 38,038,323 38,430,742 38,450,104

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 4,059,132 4,958,605 3,208,674 2,988,876 3,464,922 3,015,659
Public safety 15,590,552 17,948,641 20,515,766 21,500,274 23,950,597 25,732,096
Physical environment 258,899 265,511 543,581 587,369 545,716 446,465
Transportation 1,336,453 1,430,392 4,060,283 4,449,617 1,855,955 1,949,482
Culture and recreation 2,985,552 3,232,031 3,468,637 3,652,772 4,130,611 3,768,270
Community redevelopment 231,271 434,412 697,877 1,416,380
Capital outlay 2,154,802 3,200,162 4,891,397 8,858,645 5,899,197 4,650,066

Debt service:
Principal 1,335,000 1,405,000 1,480,000 432,338 1,109,545 1,151,410
Interest and other fiscal charges 346,483 274,555 243,888 438,058 395,928 360,127

Total expenditures 28,066,873 32,714,897 38,643,497 43,342,361 42,050,348 42,489,955

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (4,984,341 ) (6,134,102) (7,923,948) (5,304,038) (3,619,606) (4,039,851 )

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 7,872,329 10,286,140 9,589,199 8,841,954 9,549,961 11,075,191
Transfers out (2,430,378) (3,975,459) (3,511,524) (3,946,741 ) (4,368,778) (7,835,200)
Sale of capital assets 564,000 57,510

Note issued 8,000,000 708,000

Total other financing sources (uses) 5,441,951 6,310,681 14,641,675 .5,660,723 5,181,183 3,239,991

Net change in fund balances $ 457,610 $ 176,579 $ 6,717,727 $ 356,685 $ 1,561,577 $ (799,860)

Debt service as a percentage of
non-capital expenditures 5.99% 5.13% 4.46% 2.01% 4.15% 3.96%

Note: Data not available prior to fiscal 2003 implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

NET ASSESSED VALUE M'D ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Real Property Total
Fiscal Year Tax Total Net Direct

Ended Revenue Residential Personal Railroad Assessed Tax
September 30. Year Property Property Property Value Rate

1999 1998 $ 630,636 $ 53,680 $ 2,204 $ 686,520 lL18
2000 1999 668,030 58,267 2,344 728,641 11.08
2001 2000 696,299 56,110 2,217 754,626 11.32
2002 2001 750,021 57,860 2,132 810,013 11.32
2003 2002 844,802 60,239 2,170 907,211 10.48
2004 2003 960,195 74,988 2,908 1,038,091 10.13
2005 2004 1,101,296 69,814 2,993 1,174,103 9.91
2006 2005 1,460,926 66,821 2,511 1,530,258 8.70
2007 2006 1,944,042 69,320 2,713 2,016,075 8.38
2008 2007 2,876,405 78,083 3,483 2,957,971 7.51

Note: Property in the City is reassessed each year. Property is assessed at actual value, therefore,
the assessed values are equal to actual value. Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed value.

Sources: City ofLake Worth, Florida, Finance Department.
Palm Beach County Property Appraiser.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Tax Roll
Year Year

City ofLake Worth

General Debt Total
Operations Service City

Palm
Beach
County

Palm Beach
County
School
Board

OverlappingRates (1)
South Florida Florida

Water Wand
Management Navigation

District District

Palm Beach
County

Health Care
District

Children's
SerVices
Council

Total
Direct and

Overlapping
Rates

1999 1998 8.66 2.53 11.18 4.86 9.68 0.70 * 0.05 1.05 0.44 27.96
2000 1999 8.66 2.43 11.08 4.95 9.04 0.70 * 0.04 0.98 0.47 27.26
2001 2000 8.95 2.37 11.32 4.94 8.95 0.70 * 0.04 1.50 0.57 28.01
2002 2001 8.95 2.37 11.32 4.81 8.78 0.70 * 0.04 1.13 0.62 27.39
2003 2002 8.53 1.95 10.48 4.79 8.57 0.70 * 0.04 1.13 0.04 25.75
2004 2003 8.40 1.73 10.13 4.77 8.16 0.70 * 0.04 1.10 0.69 25.58
2005 2004 8.40 1.51 9.91 4.72 8.11 0.70 * 0.04 1.08 0.69 25.24
2006 2005 8.40 0.30 8.70 4.72 7.87 0.70 * 0.04 1.97 0.69 24.69
2007 2006 8.15 0.23 8.38 4.48 7.87 0.70 * 0.04 0.97 0.62 23.05
2008 2007 7.30 0.21 7.51 3.98 7.36 0.62 * 0.03 0.89 0.58 20.97

Note: All millage rates are based on $1 for every $1,000 of assessed value.

Sources: City ofLake Worth Finance Department and Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office.

(1) Overlapping rates are those oflocal and county governments that apply to property owners within the City ofLake Worth. Not all overlapping
rates apply to all City of Lake Worth property owners (i.e. the rates for special districts apply only to the proportion of the government's property
owners whose property is located within the geographic boundaries of the special district).

*Inc1udes the Everglades construction project.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2008 1999
Percent of Percent of

Total Total
Net City Net Net City Net

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Taxpayer Value Rank Value

Patricia A Tackett $ 14,347,202 1 0.49%
Palm Club Apartments LLC 11,503,671 2 0.39%
GP Centrepoint LLC 9,437,060 3 0.32%
GSG Investments 8,905,538 4 0.30%
Palm Beach Mobile Home Park LLC 7,124,371 5 0.24%
CSC Lake Worth LTD Partnership 6,806,471 6 0.23%
Lake Worth Comers LLC 6,675,726 7 0.23%
Lake Osborne Self Storage LLC 6,665,300 8 0.23%
Walgreens Co 5,701,913 9 0.19%
Arbor Square Realty Co LLC 5,452,611 10 0.18%

$ 82,619,863 2.79%

One 926 Real Estate, Inc $ 5,247,298 1 0.76%
Falconi Angelo 5,026,647 2 0.73%
Akers, Kathryn J 3,354,312 3 0.49%
Southern Bell Telephone and Company 3,159,681 4 0.46%
Sutton Town & Country 3,000,000 5 0.44%
Akers, Wayne L. 2,848,244 6 0.41%

Crystal Palms 2,810,567 7 0.41%

Gulfstream Hotel LTD 2,537,691 8 0.37%
GanotCorp 2,305,094 9 0.34%
Arbor Living Centers ofFlorida 2,225,144 10 0.32%

-
$ 32,514,678 4.74%

Source: Tax roll provided by Palm Beach County Property Appraisers Office.
e1) Total assessed valuations of $ 2,957,970,682 2008

686,520,000 1999
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Collected within
Total Taxes the Fiscal Year Total Collections

Fiscal Year Levied for ofthe Levy (1) Collections in to Date
Ended Fiscal Percent Subsequent Percent

September 30. Year Amount ofLeyy Year's Amount ofLevv

1999 $7,721,714 $7,610,107 98.55% $ 50,821 $7,660,928 99.21%
2000 8,104,757 7,822,232 96.51% 83,028 7,905,260 97.54%
2001 8,592,744 8,297,482 96.56% 96,414 8,393,896 97.69%
2002 9,207,212 9,101,471 98.85% 51,790 9,153,261 99.41%
2003 9,521,810 9,067,114 95.22% 52,711 9,119,825 95.78%
2004 10,529,683 9,670,092 91.84% 29,599 9,699,691 92.12%
2005 11,667,950 10,586,310 90.73% 37,442 10,623,752 91.05%
2006 13,325,225 10,919,319 81.94% 307,246 11,226,565 84.25%
2007 16,975,285 16,469,083 97.02% 'J.5,799 16,494,882 97.17%
2008 15,671,110 12,547,122 80.07% - 12,547,122 80.07%

Source: City ofLake Worth Finance Department and Palm Beach County Tax Collector's Office.

(1) Includes discounts taken by property tax payers.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Amount of
Special

Assessments
Recorded Special Total

Fiscal Due-During Assessments Outstanding
Year Fiscal Year Collected Assessments*

1999 $ 51,238 $ 281,518 $ 1,238,494

2000 831,526 251,294 1,818,726

2001 108,317 471,244 1,455,799

2002 40,206 261,613 1,234,393

2003 46,599 268,509 1,012,483

2004 10,472 243,110 779,845

2005 211,806 319,974 671,678

2006 179,524 221,431 629,771

2007 3,759 208,818 424,712

2008 130,620 102,530 452,802

Source: City of Lake Worth, Florida, Finance Department.

Note: All special assessments are levied by adoption of a City resolution. Upon adoption of such resolution,
a special assessment immediately becomes a lien upon the benefited property.

* Includes Floral Park, Island Estates and High Ridge Road Watermain Project.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Govermnental Activities Business-Type Activities
Fiscal Year General Percent of Debt

Ended Obligation Note Capital Revenue Note Capital Assessed Per
September 30. Bonds Payable Lease Bonds 0) Payable Leases Total Value (l) Capita (2)

1999 $10,010,000 $ - $1,173,338 $26,870,000 $10,570,000 $ 32,103 $48,655,441 7.29% 1,599
2000 8,860,000 - 1,174,230 23,330,000 10,200,000 - 43,564,230 6.35% 1,396
2001 7,660,000 - 1,239,245 20,510,000 9,800,000 - 39,209,245 5.38% 1,256
2002 6,395,000 - 1,233,090 18,775,000 93,750,000 80,377 120,233,467 15.93% 3,422
2003 5,060,000 - - 6,835,000 9,375,000 80,377 21,350,377 2.64% 603
2004 3,655,000 - - 4,985,000 8,915,000 59,868 17,614,868 1.94% 499
2005 2,175,000 8,000,000 - 70,095,577 - 33,049 80,303,626 7.74% 2,258
2006 1,855,000 8,000,000 595,662 71,632,245 12,867,931 1,858,765 96,809,603 8.25% 2,686
2007 1,520,000 7,315,733 505,383 66,017,189 7,324,284 1,584,771 84,267,360 4.57% 2,314
2008 1,170,000 6,608,023 411,684 65,066,291 6,810,257 1,299,842 81,366,097 2.75% 2,316

Note: Details regarding the City'S outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements

(1) Net of unamortized bond discount and deferred amount on refunding

(2) See the Schedule ofDemographic and Economic Statistics on page 95 for assessed value and population data.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Percentage of
Less Amounts Estimated Actual

Fiscal Year General Available in Taxable
Ended Obligation Debt Service Value of Per

September 30. Bonds Fund Total Property (1) Capita (2)

1999 $ 10,010,000 $ (3,115,780) $6,894,220 1.00% 221
2000 8,860,000 (3,2~2,420) 5,607,580 0.77% 5
2001 7,660,000 (3,380,212) 4,279,788 0.57% 122
2002 6,395,000 (3,726,178) 2,668,822 0.33% 75
2003 5,060,000 (3,840,418) 1,219,582 0.13% 35
2004 3,655,000 (3,900,425) (245,425) -0.02% (7)
2005 2,175,000 (3,925,600) (1,750,600) -0.15% (49)
2006 1,855,000 (4,165,678) (2,310,678) -0.15% (63)
2007 1,520,000 (4,375,913) (2,855,913) -0.14% (77)
2008 1,170,000 (295,341) 874,659 0.03% 25

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial
statements

(1) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property on
page 84 for property value data.

(2) See the Schedule ofDemographic and Economic Statistics on page 96 for population data.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT LIMIT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Taxable assessed valuation

Debt limit (25% of valuation)
Outstanding general obligation debt:

Series 1996 Bonds

Debt-contracting margin

Percentage debt-contracting limit remaining

$ 2,957,970,68~

$ 739,492,671

1,170,000

$ 738,322,671

99.84%

The City Charter pennits the City to pledge the funds or property taxing power of the City for the payment of
debt and bonds. This is subject to mandatory requirements that the total indebtedness of the City shall never
exceed an amount equal to 25% of the total assessed value of the taxable property within its corporate limits.

Source:
City of Lake Worth, Florida, Finance Department.
Palm Beach County Property Appraiser.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Government Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes:

Palm Beach County

Other debt:

Palm Beach School Board

Subtotal, Overlapping Debt
City of Lake Worth Direct Debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

Net
Debt

Outstanding

$ 537,526,705

33,940,189

Percentage
Applicable to

the City of
Lake Worth (1)

1.74%

1.74%

Amount
Applicable

to the
City of

Lake Worth

$ 9,361,540

591,101

9,361,540
1,170,000

$ 10,531,540

Sources: Data provided by the Palm Beach County Finance Department and the Palm Beach County Property
Appraiser.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the
City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is
borne by the residents and business

(1) The City of Lake Worth's share of overlapping debt of approximately 1%, is determined by the ratio of
assessed valuation of property of $2,957,970,682 to the total assessed value of taxable property in the
overlapping unit of$169,842,589,840
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Less Net Debt Debt
Ended Sewer Operating Available Service Service

September 30. Revenue (1) Expenses (2) Revenue Principal Interest Coverage

1999 $51,718,140 * $43,733,234 $ 7,984,906 $5,495,500 $2,187,908 3.65
2000 54,690,872 * 47,165,724 7,525,148 5,366,615 2,302,829 3.27
2001 61,581,661 * 54,710,472 6,871,189 4,513,650 2,141,700 3.21
2002 56,073,613 * 5,450,381 50,623,232 3,344,330 1,666,510 30.38
2003 5,517,120 4,996,087 521,033 1,850,000 340,030 1.53
2004 6,665,757 6,504,374 161,383 252,780 490,000 0.33
2005 7,144,828 7,313,702 (168,874) 423,610 2,417,843 (0.07)
2006 10,126,856 12,954,937 (2,828,081) 446,638 226,415 (12.49)
2007 9,868,012 9,234,509 633,503 2,137,516 346,533 1.83
2008 5,511,659 4,617,670 893,989 255,000 184,018 4.86

(Continued)

Source: City of Lake Worth Finance Department
(1) Gross revenue includes operating revenue, interest income and other non-operating revenue.
(2) Total expense exclusive of depreciation and interest on revenue bonds.

* Electric, Water, and Sewer amounts have been combined

-102-



CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE

(Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Less Net Debt Debt
Ended Electric Operating Available Service Service

September 30. Revenue (1) Expenses (2) Revenue Principal Interest Coverage

1999 $51,718,140 * $43,733,234 $7,984,906 $5,495,500 $2,187,908 3.65
2000 54,690,872 * 47,165,724 7,525,148 5,366,615 2,302,829 3.27
2001 61,581,661 * 54,710,472 6,871,189 4,513,650 2,141,700 3.21
2002 56,073,613 * 5,450,381 50,623,232 3,344,330 1,666,510 30.38
2003 49,591,401 1\ 36,871,062 12,720,339 2,310,000 471,280 26.99
2004 50,160,917 1\ 40,683,699 9,477,218 1,955,000 252,780 37.49
2005 45,186,261 38,515,178 6,671,083 350,000 809,233 8.24
2006 61,645,089 51,516,271 10,128,818 612,500 1,442,027 7.02
2007 53,824,950 42,524,553 11,300,397 8,405,431 1,366,520 8.27
2008 58,314,478 49,620,576 8,693,902 187,500 1,773,386 4.90

(Continued)

Source: City ofLake Worth Finance Department
(l) Gross revenue includes operating revenue, interest income and other non-operating revenue.
(2) Total expense exclusive of depreciation and interest on revenue bonds.
* Electric, Water, and Sewer amounts have been combined
1\ Electric and Water amounts have been combined
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE

(Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Less Net Debt Debt
Ended Water Operating Available Service Service

September 30, Revenue 0) Expenses (2) Revenue Principal Interest Coverage

1999 $51,718,140 * $43,733,234 $7,984,906 $5,495,500 $2,187,908 3.65
2000 54,690,872 * 47,165,724 7,525,148 5,366,615 2,302,829 3.27
2001 61,581,661 * 54,710,472 6,871,189 4,513,650 2,141,700 3.21
2002 56,073,613 * 5,450,381 50,623,232 3,344,330 1,666,510 30.38
2003 49,591,401 A 36,871,062 12,720,339 2,310,000 471,280 26.99
2004 50,160,917 A 40,683,699 9,477,218 1,955,000 252,780 37.49
2005 6,667,162 3,717,052 2,950,110 350,000 809,233 3.65
2006 8,348,026 4,276,412 4,071,614 408,333 919,273 4.43
2007 10,578,241 5,218,130 5,360,111 6:37,500 1,366,520 3.92
2008 11,012,972 5,665,735 5,347,237 187,500 1,773,386 3.02

Source: City ofLake Worth Finance Department
(1) Gross revenue includes operating revenue and interest income.
(2) Total expense exclusive ofdepreciation and interest on revenue bonds.

* Electric, Water, and Sewer amounts have been combined
A Electric and Water amounts have been combined
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Assessed
Value Per

(Amounts Capita
Expressed in Assessed Unemployment

Year Population (l) Thousands) (2) Value Rate (3)

1999 31,209 $ 686,520 22 6.0%
2000 31,209 728,641 23 6.3%
2001 35,133 754,626 21 6.9%
2002 35,387 810,013 23 9.4%
2003 35,292 907,211 26 9.0%
2004 35,570 1,038,091 29 8.0%
2005 36,040 1,174,103 33 5.0%
2006 36,412 1,530,258 42 5.8%

2007 37,044 2,016,075 54 4.3%
2008 35,133 2,957,971 84 7.6%

Sources:
(1) University ofFlorida, Bureau of Econonllc Research
(2) Palm Beach County Property Appraiser
(3) U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics

Note: Population, median age and education level information are based on surveys conducted during
the last quarter of the calendar year. Personal income information is a total for the year.
Unemployment rate information is an adjusted yearly average.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

City of Lake Worth, Florida

Employer

City of Lake Worth
Lake Worth High
Wayne Akers Ford
Highland Elementary
Publix
Lake Worth Community Middle
North Grade Elementary
Barton Elementary

Employer

School board ofPBC
Palm Beach County
Tenet Healthcare Corp
HCA
Florida Power & Light Headquarters
Florida Atlantic University
Office Depot
Boca Raton Resort & Club
The Breakers
Boca Raton Conununity Hospital
State of Florida
Federal Government
Columbia Palm Beach Health Care System
Pratt & Whitney Aircraft
Intracoastal Health Systems, Inc
Flo SUIl, Inc

Total

2008
Employees Rank

487 1
330 2
134 3
122 4
117 5
114 6
114 7
99 8

--.!.2.U.

Palm Beach County, Florida

2008 1999
Percentage of Percentage of
Total County Total County

Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Emplovment

21,707 1 3.42% 17,000 1 3.79%

11,293 2 1.78% 9,000 2 2.01%
4,500 3 0.71%
3,411 4 0.54%
3,250 5 0.51% 2,300 10 0.51%
2,923 6 0.46% 3,100 8 0.69%
2,180 7 0.34%
2,200 8 0.35%
2,300 9 0.36%
1,860 10 0.29%

8,800 3 1.96%
5,900 4 1.32%
4,000 5 0.63%
4,000 6 0.89%
3,200 7 0.71%
2,500 9 0.56%

55,624 8.77% 59,800 13.07%

Sources; Business Development Board of Palm Beach County.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Number of employees:

General government - - - - - - 84 87 89 74
Public safety - - - - - - 186 185 196 197
Physical environment - - - - - - 5 5 4 3
Transportation - - - - - - 18 14 11

Culture and recreation - - - - - - 70 69 61 59
Community redevelopment - - - . - - 3 4 3 2
Electric - - - - - - 83 85 82 82
Water and sewer - - - - - - 38 38 42 40
Refuse - - - - - 34 32 32 30-- -- -- -- -- --, -- -- -- --

Total full time employees - - - - - - 521 519 520 487

Source: City ofLake Worth Finance Department

Note: Employee information for years prior to 2005 could not be provided
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTIONIPROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCALYEARS

FunctionIProgram 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Public safety:

Police:
Police personnel and officers (2) 145 150 155 146 146 146 146 131 127 127
Police calls for service 54,971 56,160 54,040 56,001 53,674 51,749 57,050 54,416 48,054 35,773
Parking violations 5,863 990 - 8,849 8,387 8,792 10,169 10,106 6,494 1,077
Traffic violations 15,986 21,373 18,062 20,133 16,468 12,990 16,541 14,715 10,071 9,212

Fire:
Fire personnel 68 64 64 64 64 64 64 154 61 61
Fire alarms answered • • • * • • • 222 179 239
Fire inspections perfonned • • • * • • • 2,109 1,108 2,200

Planning and zoning:
Building permits issued - Residential (1) 2,404 2,641 2,531 3,499 3,604 4,266 5,838 5,239 3,198 2,090
Building permits issued - Commercial (1) 809 571 801 746 751 580 584 599 699 1,041

Culture and recreation:
Golfcourse - attendance 77,875 79,047 74,525 74,525 90,614 65,527 58,228 63,572 59,239 o/a
Swimming pool- attendance 34,204 30,880 27,268 27,268 27,690 27,690 14,323 16,163 * o/a
Fishing pier -attendance 127,419 150,865 152,372 152,372 145,044 127,568 2,100 (3) (3) (3)
Public 1Jbrary:

Circulation, all media 86,962 80,758 81,622 59,522 120,240 120,240 120,240 81,421 79,284 83,336
Patrons registered 9,792 13,236 6,798 10,221 12,962 12,962 14,263 16,781 19,579 20,460
Patrons registered - inside City 8,215 8,215 5,169 7,581 9,558 9,558 10,952 12,671 14,499 15,205

Utility system
Water:

Total number ofbills 11,878 12,056 11,189 1l,261 13,099 12,903 13,269 13,109 13,295 150,843
Number ofunits billed 192,638 205,811 120,766 131,923 195,561 229,067 203,768 213,033 227,970 1,819,050
Total amount billed .$389,994 $425,009 .$309,897 .$312,795 .$ 537,211 .$ 676,308 $ 545,675 $ 735,160 .$ 976,155 9,695,764
Average selling price .$ 2.0245 .$ 2.0224 .$ 2.5660 $ 23710 $ 2.7470 .$ 0.2836 $ 2.7502 .$ 3.4509 .$ 4.2819 3.5400
Average bill .$ 32.83 .$ 27.47 .$ 27.70 .$ 27.78 .$ 41.01 .$ 52.41 .$ 361.67 .$ 56.08 .$ 73.42 64.28
Number ofconnections * * • * • * 11,252 12,898 13,062 12,570
Water main breaks * • • • • • * 32 24 22

Sewer:
Total number ofbills 10,974 11,050 12,181 12,312 11,546 11,429 11,597 12,016 11,983 137,800
Number ofunits billed 117,471 139,629 198,291 196,664 121,623 131,516 139,947 128,721 1,548,752 1,214,722
Total amount bi.lled $294,326 $303,540 $463,288 $457,822 .$ 317.657 .$ 331,724 .$ 346,870 .$ 441,674 .$ 5,549,999 .$ 4,947,558
Average selling price .$ 2.5055 .$ 2.1739 .$ 2.3235 .$ 22948 .$ 2.6118 .$ 2.5223 $ 2.4786 .$ 3.4312 .$ 3.5835 4.0729
Average bill .$ 26.82 $ 35.25 $ 38.03 $ 37.19 .$ 27.51 .$ 29.02 $ 29.91 .$ 36.75 $ 38.60 35.90
Number connections-local sewer 10,990 10,990 11,153 11,252 11,252 11,252 11,252 12,016 11,709 11,387

(COntinued)

Sources: Various City Departments
Note: Indicators are not available for the general government function
(1) Includes new units and improvements to existing units.
(2) Includes part-time employees.
(3) Fishing pier closed during fiscal year
·Information unavailable
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCITONIPROGRAM (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

FunctionlProgram 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 .2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Electric:

Residential customers:
Total number ofbills-R 21,008 21,337 21,326 21,410 21,819 22,103 22,360 22,834 23,217 21,931
Number ofunits billed-R 23,858,294 24,449,558 25,859,439 26,850,876 25,321,571 26,627,595 32,385,122 21,844,047 30,439,162 19,864,899
Total amount billed-R $2,147,278 $2,539,481 $ 2,812,624 $ 2;499,834 $2,435,34() $ 2,566,148 $3,059,316 $2,007,121 $ 2,604,597 $ 2,248,735
Average selling price-R $ 0.0900 $ 0.1038 $ 0.1087 $ 0.0931 $ 0.0962 $ 0.0964 $ 0.0948 $ 0.0919 $ 0.0856 0.1132
Average bill-R $ 102.21 $ 119.02 $ 131.89 $ 116.76 $ 111.62 $ 116.10 $ 136.82 $ 87.90 $ 112.18 102.53

Commercial customers:
Total number ofbills-C 2,971 3,008 3,073 3,075 2,952 2,943 2,918 3,132 3,163 2,889
Number of units billed-C 7,292,454 8,177,943 8,263,723 8,862,755 8,508,396 23,632,519 10,952,574 8,941,266 15,083,570 9,830,563
Total amount billed-C $ 744,061 $ 944,285 $ 996,731 $ 941,608 $ 921,389 $ 2,064,660 $1,141,489 $ 923,404 $ 1,323,690 $ 914,662
Average selling price-C $ 0.1020 $ 0.1154 $ 0.1206 $ 0.1062 $ 0.1083 $ 0.0874 $ 0.104~ $ 0.1032 $ 0.0878 0.0930
Average bill-C $ 250.44 $ 313.92 $ 324.35 $ 306.21 $ 312.12 $ 701.55 $ 391.19 $ 294.83 $ 418.54 316.61

Private area lighting:
Total number ofbiIls-P 847 835 823 807 742 692 644 594 622 604
Number ofunits billed-P 206,674 206,720 210,023 204,870 99,086 95,340 99,644 91,759 202,116 98,277
Total amount billed-P $ 30,383 $ 33,195 $ 34,547 $ 30,926 $ 20,056 $ 19,400 $ 17,270 $ 13,791 $ 17,928 $ 16,354
Average selling price-P $ 0.1470 $ 0.1605 $ 0.1644 $ 0.1509 $ 0.2024 $ 0.2035 $ 0.1733 $ 0.1503 $ 0.0887 $ 0.1664
Average bill-P. $ 35.87 $ 39.75 $ 41.98 $ 38.32 $ 27.03 $ 28.03 $ 26.82 $ 23.22 $ 28.81 $ 27.10

Commercial-demand:
Total number ofbills-D 90 91 94 98 98 98 95 91 85 84
Number ofun it~ billed-D 6,410,973 8,174,352 7,635,196 7,941,478 5,279,001 11,395,799 7,316,879 5,987,995 4.798,856 5,412,900
Total amount billed-D $ 558,582 $ 784,059 $ 796,737 $ 723,234 $ 560,406 $1,031,093 $ 708,256 $ 433,037 $ 544,312 $ 733,016
Average selling price-D $ 0.0871 $ 0.0959 $ 0.1043 $ 0.0910 $ 0.1062 $ 0.0905 $ 0.0968 $ 0.0723 $ 0.1134 $ 0.1354
Average bill-D $ 6,206.47 $ 8,616.03 $ 8,475.93 $ 7,379.94 $ 5,718.43 $ 10,521.36 $ 7,455.33 $ 4,758.65 $ 6,372.43 $ 8,717.73

Street lights:
Total number ofbills-SL 8 8 8 8 8 6 6 6 7 7
Number ofunits billed-SL 178,894 176,424 176,512 176,916 187,566 181,278 180,424 182,877 398,431 191,696
Total amount billed-SL $ 26,031 $ 28,173 $ 29,076 $ 26,772 $ 26,960 $ 25,846 $ 25,635 $ 24,794 $ 28,951 $ 26,536

Average selling price-SL $ 0.1455 $ 0.1596 $ 0.1647 $ 0.1513 $ 0.1437 $ 0.1426 $ 0.1421 $ 0.1356 $ 0.0727 $ 0.0115

Average bill-SL $ 3,253.88 $ 3,521.63 $ 3,634.50 $ 3,346.50 $ 3,370.00 $ 4,307.67 $ 4,272.55 $ 4,132.33 $ 3.903.54 $ 3,836.49

Solid waste:
Residential accounts '" '" * '" '" * '" 10,808 10,507 10,269
Commercial accounts .. + .. ... '" '" * 918 1,097 1,118

Sources: Various City Departments
Note: Indicators are not available for the general government function
(l) Includes new units and improvements to existing units.
(2) Includes part-time employees.
(3) Fishing pier closed during fiscal year
*Information unavailable
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

CAPlTALASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTIONIPROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

FunctionIProgram 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Genernl government:
Number ofgenernl government buildings

Public safety:
Police:

Police stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Patrol units * * * * * * * 35 35 35
Fire:
Fire stations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Transportation:
Miles ofstreets:

Streets - paved 101.20 101.20 101.66 101.66 101.66 101.66 101.66 101.66 101.66 101.66
Streets - unpaved 17.76 17.76 17.03 17.03 17.03 17.03 17.03 17.Q3 17.Q3 17.03

Number ofstreet lights 1,431,152 1,411,392 1,412,096 1,415,328 1,500,528 1,087,668 1,082,544 1,265,421 1,265,421 1,265,421

Culture and recreation:
Parks 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18
Parks acreage 266.55 266.55 266.55 266.55 266.55 266.55 266.55 266.55 266.55 266.55
Tennis courts 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Baseball/softball fields 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
Indoor/outdoor basketball courts 2 6 14 18 18 18 18 18 18 18
Public boat ramps 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Community centers 2 i 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Municipal gym - - 1 1 I I 1 1 1 1
Golfcourse 1 1 I I I 1 I 1 I I
Swimming pool I I 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Fishing pier 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Shuffleboard I 1 1 1 I 1 1 1 1 1
PUblic hl>rary 1 1 I 1 1 I

Utility system:
Miles ofmains * * * * '" '" '" * * 167
Fire hydrants - City ofLake Worth 536 536 620 620 620 620 620 620 620 684
Fire hydrants· Outside City ofLake Worth '" * '" * * * * '" '" 243
Maximum daily capacity '" '" * '" '" '" * * * 12,900

Solid waste:
Collection trucks * * * * '" * * 29 27 27

WatJ:r system:
Total wells 12 12 12 14 14 14 14 14 14 18

Usable wells 12 12 14 12 12 12 12 12 12 12

Miles ofwater lines 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 167

Sewer system:
Miles ofsewer lines 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 99

Electric system:
Generating plants 1 1 1 1 1 I 1 1 1 1
Miles ofdistribution lines 147 147 147 147 147 147 147 147 147 147

Sources: Various City Departments
*Information is unavailable
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MARCUM
RACH LI N
ACCOUNTANTS A ADVISORS

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City of Lake Worth, Florida

We have audited the [mancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation (including the Community Redevelopment
Trust Fund) of City of Lake Worth, Florida (the City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2008,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated September 28, 2009. Our report was modified to include a reference to other auditors. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and
the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the financial statements of the
Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund, as described in our report on the City's financial statements. This
report does not include the results of other auditors' testing of internal control over fmancial reporting or
compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and perfonning our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
fmandal statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City's internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over fmancial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below,
we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over fmandal reporting that we consider to be
significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report fmancial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there
is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the City's financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control. We consider the
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Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City ofLake Worth, Florida
Page Two

deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, as items 08-01
through 08-07, to be significant deficiencies in internal control over fmancial reporting.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the City's internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over fmancial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the significant deficiencies
indicated above, we consider items 08-01 through 08-07 in the accompanying schedule of fmdings and
questioned costs to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's fmancial statements are free of
material misstatement, we perfonned tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do no express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of
fmdings and questioned costs as items 08-12 through 08-15.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the City in the accompanying schedule
of fmdings and questioned costs.

The City's responses to the fmdings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City's responses and accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Commission, management,
federal and state awarding agencies and pass~through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

a division ofMarcum LLP
West Palm Beach, Florida
September 28, 2009
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MARCUM
RACH LI N
ACCOUNTANTS ... ADVISORS

Management Letter in Accordance with the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida

Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City of Lake Worth, Florida

We have audited the fmancial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information (including the Community Redevelopment
Agency) of the City of Lake Worth, Florida (the City) as of and for the year ended September 30,2008
and have issued our report thereon dated September 28,2009. We did not audit the fmancial statements
of the Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund, which represents 17.95% and (13.95%), respectively, of the total
assets and revenues of the aggregate remaining fund information. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as
they relate to the amounts included for the Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund, is based on the report of the
other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. We have issued our Report of Independent Certified
Public Accountants on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters,
Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on Compliance and on Internal Control over
Compliance Applicable to Each Major Federal Awards Program and the Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated September 28, 2009,
should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the
Auditor General, which governs the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of
Florida. This letter includes the following information, which is not included in the aforementioned
auditor's reports or schedule:

• Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address significant fmdings and recommendations made in
the preceding annual fmancial audit report. Corrective actions have been taken to address
significant fuidings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report
except as reported in the accompanying summary schedule ofprior audit fmdings.

• Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to include a review of the
provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds. In
connection with our audit, we determined that the City complied with Section 218.415, Florida
Statutes.
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Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City of Lake Worth, Florida
Page Two

• Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management
letter any recommendations to improve fmancial management. In connection with our audit,
recommendations accompany this report in the schedule of fmdings and questioned costs.

• Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address violations of laws,
regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, that have an effect on the detennination of financial statement amounts that is less than
material but more than inconsequential. In connection with our audit, our findings accompany this
report in the schedule of fmdings and questioned costs.

• Section 10.554(1)(i)5., Rules of the Auditor General, provides that the auditor may, based on
professional judgment, report the following matters that are inconsequential to the detennination of
fmancial statement amounts, considering both quantitative and qualitative factors: (1) violations of
laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements or abuse that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, and (2) control deficiencies that are not significant deficiencies, including, but not
limited to; (a) improper or inadequate accounting procedures (e.g., the omission of required
disclosures from the fmancial statements); (b) failures to properly record financial transactions;
and (c) other inaccuracies, shortages, defalcations, and instances of fraud discovered by, or that
come to the attention ot: the auditor. In connection with our audit, our fmdings and
recommendations are disclosed in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

• Section 10.554(I)(i)6., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and
legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be
disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the fmancial statements. The
City has made these disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

• Section 10.554(1)(i)7.a., Rules of the Auditor General, requires a statement be included as to
whether or not the local governmental entity has met one or more of the conditions described in
Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific condition(s) met. In
connection with our audit, we detennined that the City did not meet any of the conditions
described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

• Section 1O.554(l)(i)7.b., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether the
annual financial report for the City for the fiscal year ended September 30) 2008, filed with the
Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in
agreement with the annual fmandal audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. In
connection with our audit, we detennined that these two reports were in agreement.
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Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City of Lake Worth, Florida
Page Three

• Pursuant to Sections 10.554(l)(i)7.c. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
fmancial condition assessment procedures. It is management's responsibility to monitor the City's
fmancial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations
made by management and the review of fmancial infonnation provided by same.

Pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, this management letter is a public record and its distribution is
not limited. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States require us to indicate that this
letter is intended solely for the infonnation of the Mayor, City Commission, management, and the Florida
Auditor General, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

~~....c,e.c.~.' ..
a division ofMarcum LLP
West Palm Beach, Florida
September 28, 2009
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MARCUM
RACH LI N
ACCOUNTANTS. ADVISORS

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on Compliance and on
Internal Control over Compliance Applicable to Each Major Federal

Awards Program

The Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City ofLake Worth, Florida

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Lake Worth, Florida (the City) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OME) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2008. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the
City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States; the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 0118 Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-I33 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the City's compliance with those requirements.

As described in items 08-20, 06-18 and 06-21 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs, the City did not comply with requirements regarding identification of the federal percentage of
participation in the acquisition of equipment and real property and requirements regarding the timely filing
of required reports for all federal programs. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our
opinion, for the City to comply with the requirements applicable to those programs.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the City complied, in all
material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal
programs for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008.
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Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City of Lake Worth, Florida
Page Two

Internal Control over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit; we considered the City's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness· of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over
compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the City's internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as defmed below. However, as discussed
below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control
deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is
more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control.
We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as item 08-19 to be a significant deficiency.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal controL We consider the
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance described.in the accompanying schedule of
fmdings and questioned costs as item 08-19 to be a material weakness.

The City's responses to the fmdings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule
of fmdings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City's responses and accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.
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Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City ofLake Worth, Florida
Page Three

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Commission, management,
and specific legislative or regulatory bodies and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

a division ofMarcum LLP
West Palm Beach, Florida
September 28, 2009
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITIJRES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

97.036 05-PA-G%-10-6Q-02-984 $ 1,870,475

Federal Agency Pass-Through GrantorlProgram Title

Department ofHomeland Security
Pass-through Florida Department Community Affairs

Public Assistance Grant

Federal
CFDA

Number Federal Grant Number
Federal

Expenditures

Department ofHousing and Urban Deve[-opment
Pass-through Palm Beach County Housing and Community
Development

Community Development Block Grant
Latona Avenue

Department ofJustfce
Edward Byrne Memorial Grant

U.S. Department o/Transportation
Pass thru Florida Department of Transportation
Lake Worth 1-95 Project

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Brownfields Assessment and Cleanup

Cooperative Agreement

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

14.218

16.579

20.600

66.818

B-05-UC-12-0004

2005-DJBX-1405

SC-08-13-03

BF-96462806-0

12,147

2,414

36,092

15,616

$ 1,936,744

See notes to schedule of expenditures offederal awards.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

NOTE TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity
of the City and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The infonnation in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-I33, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented
in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic
financial statements.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SUMMI\RY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

I. PRIOR YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND STATUS

The following addresses the status of financial statement findings reported in the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007 Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs.

Matters that are repeated in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs

• 07-01 - Financial Records and Closing Process (revised and included in current year comment 08-01) .
• 07-02 - Capital Assets (revised and included in current year comment 08-02)
• 07-03 - Grant Accounting (revised and included in current year comment 08-04)
• 07-04 - Encumbrances (revised and included in current year comment 08-08)
• 07-05 - Inventory - (revised and included in current year comment 08-05)
• 07-06 - Bond Covenant Compliance - (revised and included in current year comment 08-13)
• 07-08 - Fund Deficits (revised and included in current year comment 08-16)
• 07-09 - Finance Department Staffmg (revised and included in current year comment 08-18)
• 06-12 - Interfund Reimbursements (revised and included in current year comment 08-11)
• 06-13 - Excess Funds in the Debt Service Fund (revised and included in current year comment 08-01)

Matters that are not repeated in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs

• 07-07 - Investments
• 06-05 - Segregation ofDuties
• 06-15 - Retroactive Recording of Infrastructure
• 06-16 - GASB No. 45
• 04-13 - Customer Utility Deposits (revised and included in prior year comment 07-01)
• 04-09 - Business Contingency Plan

n. PRIOR YEAR FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS

The following addresses the status of federal award findings reported in the fiscal year ended
September 30,2007 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Matters that are repeated in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs

• 07-11 - Internal Controls over Compliance (revised and included in current year comment 08-20)
• 07-12 - Report Filing (Revised and included in current year comment 08-21)
• 06-18 - Capital Asset Identification
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SU1v1MARY SCHEDULE OF PRlOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
(Continued)

ID. PRIOR YEAR STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FINDINGS

The following addresses the status of state financial assistance findings reported in the fiscal year ended
September 30,2007 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Matters that are repeated in the accompanying schedule of [mdings and questioned costs

• 06-21 - Capital Asset Identification
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to be

nnaterialvveakJaess?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards Programs
Internal control over nnajor federal awards programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to be

material weakness?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal
awards programs:

Unqualified Opinion

X Yes No

Yes X No

Yes X No

X Yes No

Yes X No

Qualified Opinion

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Circular A-B3, Section .510(a)? X Yes No

Identification of major federal awards programs and state financial assistance projects:

Federal Awards Programs
U.S. Department ofHomeland Security:

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee for federal awards programs?
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

SECTION n- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Significant Deficiencies - Material Weaknesses

08-01 Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Criteria

Prudent policies include a formal closing process with supervisory Finance Department personnel being
responsible for the review of transactions and balances recorded. Accounting tasks such as monthly
reconciliations, cross-checks, and re"iews playa key role in proving the accuracy of accounting data and
financial information that comprise interim and year-end financial statements.

Condition

Our audit procedures included the performance of extensive procedures on the amounts recorded as
assets, liabilities, revenues, expenditures/expenses and fund balances/net assets among the various funds
of the City. Our findings are as follows:

• As a result of our audit procedures, an excessive amount of journal entries (85 journal entries in the
current year and in excess of 70 entries in the prior year) many of which were significant, were
required to be proposed by the auditors to ensure that the financial statements of the City were not
materially misstated. Also, there were in excess of 60 entries which were provided by the City as a
result of investigations by City personnel based on auditor inquiries. Additionally, numerous entries
were made to correct booldceeping errors and other adjustments that should have been made by the
Finance Department prior to providing the auditors with final trial balances.

• We noted that, in many instances, schedules detailing the various components of balance sheet
accounts were not in agreement with the account balances reflected in the general ledger.

• The beginning fund balance for the General Fund was not in agreement with the September 30, 2007
financial statements.

• At the commencement of our audit, we noted that the transfers in and transfers out between the
City's various funds were not in balance.

• We noted investments were recorded on the basis of settlement date as opposed to trade date as
required by generally accepted accounting principles. The auditors proposed, and the City recorded, a
$2.5 million adjusting journal entry to increase the investment balance and record the amount
payable to the broker.

• The Foreclosure Capital Projects Fund has acquired land which is being held for resale. We noted
that the City was not making any efforts to sell the properties or track them and their value. We also
noted that there were additional properties which were not identified and properly recorded.

• ill prior years, it was noted that the debt service fund was holding funds that could be utilized for
purposes other than future debt payments. These amounts were a result of excess millage from prior
years. ill the current year, in an effort to remove the excess funds, an entry was recorded which
transferred all of the funds out of the debt service fund and into the stonnwater fund. Upon auditor
inquiry, an adjusting entry was booked in the amount of approximately $300,000 to return funds to
the debt service fund that should not have been transferred.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

SECTION II- FINANCIAl, STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

• The revenues and expenses related to the Chapter 175 and 185 premium tax for the police and
firefighters pension funds was not properly recorded at year end. An entry was proposed by the
auditor and recorded by the City to adjust the books and records to reflect the proper amounts.

• Interest on the 2008 electric and water revenue bonds was not accrued as of the fiscal year end. This
accrual amounted to approximately $577,000 in each fund.

• We noted that amounts recorded in advance deposits in the electric fund totaling approximately
$280,000 were unchanged from prior years. Based upon our inquiries, City personnel investigated
these liabilities and determined that they were not valid.

• The DROP contributions were not recorded correctly in the pension funds and an adjustment was
made in the amount of approximately $739,000 in the police pension fund and $1.1 million in the
general employees' pension fund.

Effect

The lack of a formal closing process which incorporates a thorough review of account balances, journal
entries and supporting documentation by supervisory Finance Department personnel resulted in material
misstatements in amounts recorded on the books and records of the City. The current method for closing
the month end and year end is prone to error. As a result, reports presented to the Commission may not
be accurate and can result in erroneous decisions.

Cause

The primary cause of the conditions noted above is the lack of a formal closing process which provides
for a thorough review by supervisory Finance Department personnel of journal entries and supporting
documentation submitted by other City Departments to the Finance Department prior to recording in the
general ledger. Additionally, the excessive amount ofjournal entries is caused by the lack oftraining and
skill sets in Finance Department personnel who are responsible for maintaining the books and records as
well as the turnover over the past years.

Recommendation

We believe that a review and evaluation of transactions recorded at month end and year end should be
performed to ensure the validity of amounts recorded, as well as reduce audit time. We recommend a
detailed general ledger account analysis be performed on a monthly basis and reviewed by supervisory
Finance Department staff to ensure accurate recording of transactions. This review should include a
review of any subsidiary ledgers to ensure agreement with the general ledger account balance and
establishment of any necessary estimates. Further, all adjusting journal entries should be approved by a
designated supervisory Finance Department employee who possesses the appropriate skill set. Finance
Department supervisory personnel should also perform an analytical review of account balances with the
prior year balances prior to closing the books and records to facilitate detennining if significant variances
exist, the reasons that support the variance, and if any adjustments are required.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

SECTION Il- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

The City should consider developing written monthly and year end closing procedures. These
procedures should include timetables outlining appropriate due dates and instructions for schedules that
should be prepared. The closing procedures should be documented in a formal checklist that indicates
the individual responsible for the task, when it is due to be completed and when it is accomplished. The
procedures should also assign a supervisory Finance Department individual to review the schedules. We
also suggest that the Finance Department perform an analytical review of account balances with the prior
year balances prior to closing "the year end books and records to facilitate determining if significant
variances exist, the reasons that support the variance, and if any adjustments are required.

We further recommend that employees responsible for the books and records and approval of journal
entries be provided with more thorough training to improve and/or acquire different skills concerning the
complexities of accounting, year-end closing procedures, and the preparation of supporting schedules for
balances recorded in the general ledger at year-end. This training will lead to employees who are more
efficient, effective,and communicative with regard to accounting and financial matters. Also, future
financial statements will be more accurate and timely.

View ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The City did develop written procedures for closing of its financial records during 2007/08. These
procedures reflected initial steps to reflect duties and responsibilities of professional staff in the financial
records of a financial system that was being replaced on 10-1-08. Financial management is in the process
of preparing a more formal closing process for the City's new fmancial management system during
200911 O. Supervisory Finance Department personnel will be responsible for the review of transactions
and balances recorded in the fmancial records. Accounting tasks such as monthly reconciliation, cross­
checks, and reviews will continue to improve the accuracy of accounting data and fmancial infonnation
that comprise interim and year-end financial statements.

08-02 Capital Assets

Criteria

The establishment and maintenance of accurate accounting records for capital assets are necessary to
help assure that the City's property, plant and equipment are not stolen, misused or subject to undue wear
and tear. These records are a necessary element in an on-going governmental capital asset repair and
preventative maintenance program and enhance efforts to obtain optimum insurance coverage. In
addition, these records are needed for compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 34.

Condition

• A prior period adjustment in the amount of $29,022,643 was required to be recorded to restate the
opening capital assets reported in the governmental activities in order to capitalize infrastructure
assets and record accumulated depreciation for those assets acquired prior to October 1, 2002 in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 34.

-126-



CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINTIINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

SECTION n - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

• The improper calculation of capitalized interest in previous years~ combined with the failure to
transfer capitalized interest on completed projects to the correct asset category and record related
depreciation~ resulted in a prior period adjustment of $616~678 in the water fund and the business­
type activities.

• Capital asset roll-forward schedules initially provided~ which detailed the City's capital assets~ by
category, for each proprietary fund and the govermnental activities, as well as current year
depreciation and accumulated depreciation, were not accurate. We noted that the accumulated
depreciation and the current year depreciation expense was not allocated between the asset
categories, but rather was in a lump sum. We further noted that certain assets were not reflected in
the proper categories.

• In the 2008 fiscal year~ capital asset records were input into the new system purchased to maintain
capital asset records. We noted that, in several instances, useful lives were not properly input, and,
as a result, depreciation was calculated using the incorrect life. We further noted that acquisition
dates, in many instances, were also not accurately entered. Based on our analysis, adjustments were
required in several funds to reflect the proper depreciation expense for the current year.

• During the fiscal year~ the City sold capital assets at an auction. These assets could not be deleted
from the capital asset records because City personnel were unable to identify the assets in the capital
asset records.

Effect

Capital asset records which are not reliable could result in inaccurate financial reporting.

Cause

The cause is a lack of oversight and procedures to ensure that capital asset records are properly
maintained and reconciled to the amounts reflected in the books and records.

Recommendation

We recommend, based on the volume of capital assets held and annual transactions that a capital asset
software program should be used. Supervisory staff of the Finance Department should be taking an
active role in the oversight of the record maintenance and reporting in this area since the City's net
capital assets as of September 30, 2008~ were in excess of$150 million.

We recommend that work performed by personnel in the Finance Department be reviewed by supervisory
personnel on a monthly basis to ensure that all assets above the capitalization threshold are captured and
properly recorded in the records. A reconciliation should be performed to ensure the subsidiary ledger~

whether manual spreadsheet or software, are in agreement to the amounts reflected on the general ledger.
Furthermore, the supporting records should clearly segregate the capital assets and accumulated
depreciation by asset category to facilitate the reconci1iation~ as well as the preparation of the required
note disclosures in the fmancial statements.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

We further suggest that, during the ensuing year, the City perfonn an inventory or hire a consultant to
conduct an inventory of all machinery and equipment owned by the City to ensure the existence of all
capital assets currently being reported since it was noted that there are assets which the City has which
cannot be identified in the records.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

Supervisory staff of the Finance Department have taken an active role in the recording and oversight of
the record maintenance and reporting of the City's net capital assets as this was transitioned from the use
of externil accounting consultants using Excel spreadsheets to the use of the City's new fmancial
accounting system on 10-1-08. Staff and supervisory errors in the manual transition of the more than
8,000 asset records have been subsequently corrected by new staff members in the Department and will
not recur in future periods. Assignment of capital asset responsibilities to Finance Department staff will
be reviewed by supervisory persoIUlel to ensure that all assets are correctly captured and properly
recorded in the financial records. A reconciliation will be perfonned to ensure the subsidiary ledger of
the new financial software system is in agreement with amounts reflected on the general ledger. Asset
supporting records will segregate capital assets and accumulated depreciation by asset category to
facilitate the reconciliation, as well as the preparation of the required note disclosures in the fmancial
statements. The Finance Department does plan to engage a consulting firm to perform an inventory of all
City assets during 200911 0 to ensure the existence of all capital assets currently being reported.

08-03 Deposits

Criteria

The prime function of a properly executed bank reconciliation is to ascertain that the books and records
of the City and the records maintained by the depository are in agreement. The proper preparation of a
bank reconciliation is an effective control over the accuracy of the City's records. Prudent practices also
dictate that bank accounts in the general ledger should be reviewed to determine if they are in existence.

Procedures should be in place to ensure that for all bank accounts, a public depository identification and
acknowledgment form be obtained from each fmancial institution for each account. This signed
acknowledgment from the fmancial institution, must be kept on file at the City since it is mandatory for
filing a claim with the Chief Financial Officer of the State upon default or insolvency of a qualified
public depository. Without this fonn, if the qualified public depository defaulted or became insolvent,
funds in excess of FDIC will not be insured.

COllditioll

• The bank reconciliations for the General Fund bank account, the Community Redevelopment Agency
bank account and the Utilities bank account contained invalid reconciling items. We noted that each
of these accounts contained transfers between accounts as reconciling items, however, the transfers
never occurred. These transfers totaled approximately $1.9 million and resulted in audit adjustments
in numerous funds.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

SECTION ll- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

• We noted that there were balances reflected on the books and records for cash accounts that had been
closed out, as well as accounts that could not be identified.

• We noted that a public depository identification and acknowledgement form had not been obtained
for the Community Redevelopment Agency bank account which had a balance of approximately $5
million as of September 30, 2008. s such, the funds in excess of the FDIC level of $1 00,000 as of the
fiscal year end were not insured.

Cause

The cause of the conditions is a lack of a written closing process which incorporates a thorough review
by supervisory finance department personnel.

Effect

This can result in misstatements in the financial statements and/or possible fraud. Further, the failure to
obtain the public depository identification and acknowledgement form placed a substantial amount of
City deposits at risk.

Recommendation

We recommend that all reconciling items included on the bank reconciliations be reviewed to determine
their validity. All balances reflected on the books and records for cash should be validated.

We further recommend that the City implement procedures to ensure that the appropriate forms are
executed and obtained from each qualified depository for each account and file the public depository
identification and acknowledgement form with the bank when a new account is opened and ensure that a
signed copy is received from the bank for each account.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

All City bank reconciliations are reviewed and approved in writing each month by supervisory staff.
Balances reflected on the books and records for cash are validated and reconciled to the balances
reflected on the respective reconciliation. The cash transfer noted in this comment resulted from the
planned transition to a pooled-cash process of the new fmancial accounting system which will not recur.
The City has obtained and delivered appropriate fonus to the State for from each qualified depository for
each account. This State form was unknown to the City's financial management and has been corrected
through the identification of this year's audit.

08-04 Grant Accounting

Criteria

Grant accounting provides that since expenditures/expenses are the prime factor for determining
eligibility, revenue should be recognized when the expenditure/expense is incurred. If revenues are
received in excess of grant expenditures/expenses, those revenues should be deferred In order to
maximize cash flow, and enhance investment income, claim fonus for reimbursement should be filed on
a timely basis.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

SECTION n - FINANCIAL STATKMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

Condition

• We noted that the general fund's current year expenditures included approximately $487,000 of
FEMA related costs which were incurred in the prior year, and rolled forward into the current year.

• We noted that the current year FEMA receivable and related grant revenue was not correct in that the
revenue recorded did not correlate to the expenditures incurred, resulting in an adjustment of
approximately $257,000. Further, we noted that the failure to record a retainage payable of
approximately $242,000 related to the FEMA funded project resulted in the receivable and revenue
being misstated.

• We noted that a FEMA receipt of approximately $250,000 was recorded in the general fund rather
than in the electric and water funds where the related expenses were incurred.

Cause

Proper procedures are not in place to ensure that grant revenues are properly recorded, and that
reconciliations are performed between accounting records and amounts reported to grantors.

Effect

The failure to properlY record grant revenue can result in inaccurate financial statements. Further, the
failure to perform reconciliations between claims for reimbursement and the underlying accounting
records can result in inaccurate reporting to grantors.

Recommendation

It is recommended that procedures be implemented to ensure that all expenditures incurred for
reimbursable grants be monitored to ensure that the books and records reflect the proper related revenue.
As soon as a request for reimbursement is made, the information should be remitted to the Finance
Department to ensure proper recording on the books and records. All grant funds should be reviewed to
ensure that the proper receivables/deferrals are recorded in accordance with promulgated practices.
Supervisory Finance Depar1ment staff should perform a review of the City's books and records to ensure
that all transactions have been properly recorded.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

During 2008 City financial supervisory staff implemented a Grant Fund to more easily identify and
monitor expenditures incurred of reimbursable grants to ensure that the books and records reflect the
proper related revenue. This implementation was done with good intent but was poorly performed in
terms of its fmancinl accounting execution. Recent staff replacements will help to ensure that grant
funds are properly recorded and reviewed to ensure that the proper receivables/deferrals are recorded in
the financial records. The City's new Controller will review fmancial records to ensure that all grant
transactions have been properly recorded.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

SECTION n-FINA1~CIALSTATEMENT FJNDINGS (Continued)

08-05 Inventory

Criteria

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, inventory is to be reported at the lower of
cost or market value. In addition, inventory should be periodically reviewed for obsolescence.

Condition

While performing our audit procedures in the area of the Electric Fund inventory, it was noted that the
City is not addressing the amount of potential obsolete inventory. We noted that many quantities and
dollar amounts were unchanged from the prior year indicating that they could be obsolete. We also noted
that in various instances, quantities changed but prices did not. Currently included in inventory are items
that were originally purchased for specific projects that have not been completed or have been cancelled
but the inventory remains in the possession of the City.

Cause

The cause is a lack of oversight, by fully qualified Electric Fund personnel, to ensure City policies are
being implemented and maintained.

Effect

An overstatement of inventory results in an understatement of expenses as well as an overstatement of
net assets.

Recommendation

We recommend reviewing the procedures relating to inventory control to identify or add procedures of
oversight and matching the correct employee with the responsibility. Also, the City should have an
independent source evaluate the current inventory and then periodically review the inventory to ensure
the FIFO method is continuing to be followed and any special inventory ordered is being utilized or is
returned.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

Electric inventory identification and control is being moved to oversight by the Utility Director. The
Utility Director will develop procedures of oversight and matching the correct employee with the
responsibility for annual inventory of Utility inventory. The Utility Director will also recommend use of
an independent source to evaluate current inventory usefulness at year-end and review the inventory
disbursement process to ensure the FIFO method is continuing to be followed and any special inventory
ordered is being utilized or is returned.

08-06 Receivables

Criteria

Receivables should be reviewed and investigated on an ongoing basis to determine validity and
collectibility. The establishment of an allowance should not preclude the City from utilizing all available
collection measures.
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CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

SECTION II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

Condition

• We noted several receivable balances which have remained outstanding On the books and records for
periods in excess of one year, without an allowance. Based upon our inquiries, City personnel
investigated the items and in most instances determined that the amounts recorded were not valid.

• The electric fund reflected a prepaid amount of approximately $61,000 for insurance recoveries
anticipated relating to costs for lightning damage incurred in fiscal year 2007. Based upon our
inquiries, City personnel determined that claims were never submitted to the insurance company for
reimbursement. We also noted that the receivables of the electric fund included credit balances of
approximately $70,000. These credits were related to grant reimbursements which were credited to
the receivable accounts rather than being recorded as a revenue.

• We noted that the unbilled utility accruals were not calculated properly at year end. A journal entry
for approximately $436,000 was required to correct the errors in the calculation.

• A review of the East Central Regional Wastewater Treatment Facilities indicated that the City's
regional sewer fund was owed approximately $370,000. However, this amount was not reflected as a
receivable within the fund.

• We noted that during the current fiscal year, numerous receivables were written off amongst the
various City funds. We noted that there is no formal approval by the City Commission or City
Attorney for these write offs.

Cause

Controls are not ill place to review receivables periodically to determine whether or not they are valid.
Further, accruals are not being reviewed by supervisory personnel to determine whether or not the
accrual calculations are proper.

Effect

The effect is a potential misstatement of the amounts reflected as receivables, revenues and fund
balance/net assets in the fmancial statements. Without a policy for write offs, the Finance Department
has the ability to write off large amounts of receivables with authorization from either the City Attorney
or the City Commission.

Recommendation

We recommend that procedures be put into place where accounts receivable balances are reviewed at
least quarterly to determine validity and collectibility. Accrual calculations should be reviewed by
supervisory personnel prior to entry into general ledger. For receivables that are determined to be
uncollectible, the City should consider setting a dollar limit that requires written authorization by the
City Attorney's office, with approval by the City Commission, to write the amounts off the books and
records.

-132-



CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

SECTIONll-FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

We further recommend that the City closely monitor receivables that are greater than sixty days and that
although an allowance has been set up, the City continue to actively seek to recover those receivables.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The Finance Department has established procedures during 2008 where accounts receivable balances are
reviewed quarterly to determine validity and collectibility. An array of receivable balances recorded into
the general ledger in the prior year's general ledger will be transferred into the new [mancial system
subsidiary accounts during 2009110 to consolidate balances and improve monitoring. Revenue accrual
calculations and Commission agenda actions are reviewed and approved by supervisory financial
personnel prior to entry into general ledger, however staff absences and vacancies limited their
effectiveness during the past year. The City halted account write-offs in early 2007 when it was
determined that delinquent Utility accounts were being removed from the financial system. The Finance
Department will recommend setting a dollar limit for all City billing account ~Tite-offs that requires
written authorization by the City Manager's office and possible approval by the City Commission to
remove balances from the financial records. The Finance Department is closely monitoring receivables
greater than sixty days for both recording of allowances and to actively seek to recover those receivables
through the help of a collection agency.

08-07 Pension Benefit Calculations

Criteria

The City should have adequate procedures in place to ensure that pension benefit calculations are being
performed correctly by someone knowledgeable of the plans and that retiree benefit files are properly
maintained which indicates review and approval ofbenefits.

Condition

Based on inquiry of the City's Finance Director and audit procedures performed to validate benefit
payments, we noted that benefits for several retirees were calculated incorrectly resulting in higher
benefit payments to the retirees. Our audit procedures also disclosed that in several instances, audit the
documentation to support benefit payments was not able to be located in the respective employee files.

Cause

Calculations were being performed by inexperienced City personnel. Calculations ofbenefits for retirees
were performed using incorrect credited service years and salary included accumulated sick and leave
time as well as severance pay. There was also no review of the calculations performed by the City's
Finance Department or the plan actuary.

Effect

Pension benefit expenses are misstated due to the incorrect calculations. Also, we were unable to perform
the test of benefit payments for the one retiree whose benefit calculation form could not be located.
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Recommendation

The calculation of the retiree benefit payments should be reviewed by the plans' actuary and corrective
action should be taken to recover overpayments from retirees. Employee files should be periodically
reviewed by someone knowledgeable of the plans for the proper inclusion of the required documentation.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

This matter was identified and reported to the City Administration and Pension Boards by the Finance
Department in late 2007. Until this time, the City's pension records had been maintained by a staff
member in the City Clerk's office. At the recommendation of the Finance Department, administration of
City pension plans, including calculation of retiree benefits, was transferred to a contracting agent in
January 2008. An benefit calculations are now reviewed by the pension actuary.

Control Deficiencies

08-08 Encumbrances

Criteria

An effective purchase order system has established procedures to monitor open purchase orders at year
end to determine whether they should be closed or brought into the next fiscal year to complete a
transaction that has been committed to. The purchase orders which have valid commitments associated
with it should be reflected as a reserve of fund balance, for the governmental funds, at year end. Also,
those purchase orders carried forward into the next fiscal year should be monitored to ensure the
transaction is completed properly.

Condition

During the course of our audit, we noted a $148,000 purchase order which was carried forward and
reflected as an encumbrance at year end that did not have an outstanding commitment associated with it.

Cause

The cause is a lack of oversight and procedures to ensure encumbrances are properly reflected in the
books and records.

Effect

An inaccurate reporting of reserved fund balance.

Recommendation

We recommend written procedures be established to ensure the proper reporting and carry forward of
open/committed purchase orders is occurring at year end. Also, procedures should be established to
monitor these carry forward items to ensure the commitment was finalized and the corresponding
encumbrance was released.
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Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

As a planning step for implementing a new financial system on October 1, 2008, the Finance Department
repeatedly trained, explained and counseled purchasing staff regarding the importance of open year end
purchase orders. Since this specific item was not discussed with the Finance Director during the course
of the audit, this appears to be an isolated error or oversight relating to transition of purchasing items to
the new financial system. The Finance Department does have written procedures regarding the proper
reporting and carry forward of open purchase orders at year end and will continue to work closely with
purchasing staffmembers to ensure encumbrances are properly recorded and released.

08-09 Retainages

Criteria

Retained percentages, which represent amounts withheld from contractors for completed work pending
satisfactory approval of their phase of a construction project, should be classified as an expenditure and
recorded on the books as a retainage payable simultaneously with the payment to the contractor.

Condition

We noted that in one instance, a retainage totaling approximately $242,000, was not recorded on the
books and records.

Cause

City personnel did not review construction progress billings at year end to ensure amounts were properly
recorded.

Effect

Since this project was funded by FEMA, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards was incorrect as
expenditures were understated and the federal aid receivable and related revenue accounts were
understated. Ultimately, the books and records of the City could be materially misstated and incorrect
ammmts are submitted for reimbursement from the federal funder.

Recommendation

We suggest that procedures be implemented to ensure that all retainages are recorded simultaneously
when payments are made to the contractors. At year end, we further suggest that all progress billings for
construction projects be reviewed to ensure retainages, where applicable, are properly recorded.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The Finance Department hired new staff members in 2009 to improve and address weaknesses in the
oversight of capital projects, capital assets and grant accounting. The Department will implement
procedures with the new staff to ensure that all retainages are recorded simultaneously when payments
are made to the contractors. At year end, all progress billings for capital projects will be reviewed to
ensure retainages, where applicable, are properly recorded in the financial records.
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08-10 Tracking Capital Projects

Criteria

Prudent practices dictates that expenditures for capital projects funds be recorded in the governmental
funds to which they relate. Further, costs to acquire capital assets should be recorded in the enterprise
funds.

Condition

The City, in prior years, established a general fund capital projects fund to track capital projects. We
noted that the City is recording all capital costs for the various enterprise funds in this fund and
transferring the amounts into the respective enterprise funds at year end. We noted that these transfers
were not done properly and fund balances were affected.

This is caused because the general fund capital projects is being used to track and pay for all of these
capital expenditures.

Effect

The effect of recording capital costs in this manner is potential misstatements in the ftnancial statement
and the recording of capital costs in the wrong funds.

Recommendation

We recommend that the City revise their current mechanism for tracking capital costs and record the
capital costs in the funds to which they relate.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

As noted in the responses above, the Finance Department hired new staff members in 2009 to improve
and address weaknesses in the oversight of capital projects, capital assets and grant accounting. The
Department will implement procedures with the new staff to ensure that tracking capital costs is done
accurately in the City's ftnancial records.

08-11 Interfund Reimbursements

Criteria

Interfund reimbursements are defmed by GAAP as repayments from the funds responsible for particular
expenditures or expenses to the funds that initially paid them, i.e" an allocation of indirect
costs/overhead. These interfund reimbursements are treated as an adjustment to expenses or
expenditures, decreasing the fund initially funding the cost and increasing the reimbursing fund's
expenses or expenditures.
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Condition

We noted documentation fonnally supporting the methodology used to derive the amounts of the
reimbursements has not been reviewed for a number of years and does not tie into any of the actual
expenditures.

Effect

The reimbursing funds may be paying inaccurately for their share of services.

Cause

Lack of management oversight of the process for determining the reimbursement amounts and how they
are recognized in each of the funds.

Recommendation

Since the services provided are administrative in nature and not directly related to the service provided
by the fund, these amounts should be recorded as interfund reimbursements, except in the pension trust
funds which recognizes a deduction and the fund providing the service recognizes a revenue. The
Finance Department should formally document the methodology used to derive the amounts that are
reimbursed. Reimbursements should be reviewed quarterly to ensure the amount being reimbursed
approximates the actual cost.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The Finance Department has been addressing the allocation of interfund costs over the past year.
Allocations of insurance costs, pension, information technology, garage costs and general administration
are all areas that the City will review and adjust procedures over the coming years. During FY20091l0,
the Finance Department will review and document the methodology used to derive the general
administrative costs reimbursed from other City funds.

Noncompliance Matters

08-12 Investments

Criteria

The City's established investment policy (Resolution No. 36-2008) dictates that the portfolio mix in
repurchase agreements shall not exceed 25% of the total investment balance at anyone time. The
investment policies for each pension plan, also require ratings by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization (NRSRO) at A or A-lor higher, depending upon the type of investment.

Condition

We noted that 33% of the investment holdings of the City were in repurchase agreements as of
September 30,2008. We also noted that there are pension plan investments which do not meet the rating
criteria dictated in the plan investment policies.
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Cause

This noncompliance is caused by a lack of oversight over the City's investments to ensure that the
investment mix, as well as investment ratings, are in compliance with established policies.

Effect

Noncompliance with the established policies which can result in exposure to undue risk.

Recommendation

We recommend that the investment portfolio be reviewed to ensure compliance with adopted investment
policies. We further recommend that an individual in the Finance Department be assigned the
responsibility of monitoring the investments on a monthly basis to ensure that the City's investments
comply with established policies.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The City's investment policy was adopted in August 2008 after consult with the City's Internal Auditor
and Investment Manager. Implementation of the policy included a period of transition (verbally
requested at between 3 and 6 months) to the Investment Manager allowing them to reduce their
repurchase % through prudent laddering in the purchase of other investment securities. The Finance
Department has always assigned responsibility to a supervisory staff for monitoring investments on a
monthly basis to ensure that the City's investments comply with established policies.

08-13 Bond Covenant Compliance

Criteria

The City's revenue bonds and notes contain covenants with which the City must comply. Formal
documentation should be maintained to document compliance with all debt covenants. The debt
covenants of the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) bonds provide that the City must furnish to
the bank within 270 days after the close of each fiscal year an annual audited financial statement of the
CRA certified by an independent certified public accountant.

Condition

The CRA did not submit the annual audited financial statements to the bank within the required time
period.

Cause

The City's annual audited financial statement was unable to be completed as of the due date provided in
the debt covenant.
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Effect

The City, upon non"compliance with debt covenants, may be subject to additional requirements as stated
in the bond document to cure any deficiency.

Recommendation

It is recommended that procedures be implemented to monitor debt covenants pertaining to the latest debt
issues to ensure compliance and also complete the financial statements on a more timely basis in order to
be able to furnish the financials to the bank.

Views 0'1Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The City recognizes delays in the start of audit fieldwork contribute to delays in completion of the annual
audited fmancial statements. The audit engagement letter reflected audit fieldwork for FY2008
beginning in February. In the future, the Finance Department will be ready no later than January
foHowing the September fiscal year end in coming years to have the audit begin. This should ensure the
audited statements are completed by June.

08-14 Unclaimed Property Report

Criteria

Chapter 717, Florida Statutes, which is the Florida Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act, provides that
all property held by government agencies, regardless of the property type, have a dormancy period of one
year and that an Annual Unclaimed Property Report is required to be filed for all property held that has a
value of $10 and above. The report must be filed before May 1st of each year and applies to the
preceding calendar year.

Condition

Our audit procedures performed for deposits payable held in the City's agency fund, disclosed that the
City did not submit its annual unclaimed property report to the state on a timely basis. Review of the
detailed listing of deposits payable indicated that amounts represent unclaimed checks for deposit
refunds, payroll, and various vendor checks issued in the prior fiscal year that remain unclaimed. The
dormancy period for these checks expired in December 2008.

Cause

Per discussion with City personnel, the fiscal year 2008 report was not filed due to stafftumover.

Effect

The City is not in compliance with a Florida Statute.
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Recommendation

An effort should be made to ensure that the City remains in compliance with this state statute and submit
the unclaimed property report in a timely basis.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The Finance Department is in the process of hiring new staff and will be reevaluating each position's
responsibilities, including this process. The Finance Department supervisory staffwill ensure the City is
in compliance going forward.

08-15 Labor Contracts

Criteria

Pursuant to labor contracts, upon retirement, employees will be paid for retained sick leave at 100% of
their rate of pay. In addition, the employee will be paid for current sick leave in the amount of the
average number of days of current leave unused by the employee during their during the last five years
of employment, however, in no event shall the amountexceed twelve (12) days of pay.

Condition

During our testing of compensated absences and inquiries of City personnel, it was noted that during
fiscal year 2008, retiring employees are not being paid for current sick leave upon retirement as
delineated in the labor contracts.

Cause

This is caused by a lack of understanding of the requirements of the various labor contracts by City
personnel.

Effect

The City is not in compliance provisions delineated in the labor contracts.

Recommendation

We recommend that all labor contracts be reviewed to .ensure compliance with all provisions. The City
should designate an employee to oversee and review all payments to made to employees upon retirement
to ensure compliance.
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Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The City union contract negotiations were done unilaterally through the City Labor Attorney, resulting in
agreements long after the conclusion of the previous contract. These agreements resulted in substantial
retroactive calculations of pay and benefits. The City Labor Attorney did not provide briefs of the
contract changes at the conclusion of negotiations. Therefore, specific details were unknown to the
City's Human Resources and Finance Departments. A collaborative approach between Human
Resources, Legal and Finance on future negotiations will ensure isolated contract changes are broadly
known and specifically addressed.

Other Matters

08-16 Fund Deficits

Criteria

The Golf Course Fund and Information Technology Fund have deficit balances in unrestricted net assets
as of September 30, 2008 of $1,517,030 and $4,134, respectively. The Refuse Collection and Disposal
has an unrestricted deficit of $1,679,666 as of September 30, 2008, and a total fund deficit of $469,320.
In addition, the Law Enforcement and Firefighters Education Fund and the Capital Improvements Capital
Projects Fund have unreserved undesignated deficits of $4,813 and $182,416, respectively, as of
September 30, 2008.

Condition

These funds have continued to reflect deficits each year. These funds have obtained loans from other
funds to cover cash requirements.

Effect

Deficits can cause a financial burden on a municipality and can be a sign of deteriorating fmancial
condition.

Cause

The cause is a lack ofmonitoring the funds activities and establishing a plan to eliminate the deficits.

Recommendation

We suggest a plan be developed by the City to provide the funding to eliminate these deficits. City
management should review the activities of each of these funds to determine if charges for services are
reasonable and competitive with the neighboring markets and make adjustments accordingly. In
addition, management needs to review the transfers out made to the General Fund.
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Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The Finance Department prepares monthly financial reports and distributes them to management staff
and Commission. These reports reflect comparisons to approved budgets and includes a narrative for
significant variances. The City Administration has been actively adjusting service rates/fees as well as
constraining operating costs to help ensure continuing operations become self-supporting and avoid
undue reliance on a subsidy from the General Fund. In addition, there has been some change in
management personnel in these areas to better manage these areas.

08-17 Landfill Long-Term Post-Closure Care Estimate

Criteria

The estimate for the long-term post closure care of the landfill should be reviewed periodically to ensure
that a proper estimate is recorded on the books and records of the City.

Condiiion

It was noted that the City has not had a review of the landfill long-term post-closure care costs since
October of 1995.

Cause

This is caused by a lack ofpolicies and procedures in place to have a periodic review of the estimate.

Effect

Long-term care costs and liabilities could be misstated due to increased costs that were not taken into
account.

. Recommendation

We recommend the City perform a reevaluation of the long term care estimate to ensure all current
factors are taken into consideration.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The City Public Services Department will perform a reevaluation ofthe long term land fill care estimated
liability during 2009/10 to ensure all current factors are taken into consideration in estimating the
continuing cost of long-term care.

08-18 Finance Department Staffing

Condition

Client's responses for the FY2006 Management Lettcr Findings continually referred to the turnover of
professional accounting staff and that a new City Financial Management Team would be assembled by
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the end of fiscal year 2008. During the 2007 fiscal year, there were several additions to the professional
staff within the Finance Department. Also, shortly after the fiscal year end, another new addition and a
transfer from another department to the professional staff made the department complete in the number
of employees. During the 2008 fiscal year, the City was without a controller and that position was not
filled until approximately six months after the year end. Although this position was filled, as of the
completion of our audit engagement, several staff within the Finance Department left the employ of the
City and therefore, the City is once again not fully staffed in the Finance Department.

Recommendation

We suggest that the operations of the Finance Department be thoroughly reviewed to determine the
appropriate staffing and skill set required. City management should evaluate the strengths and
weaknesses of the Department, as well as each individual, the current policies and procedures in place
and the remaining corrective actions to be implemented to strengthen the department.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The professional staff of the Finance Department was completely turned over in 2006/07 causing a loss
of experience and a documented absence of standard processes and procedures. Since mid-2007, three
new Finance staff worked to recreate and document standard City financial procedures. This was done
while conducting County negotiations for water, Police and Fire, refinancing $66 million of utility debt,
improving utility account collections and implementing a new financial accounting system.
Inexperienced accounting staff have been replaced subsequent to the 2008 audit and new staff are
working to establish current policies and procedures with the new fmancial system and address
remaining corrective actions that need to be implemented to strengthen the Finance Department. The re­
establishment of a Department secretary and Senior Accountant for billing, receipts, investments and
banking will help to speed the Department's improvements over that of the past year.

SECTION m - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Significant Deficiencies - Material Weakness

08-19 Internal Controls over Compliance

Criteria

The City should have an adequate system of internal control over compliance in place that monitors and
ensures compliance with all grant agreements.

Condition

The City's internal controls over compliance are not functioning as intended as evidenced by the
reporting of items 08-04, 08-20 and 06-18. An adequate system of internal control would ensure that
individuals with grant compliance responsibilities monitor the activities and requirements of each grant,
including monitoring the approval for a project extension by the granting agency. In addition, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards was initially incorrect due to approximately $487,000 of
FEMA expenditures which were rolled forward from the prior year and approximately $242,000 of
retainages which were not recorded (included in item 08-04).
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Cause

City personnel have not implemented procedures to ensure compliance with grant compliance.

Effect

This creates a lack of sufficient controls over grant administration and the City risks losing certain grant
funding.

Recommendation

The City needs to have an adequate system of internal control over compliance in place that monitors and
ensures compliance.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

As discussed in many of management's responses above, the City Administration will establish an
adequate system of internal control over grant awards that monitors and ensures compliance with all
grant agreements. Many of these controls will come as a result of more narrow.fmancial accounting job
duties as a result of increased Department staffing. The planned development of a City Financial
Procedures Manual during 200911 0 will also serve to document an array of internal control improvements
for the City, including those relating to grant awards.

Noncompliance Matters

08-20 Report Filing

Criteria

Circular A-I33, Part C - §320 requires the completion of the audit and submission of the data collection
form and reporting package within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of the auditor's or nine months
after the end of the audit period.

Condition

The City did not submit the reporting package by the due date ofJune 30, 2009.

Questioned Costs

None.

Cause

The late completion of the audit due to extensive adjustments required to properly present the City's
fmancial statements.
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Effect

None.

Recommendation

We recommend that the City comply with Circular A-133 compliance requirements for timely audit
completion and reporting by filing the required reports in a timely manner or obtaining a waiver in
advance from the oversight agency.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

As stated previously, the City recognizes delays in the start of audit fieldwork contribute to delays in
completion of the annual audited financial statements. The audit engagement letter reflected audit
fieldwork for FY2008 beginning in February. In the future, the Finance Department will be ready no
later than January following the September fiscal year end in coming years to have the audit begin. This
should ensure the audited statements are completed by June.

PRIOR YEAR FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS NOT IMPLEMENTED

Noncompliance Matters

06-18 Capital Asset Identification

Criteria

The Federal Compliance Supplement requires that recipients of federal financial assistance maintain
sufficient property records in accordance with federal requirements.

Condition

The City's capital assets records system does not currently provide for the identification of the federal
percentage of participation in the acquisition of equipment and real property. There is currently no
policy in place requiring the identification of source of funds used in the acquisition of equipment and
real property as part of the City's property records. Consequently, when these assets are eventually
disposed of, the City runs the risk of non-compliance with federal disposition requirements because these
assets were not properly identified upon acquisition.

Questioned Costs

None.

Cause

The City was not aware of the requirement for identification of federal percentage of participation in
property acquisition.
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Effect

Complete and accurate property records are not being maintained on equipment and real property
acquired wholly or partially with federal financial assistance.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

The City is aware of the requirements for identification of the federal percentage of participation in
property acquisition as this was delivered personally to Finance staff following last year's audit. With
the purchase of the new accounting software, a capital asset module was purchased. This module was
put into operations with the transfer of capital asset information from the excel spreadsheets previously
being used for capital asset management. The additions for the FY2008 were also inputted with the
identification the asset was purchased with federal and/or state grant money. As noted in the responses
above, the Finance Department hired new staff members in 2009 to improve and address weaknesses in
the oversight of capital projects,capital assets and grant accounting. The Department will transfer these
procedures to the new staff to ensure tracking of capital costs is done accurately in the City's financial
records.

SECTION IV - STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

PRIOR YEAR STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FINDINGS NOT JMPLEMENTED

Noncompliance Matters

06-21 Capital Asset Identification

CSFA #37.039 - Florida Department of Environmental Protection - Statewide Surface Water
Restoration & Wastewater Projects

Criteria

The State Projects Compliance Supplement, adherence to which satisfies the requirements of Section
215.97, F.S, requires that recipients of state financial assistance maintain sufficient property records in
accordance with state requirements.

Condition

The City's capital assets records system does not currently provide for the identification of the state
percentage of participation in the acquisition of equipment and real property. There is currently no
policy in place requiring the identification of source of funds used in the acquisition of equipment and
real property as part of the City's property records. Consequently, when these assets are eventually
disposed of, the City runs the risk of non-compliance with state disposition requirements because these
assets were not properly identified upon acquisition.

Questioned Costs

None.
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Effect

Complete and accurate property records are not being maintained on equipment and real property
acquired wholly or partially with state financial assistance.

Cause

The City was not aware of the requirement for identification of state percentage of participation in
property acquisition.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

The City is aware of requirements for the identification of the state percentage of participation in
property acquisition as this was delivered personally to Finance staff following last year's audit. With
the purchase of the new accounting software, a capital asset module was purchased. This module was
put into operations with the transfer of capital asset information from the excel spreadsheets previously
being used for capital asset management. The additions for the FY2008 were also inputted with the
identification the asset was purchased with federal and/or state grant money. As noted in the responses
above, the Finance Department hired new staff members in 2009 to improve and address weaknesses in
the oversight of capital projects, capital assets and grant accounting. The Department will transfer these
procedures to the new staff to ensure tracking of capital costs is done accurately in the City's financial
records.
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